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State versus Andrew Burnéide—Dominique Shumate

PROCEEDTINGS

THE BAILIFF: Please come to order, Court is
now in session, the Honorable C. Victor Pyle presiding.

fHE COURT: Be seated, please;

Are we ready to start. on State v. Burnside
and Shumate? )

MS. BENILEY: Yes, Your.Honog.

MS. ROSS:l Judge, I think we'ye had a
wardrobe issue. We'ré trying to find some pants ‘for my
client. He doesn't fit in the pants we provided.'

.THE COURT: You got some motions Qe can
decide? _ o
. MS. ROSS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: We can go ahead and do those::
What are the motions? | |

MS. ROSS: Judge, my client'is not here "in

the courtroom, but I guess I can go ahead with'fﬁeh. I

first have a motion to,quash the indictment based on Rule

3C on the Rules of Criminal Procedure in that it didn't go

before the grand jury within 30 days. That's a motion I
ask to put on the record.

THE COUﬁT: I deny that motion:

MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your Honor. Secondl?,
Judge, I move to suppress the drugs in this case based on

the search warrant. The State provided me with this copy
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate
. - \

and I -will pass you up a Copy of the search warrant that's

relevant in this case. - N

(Copy given- to.the Court.)

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, briefly, we have an
issue with.Mr,;Robertsoan client. He is refusing to
enter to courtroom. I don't know if you would like to
address that on the record since-we areain‘pretrial
motions. He is present and perhaps Mr. priﬁson can shed
some light on that. '

« MR. ROBINSON;' May it please the Court. Your
Honor, I've tried for a long time -to get a hold of him.
I've sent him letters and so forth toiqome and-see me and
he hég not done that. | |

THE COURT: Do you want té/talk wiﬁh him?

MR. RCBINSON: The prosecutors and I have met
to tfy to work this out and he's had no contact with me
since thén. I took the precaution of every other day
sending a letter oqt to him tb come and so forth and he's

never come, never showed up. This is the first I've seen

him since the meeting wé've had. He's been very

uncooperative with me in assisting me in the preparation

'0of this trial. When he comes in here, I would make a

motion to be relieved as counsel at this time. It is very
difficult to try a case when ybur client does not want to.

cooperate with you.
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

THE COURT: Do I need to take him into
custody? Why don't you go out there with him with
security and tell him that I need to talk with him about
Vhis rights to,sténd trial here today and if refﬁsed to do
that, he will be tried in his absence..

MR. ROBINSON: Yes, sir.

"THE COURT: Bring him in. If hé doesn't want
to come in, bring him in. .

(Defendant enters courtroom.)

Mr. Burnsidé; |

DEFENDANT.BURNSIbE: Yes, sir.

'THE COURT: You are here today -- you caﬁ sit
back‘down, sirh——‘to be tried on some dfug‘ofﬁenses. Now,
.you have a right to'a~jury-trial. Mr. Robinson ié your'
attorney and I'ﬁnderstand a jury tfial has been requested.
Do you undersfand that?

‘ DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You got a perfectlright to bé'in 
this_éourtroom and participate iﬁ this trial if you want
fo. Do you understand that?

| DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.’

THE COURT: 1If you do not wish to participate
in this matter) then you're going‘to be tried in your
absence, do you understand that?

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate-

THE COURT: . Whether you're present here today

| or not, there still is going to be a trial today on these

drug charges.
DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: . Yes, sir. '

THE ‘COURT: Now, I understand earlier this

-morning you refused to come into the courtroom.

%-DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: No, .sir, I had got hére

late. | |

THE"COURT: When I came in this morning, just.
a shortiwhiié_ago, ;69 Wefe walking down the hallway to
the corner"iooking out the window.

: DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.

! .TQE=COURT; When I'got in my office, I looked
out the windowAand'§0uxwere walking down the streét. Now,
I don't gndérstandgthatt .

o DEFENDANT'BURNSIﬁE: I Qas‘talking to my

kids. | | |

THE COURT: ©Now, do you wish to be bresent"
with your léwyef today and try this case?

|  DEFENDANT BURNSIDE:- Yes, sir.
- THE COﬁRT: Alright, that's good.

Ms. Ross, your motion.

MS. ROSS: Judge{ I apologize. I don't know
where my client -- I know he's in jail but I guess they're

trying to get him dressed out;
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THE COURT: Do we know where he is?

THE DEPUTY: Yeah, we told the PD's office
that we need some clothes for him and:they have yet to .
bring them.

MS. ROSS: My investigator is upstairs trying
to handle my pleas and I just calléd the PD's office for a
secoﬁd time. There's no anéwer right now. ‘I don'g know.
Maybe we can just briﬂg him in, in the- jump suit‘bottoms
just to hear these motions and then we'll dress him7out.
| THE COURT: * Okay:

THE DEPUTY: They tell -me they got-him somé
now. - . ‘ : S ,

THE COURT: 'All‘right.

MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your'ﬁonor, may it

please the Court. I would like to pass up a copy of the

‘search warrant and I w&uld refer youAto Section 17Q13.140

of the South Carolina Code of Laws as-far as issuing,
execufion.and return of search warranfs. I can h@nd;up a
copy of that if you'd like. o

THE COURT: Okay. ‘

MS. ROSS: The relevant paft in the body of
the statute it states that the return shall be ﬁade to‘the
issuing, municipal: judicial officer. That is a clear
statutory rule and that was not done in this case and we'd

move to dismiss first on that basis.
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

THE COURT: What's the responée, solicitor?

_MS. BE@?#E?{ Yqur”HQho;L I'm not quite .-
ééréain -- I believe the retﬁrn waé made to Diane Cagle
who is the chief magistréte judgé and it was issued by
Eisher. I would submit to you that Judge Cagle being the
chief magistrate judgé would have the autho;ity‘to accept

that return on Judge»Fisher‘s behalf. I can offer the

testimony of Deputy Walters if you have any questions as

to why that -was done. -
- THE COURT: The fact that she's the chief -
judge the statute says that the return shall be made to

the issuing municipal issuing officer, the one who issued

it to begin with.

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, I had a briefly
consult with the deputy and he informs me the'Judge.Fisher'
was not working the daylit was‘returned and théy do work ‘
in the same office in the same work space. 'In addition,

Your Honor, the deputy states the return within 10 days .

'and since this is a time sensitive matter, -the deputy

wanted to return to search warrant as quickly as possible.

- The State -would argﬁe that it was proper for
him to returﬁ it to Judge Cagle;Aone~as to the magistrate,
two as Judée Fisher's ca—wprkér, three it was returned to
the same office, and four the time issue.

Additionally, I believe it was issued for
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

probable cause,‘it was issﬁed proper;y, and it was
returned to the chief mégiStrate who was the only one
working that,day; |

THE COURT: What would have happened if the
issuing judge issuing the warrant became deafly ill, waé
in an automobile accident, was in an accident or near
death and it was returned to another judge in the office,
what's wrong with that? | |

MS. ROSS: Well, Judge, it goés against the
plain wording of the statute and the statute is
contfolling,on;these type of casés.. .

THE-CQURT: ‘So what would haépen if theg
iséuing judge diéd? _ ~ |

'MS. ROSS: Well, I would think that if the
iSsuing judge died, there would be‘soﬁe noetation on there
to that fact, some kind of'addreésiné to the statute
stating an attempt was made. They're allowed-to do'dral
affidavits and different affidavits involving statutes and
oral amendments in orderlto get wérrants. Here they
clearly could have put something'in‘but they did not.

| And.I believe the feturn was done guite,soon

after the search warrant was it wasn't a matter of nine
days later they went in and Judge Fiéher was not
available. This was a situation where they just did not

go by Section 17.13.140.
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State versus Andrew Burnside—bomihique Shumate

THE COURT: Do'you have any cases?

'MS. ROSS: Judge, I will say in. the State v.

Victor Missouri which was actually a search warrant trial

I had -- and this not actually the first trial -- this was

a trial where the search warrant was dismissed and it was

dlsmlssed for this very reason because the warrant was not

followed and the return was not approprlately 51gned as
dictated by the statute | |

THE COURT: What was the case?

MS. ROSS: ~I'm'referring -- there is a hold
in the State v. Victor Missouri which found that the |
search warrant was invalid. ‘This was actually a later
trial where the search warrant was actually suppressed and
dismissed so there was no ease ldw on point.

I did not print it out and I couid find some
case law that talks about the statuté being controlling in
search warrant cases. I believe that if you could hand me
the statute back on the next page I-highlighted some
thinds. ‘There is one State'v. Covert where South

Carolina's general search warrant statute contains

‘'requirements different frem those mandated by the 4th

Amendment. That goes to our Article 1 Section 10 less
broad than the requirement_of the US Constitution.
The primary benefit of 17.13.140 is to the

person (inaudible) Seerch, the failure to return the

11
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

search warrant did not require the suppression 6f the
evidenée seized eﬁen though the State offered no
explanation for failure where the defendants did not argue
that they were prejudiced_in any way by the defect. Here
clearly they were prejudiced. That's all I have on it. I
don't have a specific ---

THE COURT: Solicitor.

MS. BENTLEY:‘ The defen@ant nuﬁbér one was
not prejudiced. According té‘State‘v.iWeaver, if there is
a procédural.error such as this'one,.suppression is not
required. State v. Weaver, 6 dealt with the search warrant
Was returned after fhe‘10 day period and the courtﬁfound
that the defendént.had-to have a prejudice in order for.
the evidence to be suppressed. .In this case, we don't
have the 10 day error but we have the procedural érro:'in
that it was not returned to the issuing magistrate. It
was issued to ahother magistrate who would;ha%e had

authority to issue the search warrant to begin with. It

was issued to the chief magistrate and we argue that this

is a situation somewhat to Wegvet and .I do ﬁéve Weaver if
Your‘Hoﬂor would like to review that.
THE COURT: I deny your motion to suppress.
MS. ROSS: Judde, I've got a second part of
that based on the CI. We'd argue that probable cause

wasn't established in the affidavit showing a fair
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probability that drugs would be found. We base that on
Illinois v. Gates and the 5th Amendment in the US
Cdnstitutiqn, Article 1 Section 10 of our State
Constitution.

Here was a situation from what I can tell' a

CI went and made purchases somewhere in this trailer park

| at 120 Bleachtry Lane. I know that there is reference

| somewhere in the discovery of a CI purchase and then you.

can see from the affidavit what the officer responded in

that and four search warrants were issued for thlS “trailer -

park, four separate search warrants. Now here there's no
specific address, it is simply 120 Bleachtry Road;"There
are possibly'nine-trailers there. ‘Here that lacks
specific factual detail as to which traller they're

talklng about.

I took some pictures of some of the trailers

out there and I will just show them to you and‘showdhow
similar all those trailers are out at this lot;. In the
search warrant affidavit, there is no~specificity as to
which lot was where. It simply said - well'you can read
it -- and we would argue without semeone more specific,
that would lack probabie cause to get a search warrant.
It would be'an evasions of all rights of all people to
privacy because there was actually a number‘of trailers

out there. The question is which one is referred to in

13
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate
this warrant.
MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, I would
respectfully disagree. The search warrant is specific'and

it says that this is a single-wide mobile home with brown
wood siding with a lightly colored wood (inaudible) under

penny. The.residence has no visible numbers. Entering

| the trailér park from Edwards Street, the residence is the

| second mobile home on the right. ‘We do have a map to

demonstrate that Lot 7 is the séCoﬁd mobile home on the
right from Edwards Streét. |

In addition, it goes the longitude and
latitude of this trailer and'the confidential inférmant's

buy was from this particula:‘tiailer. So there were four

search warrants issued pursuant to~four différentJCI buys.

This search warrant was for the CI buy from Lot 7 which is

'the second mobile home on the right from Edwards Street

and this specifically stated on the-warrant,

MS. ROSS: And the problem Lot 7 isn't put
anywhere on the warrant and I further say that there is
nothing saying.that this is a reliable informant. These
are words that have to be present when a searchlié issued
pursuant to the CI buy and there's nothing about the
reliability of the CI in the wording.

THE COURT: I disagree wifh you. I deny your

motion.
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| MS. ROSS: Thank you, Judge. We move to
sequester the w;tnegse§.

. THE COURT: I grant that motion. Only the
investigating officer can stay.

MS. ROSS: I have a motion in limine. I
Qoula wait until the end of the case to do a motion in
liminé‘ég to my client's record.

iﬂ .THE COURT: Sure. AAnything else before I
bring thé?panel up.
MS. ROSS: 'I did request soﬁe voir dire.
‘ " THE éOURT:' I got them.'tThe strikes are five
for each defendant, five for the State. -
L MR.‘ROBINSON: Yéur‘Honor, I have one motion
that I'd like to make.
~ THE COURT: Sure.

‘MR. ROBINSON: I'd like to make a motion to
relieved as counsél in this case. This is an appéinted
case to me but Mr. Burnside has indicated ét the meeting
that he wanted to seek paid counsél and I gave him an
opportunity to do that. I sent him three or four letters
to come in and to talk' to me, to help me prepare for this
case going forward. - I never heard any response- from him

but based on this an his uncooperativeness, I would

respectfully asked to be relieve. It is very difficult to

try a case when your client is no very cooperative.

15
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

THE COURT: I'm sorry, Mr. Robinson, I have
to deny that motion. »
MR. ROBINSON: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson and Ms. Ross, do you

| have any potential witnesses that you would like read. to

the jury?

MS. ROSS: I don't, Your Honor.

MR. ROBINSON: I do, Your Honor, have one and
I'1l read this to the Court. ‘Sandrea Burnside'. That's "
the mother. : : L |

(Whereupon, the jury was'selected.)

Ladies and géntlemen, if'I can have your
attention. At this tiﬁe we will select & jury in the case
of the State against Andrew Burnside and Dominique
Shumate. Mr. Bprnside, Mr. Shumate, would you staﬁd ublaiv
moﬁent énd face the jury panel for me a moment.‘

O' (Defendant’'s comply.) .

Thank you. You can be séated;

They are each indicted on several offenses.
They are first indicted for possession of cocaine with
intent toLdistribute on or about November 18, 2010. The"
second indictment alleges tﬂat on that same day? they
possessed a controlled substance with intent to

distribute. The next indictment alleges that on that. same

date they distributed cocaine base that is crack cocaine
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Alright brief opening statements. Bring the
jp;y in. o .;_, . R

(Jury re-enters the courtroom.)

Solicitor.

MS. MCCALL: 1If it please the Court, ladies

and gentlemen of the jury, Mr. Robinson and Ms. Ross. My

| name is Kaycee McCall and this is Lisa Bentley and we are

prosecutors for the Thirteenth Circuit Solicitor's Office
here 'in Greenville County and our job is to prosecute
cases here. , |

First of all I want to thank you for being
here and .your patience and I appreciate that. - I want to -
talk about three things this morning, very briefly, first,
what thié case is about, second, what the Stéte has a duty
and a :equirement to prove and, third, igtends to prove
it's case. |

‘First what this case is about. This éase is
about the defendants making and selling drugs from their

residence. Secondly, what the State has a duty and

requirement to prove.. As prosecutors in this case we have

the entire burden of proof in today's trial. The State

has to prove to you beyond any reasonable doubt that on or
about November 17, 2010, these defendants, Andrew Burnside
and Dominique Shumate were engaged in the manufacturing or

attempt tovmanufacturing cocaine base, better known as

17
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State versus Andrew Burnside-Dominique Shumate

crack cocaine. That they were trafficking crack, the
State must prove ﬁhat they were in possession of 10 or
more grams of crack cocaine.

The State must also prove to you that the

defendants were in possession of cocaine with intent to

distribute, that they were in possession of pills with
intent to distribufe, that they were in possession of a
weapon during thé éommission of a violent crime. The
Vipient»criﬁe today is trafficking crack cdcéine;

Now héw the State intents to prove its case.:
The State would first call.Deéuty Walters ffom the

Greenville Coﬁnty Sheriffﬂs Office. He will talk about

'his investigation and his involvement and how his

investigation led to the seé:ch warrant at the defendént's'-
residenc? located at‘LQt 7 on 01d BieachtryxRoad in
Greenville County. '

Then you will hear from Deputy Swift who is
alSkoith-the Greenville County Sheriff's Office. He will
go in detaii about the actual execution of the search
warrant and how they entered the residence and how he
found the'defendant, Dominique>Shumate, in the bathroom'
flushing.pilis down the toilet.

You will then here frbm Inves?igator_B:éndon_
Bfown, a vice and narcotics officer with the Greenville

County Sheriff's Office.  He will also talk about entering
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the residence when they were executing the search warrant
and how he found the defendant, Andrew Burnside in the .
back bedroom hiding under the bed.

Then you. will hear from Deputy Lanford, who

+is also with the Greenville County Sheriff's Office. .He

will go over in Qreat detail about' everything that was
found inside the defehdant's-residence‘and howltheyJ
determined the defendants were manufacturing crack
cocaine. .

After this testimony,'you'will be firmly
convinéed the defendants were found in possession of crack
cocaine; cocaine, pilié and a weapon.

Next the étate will c¢all Jerr& Drummond.

fHE COURT: Ma'am, please don't -- we'll let

thé witnesses tell “what the facts are. 'Just. Please.

5

 Just summarize. -

MS. MCCALL: I'm almost done.:  I'm sorry. We

will call Jerry Drummond who lived'wiph the defendants in

'the residence and he will discuss about when he lived

there. And you'll talk about several other witnesses and
the additional law enforcement investigatioh done in this
case. )

After you'Ve heard all the testimony and

considered all the evidence, we arefgoing to ask you to

>find‘the defendants guilty and please hold them
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accountable for that. Thank you for your time.

THEACOURT: Ms. Ross, are you going first?

MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your Honor. Counsél
and ladies and gentlemen of the jury, my name is Susannah
Ross and I répfesent'Dominique Shgmate, the man in the tan
shirt with the tie. Youlheér'this all the time someone
being in the wrong place at the wrong time and at no time
ié it more serious than when,yqu'are charged with a crime.
I've been doing criminal work for quite some time and I
call it being on théﬁsaﬁe planet with drugs; You see
drugs and pull out drugs and,it's‘pvefwhelming seeing” that
kind of drugs and notvphinking someone‘éhap's around those
druQs is guilty of'anything.the state has charged them
with. ' |

But that's making aséumptions,"ladies and

‘gentlemen, and I ask you not to do that.' When someone is

charged with a crime, you as the jury'are put in a. very
difficult decision,as to~whether the State has proven them
guilty beyond a reasonable doﬁbt. Whether they been
proven-guilty is a hard determination because yoﬁ've got
to decide not only whether ydu think they .did it or not,
but whether the State jumped through the hoops that they
needed to jump through to prove someone guilty of that
charge.

Now, I sort of relate it to the dog ate my
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homework. That's something that everyone's heard and the

wrong place at the wrong time. I.was,coming home.-from the

mountains and‘my cat threw up on my child's homework. It

literally happened. - I threw away the homework, my son was
cryiﬁg_and‘worried,about what's he going to'get when he
goes to school and has to essentially come up with the dog

ate my homework excuse. How is he going to get buy with

.that?.. I told him to tell the truth and the teacher would .

llsten to what he had to say because sometlmes the dog ate
my - homework really happens and sometimes someone really is

in the wrong place at'the wrong time.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, I will tell you a’

little bit about drugs>and drug houses. Drug houses are
places where people do drugs It's not only a place where
people buy drugs, but lt S places where people do drugs’
and d01ng drugs is not trafflcklng in drugs -

The State has charged Dominique Shumate with
traﬁficking drugs and that is a very very serious charge
ahd it carries a very serious‘penalty, ladies and'
gentlemen, and as you hear the‘witnesses'from the State.
and the defense, if there are any -- we have no duty to
put up any kind of defense and I tell you that because I
want you to know from the beginning how important it is as
a citizen of the United States that you are innocent until

you are proven guilty beyond é reasonable doubt.
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Now, when you hear from the witnesses from

the State I ask you not to make any asSumptions} I ask

you to hold those witnesses to the task of them doing

their jobs correctly éf having to prove guilt beyond.a
.neésbnable aouht because unless ‘and until they do, someoﬁg.
is not guilty, and ladies and gentlemen Dominique Shumate
is not guilty and I ask you, ladies and gentlemen, to
listen and keép an. open mind.

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson.

MR. ROBINSON: May it please the Court. Good-

'morning, my name is Scott Robinson. I practice. in

Greenville County and I don't have a lot to add to
Ms. Ross's statement but I will add this, There are a

couple of concepts you need to keep in your mind when

‘looking at this case because it's'very“tempting when youw

come into a case like this -- 'you're coming off the street

and_you don't know anything about- it and you're. going to

hear everything from the State and so forth -- but the
presumption of innocent is on these defendants.

They're considered'inhocent'until the State

proves to you beyond a reasonable doubt each and every

element of their case. You may not like to way they look,.

the way they act and they're up here being accused of

this, but you took the ocath a few.moménts ago with the

Court. You took an oath to look at this case with
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preéumption'of innocence and putting the State to the test

to make sure they prove their case.

Everyone in this country, as it is eluded to,

deserves a fair trial and as the judge will tell'you at

some point jury duty is one of the biggest things é person
can dq in,this country, one of the greatest honors.

When4you come to court, ybu bring your common

4

 sense, ' your life experiences, but understand that you have

a presumbtion in this case that the defendant's are
innocent.
The other idea. that you need to keep in youf

minds as you look at this and think about this. and think

' about what evidence the State is going to present, there's

a concept, and the Judge is going to talk about it, mere

presence. Mere presence. Two words, but it's very

“important in this case because it really controls this

o

case because just because your some place does not mean

yourmguilty”of‘something. Just because. you're in a car,

- just because you're in residence that belongs to somebody,

this residence did not belong to either of these
defendapts, it belonged to g Mr. Drummond who is a witness
in this matter;

The - idea is mere presence. Just becéuse
someone  is present some place, just bebausevthey're mere

present does.not mean they are guilty of something. Keep
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that in your mind, mere presence, and two, béyond a
reasonable doubt. If you do so, you're’'going to find tﬁat-

with all this evidence the State'is.going to put forward;
all the officers that are going to testify a few moments,
they can't establish their case. It looks all nice and
pretty all of these nice exhibits, all these physical._'
exhibits, but there’s'nothing in'fhis cése'that the State
can prove that these defendants, my client and T
Mr. éhumate, guilty of these-offénseg beyohd a feasohable
doubt. | -

I'd ask you to think about it. .Bring all
yéur life's experiences, your common sense, because yoﬁ
don't check. that -at the.door when ybu,come into the
courtroom. If you do that, ybuﬁré goiﬁg to find both of °
these guys -- ‘and like I said you may not like what they:
lbok.like or like thé fact they're_agcused‘of‘thése crimes
-~ but you'll find tﬁem‘not guilty based'oﬂ the fact of
the concept of mere préseqce; Like I said mere présence‘
is not enough to convict someone of'theseAChafggs.

THE»COﬁRT: Alright, solicitor.

MS. BENTLEY: 1f it please the Court, the.
State calls Jacob Waiters to the stand. |

THE CLERK: Sir, if you would come forward to

be sworn in. Place your left hand on the Bible and raise

your right;
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testified»as follbws;A

JACOB WALTERS, having been duly sworn,
Thank you. - You may be seated. Would you
state your name for the reco;d. " S 7
THE WITNESS: My name is Jacob Walters.
' THE CLERK: 'Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION'
BY MS. BENTLEY:
Q. Deputy Walters, wéuld you please tell us where

you are employed?

A. I work at the. Greenville County Sheriff's Office.

Q. How long have you workedvthere?

A. H‘Alliftle:o;er four years.

Q. Is there a specific until to which you are
aésigned?

A, I work with the directed batroi unit.

Q. What is tﬁe directed patrol unit?

A. It's a specialized unit to handle ‘a lot of

different complaints that come in, specificdlly, crime

stoppers complaints.

Q.- In the directed patrol unit, did you begin an
investigation into the trailer park that was on 0ld
Bleachtry Road?

A, I did.

Q. When did you begin this investigation?

29
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A. I began in early November, 2010.
0 Do you recall a date or approximate date?
A Approximately November 10th.
Q. Can you tell us what sparked that investigdtién?
A. It Qas é crime stoppers complaint received. -
0. I'm goiné to show yoprwhat's Been markéd as’
State's Exhibit 1. Do you~re¢ognize the depiction in
State's Exhibit 17
A. I do.
Q. What is it?
A. That is the. trailer park 1ocated at 120 01d
Bleachtry Road? ' |
Q;. On this map, is this what the traileripark'looked
like in 201Q?
A. Yes, it is.
Q. Any changes, aeletions been made to any of the
trailers in this,parké |
A. It appears to be a trailer park.
0. ‘And it fairly and'accurétely describés the park?
A. Yes.
MS. BENTLEY: At this time the State moves to
enter State's Exhibit 1.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. ROSS: No, Your Honor.

MR. ROBINSON: No objection.
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THE COURT: 1It's in evidence:

(Map marked as State's Ekhibit No, 1 for . .

identification was admitted into evidence.)

BY MS. BENTLEY:

Q. - Deputy Walters, you say this investigation began
with a crime stoppers tip; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And based on that tip, what did you do?

A. I began to dB surveillance on this trailer park,
just observing t?affic coming in and out of‘this t:ailer
park. . |
) Q. :'Hoﬁ iong did you observé it?

'A. We spent a couple of dayé waiching traffié come
in and out of this trailer park.

Q. | What observatiqné"did you‘nOtice‘regérding the
action, activitj in this park?

A. There was a lot of heavy traffic, véhicle
traffié,'foot traffic, bidjcle traffic,ljust noﬁstop in
and out of this trailer park.

Q. .Was Lot 7 involved in this activity?

A. Yes, it was.

0. Could you come déwn and show us where Lot 7 is?

A. Yes. Coming in from Edwards Street here, there
is (inaudible).

Q. Is it in the center.
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A. In the center, vyes, right here.

Q. Was that trailer marked with any numbers?

A. No, the;e were‘no‘numbers.

Q. Okay. 'You may have a seaf. After observing all
the activity regarding in and out of this trailer park,
what did you decide to do? What was the next step in your
investigation? | o | A

A. A number 6f vehicles leaving this trailer park
are stopped for Qaribus traffic infréc@ions. What ﬁe did
is me and another deputy would watch this trailer park and-
as traffic left, theré would be'deputies afound the
community on different streets and”thg depﬁties obser;éd
vehicles making traffic infractioné. We stop these

vehicles and either obtain consent to search these

‘vehicles or probable cause to search these vehicles or.

inventory the vehicle. .

Some of these stbps vielded drugs out of the .
vehicles and from that wé were able to use those suspécts
as confidential informants to go this trailer park to buy
drugs for us.

| Q. So the people that you would stop from the

trailer park turned into informanté?

A, Yes.
Q. Did you send a confidential informant to Lot 72
A. I did.
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Q. What day was that? .
A. That was on November 10th.
Q. Was that event recorded on audio?
A. Yes, it was an audio recording.
Q. ‘Did you observe the fransaction there?
A, . M¥*%9:32 - 4:50
.Q; What happened at Lot 7 on November 10th.
A. The'informant -— | ,
MS. ROSS: I would object. 1If he didn't
witness any of that,. how can he testify to it. |
THE COURT: I sustain the objeétion.
BY MS. BENTLEY:
Q. What.was your roll in that confidential infbrmant.
activity? | |
A. I took a statement'frém the informant and I also

‘'wrote the report for what we did that day.

Q. So you are aware of what happened based on your
dealings with the infoimant himself?
A. Yes.
Q. Did he purchase drugs from Lot 12
A. Yes.
MS. ROSS: Again, I would object.
THE COURT: I sustain the objection and
instruct the jury to disregard that question.

"BY MS. BENTLEY:
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Q. Based on the CI activity on November 10, were you
able to obtain a search warrant? |
A. I was. |
Q. _For which trailer?
AFor Lot No.. 7.

Where is Lot 7 Old Bleachtry Road located?

I © B ]

. It's in Greenville County.
MS. ROSS: Your_Hohor, I would renew ‘my

objection to the search warrant in general. This officer

has testified that he did not actually witness this

purchase and --=

THE COURT: Subject to your objection.

Proceed.
z BY MS. BENTLEY.

Q. You obtaiﬁed é search warrant, Deputy?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. And what.qéte was thaf-exeéutedé

A. It was November ——'I'm sor;y,>I can't remember
the exact date. I wrote it down on my report. If I could
see that. |

Q. Okay. Just the date. Please don't read anything
else, | .

A. - The date was November 19£h.

0. Was report written on the 19th?

A, The report was written on the 19th. The search
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was done on the 17th?

Q. The search warrant was executed.on Lot 7-01d-
Bleachtry Road, correct?

A. Yes.

0. What was your roll in the execution of the search
warrant?

A. In the execution of the search warrant at this

lot, what I did I went and I took the search. warrant to
the lot once entry had béen made and I read the search
warrant and I.left it there as other team members served
that search warrant. - I went to a dlfferent trailer and

'

assisted with a- dlfferent search warrant

Q. Was there more than one search active in November
of 20107
"A. Yes, there were actually four search warrants at

this trailer park being sarved simultaneously. So some
team members went to Lot 7 and'some‘team members went to

different lots.

Q. You served the search warrant on Lot 7.

A, I served the seaich-warrant.{

Q. But you did'not participate in the search?

A. Did not participate in the search.

0. What is your roll in this investigation overall?

A. I obtained all the search warrants. I

essentially was the case and I would go with the
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iﬂformants and explained to them what neéded to 5é_done,
sign them up, take statements from'them, write reports and
obﬁéined all the search warrants for every single trailer
here.

Q. AsS a case égent, did you have other
responsibility regarding evidence that was collected.

A. Yes."

Q. Would you talk about those duties?

A. Onée the évidence was collected, I.would go
discuss with people who had located it, what had been
found,vwhere it was at, what peopleAwere involvéd'in it,.
what'they should be éharged with, and thén-fgking it down
to prépefty and evidence and turning it there.

Q. Did you submit anyyevidence for analysis?.

A. Yes, several items were admitted.

Q. . And that was your responsibility .to make the
re§uests?"

A, Yes,

Q. I'm going to show jou'yhat has been mérked as

State's Exhibit No. 41. Without telling us what it is, do.

you recognize State's Exhibit No. 412

A. Yes, I do?
Q. How do you recognize it?
A. It was seized from Lot No. 7.

Q. Has it been altered in any way.
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‘A. No.

Q. Can you determine whether testing has been done

to it?
'A. ‘Testing hésrbeen done to it.
Q. Did ydu'requeét that testing be done?
A Yes. '
o) that tests did you request on No. 417?
A, I requested latent fingerprint testing on that.
0. |

- Okay. . Do you recognize what's been marked

State's.Exhibits -- and again don't tell us wﬁat.they are -

~- Exhibits 26 and 287

A. Yes,“I do.

Q. How do you<fecOgnizefthosé? _

A. Those'were alSO'séiiéd froﬁ Lotho; 7.

Q. 'Did you request any feSting be done to these?
A. I did. |

Q. What request did you make regarding’Staté's

Exhibit's 26 and 28?

A, ‘I’requested analysis off of that electronic
evidence. |

0. You did not do the testing yourself?

A. I did nét do the testing myself, no.

Q..‘As the caée agenﬁ, were you the person that
feceived‘the results of the test?

A. Yes.
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[PV \V]

Q. Was anything pertinent to your investigation
found on either 26 oxr 277
A. No, it's not.

MS. BENTLEY: I have no further questibns for

‘Deputy Walters.

THE COURT: Ms. Ross.
| CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. ROSS: .
Débuty Walters, do you fecoénize these pictures?

A. ' They appear to be-tfailefs. ‘This one is-Lot~No.r
T‘it appéars.‘ - | -

Q. 'Were‘any qf these oﬁher(trailers‘séarch
warranted? o | ‘

A. ' That's hard for me-to'deﬁermine,‘the§ are so
close. I can't see the lot numbers or anything so I cén’t
say. |

Q. But these are trailers -- a number of trailers of
the 120 Bleachtry Lane?

) A. It would appear to be, yes.
Q. And how many trailers were there total did there
appear to be on 120¥B1each£ry Lanez'

A. I don't know the exact number of total trailers
there. |

Q. More than'six?

A. More than six, yéah.
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Q. On that day, I believe, the 18th of November 2010

four search warrants were. issued at 120 Bleachtry Lane?

" A. Four search warrants were executed that day.

Q. - And were they all -- and you stated that you
didn't:actually use the battering ram or execute-the
search warrant at Lot 7 that day?

A. No; I didn't make an enttance.

Q. But you.had run the CIIthat led to that search
war:aht? . | ‘

A. Yes.

Q. And did you also run CI's that led to the search

1

warrants on the three other trallers that day9

A. Yes.

Q And were those the same CI?

A. No. | |

Q. And these were all CI's that you made trafflc

stops that were leav1ng°

A. I didn't make them, other deputies did.

Q. So.y'all'had been sort of collecting the product
of traffic stops to-trap CI's to set up these search o
warrants° |

A. Yes.

-‘Q;‘ Now, you stated that you got a statement”from the

CI in this case.

A. Yes.
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1é

Q. Do- you have that statemeht?

A, I don't have it .with me,;no?

Q. But that statement was part’of this case?

A. | Yes. |

Q.- Now, as a fesult of that CI buy at Lot 7 was
Mr. Shumate.or Burnside, were either of them charged'with
distributing crack from that CI buy?

A. No. Typically when I make a CI buy, we don't use
that by the substantlate a dlstrlbutlon charge because |
that burns your 1nformant You have to :eveal them and so
it --- | |

Q. I'm;just»asking ———

A. I'm tryingxto'explain my answer. 'The short

answer is no:

Q.- So nelther of these two gentlemen were charged

w1th dlstrlbutlon from that CI buy?

A. No, not from. the CI buy.

Q. Is there a video of that CI buy, any kind of

video?
A. Theres's an audio recording of it.
Q. But no wvideo?
A. Correct.

Q. Did the CI ever pick Mr. Shumate out of a line up
and say that's the person I purchased from?

A. Again, we don't use the informant to make a
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distribution charge, so, no, they weren't shown a line up.
Q. Was the answer yes or no? . e
A. The answer is no.

0. The CI never said I went to this house and made a’

"I purchase from this man?

A.. No.

Q. Or this man?

A. No.

Q. But someone was selling drugs out of Loﬁ 7 that
wasn't either of them? | -

A, Our informant was able to make a purchase out of
Lot 7, yes.

Q. ~ Now, eventually you go out and get a search.w
warrant based on' that. Do you have any ‘'way of knowing
when your informant made a purchase Mr. Shuhmate was in
ﬁhaf trailer?

A. No.

Q. And, in fact, that ﬁrailer was not in
Mr; Shumate's. name, was it?

'A. I don't know if his name was on it.

Q. And there was no evidence that he livea at thaf
trailer, wés there? : |

A. No, not in particular.

Q. Was it rented to him in his name?

A, I don't know if it was rented to him or not.
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Q. ~"Were his clothes in there?

A. There was clothing in there:

Q. Was it matched to him in any way with
fingerprints or DNA or anything like that?

A. No, it was just general clothing.

Q. You said before.you~didn't see, personaliy, any

kind of drug purchase at all from that particular trailer,

Lot 77
A. .Right..
Q. '~ Now, when you initially‘got the search .warrant;

and I'll show it to you, you didn't write in Lot 7 at all .
on the search warrant? You just siﬁply‘éaid 120 Bleachtry
Lane,~ié:that.wha£ yoﬁ_did on thg»othér ones as wgll?

A. ;In this particular-casg(when we made thé bhy and
when I went to thg tiailer park, Lot No. 7 wasn't
displayéd oh the tfailer so rather than put that in‘fhe
search warrant not knoQing; I described the trailer and
géve the GPS co—érdinance fg; it.

| -Q. When you gave those GPS co-ordinance, was that
based on GPS maps. or your phone or did you take é picturé
or anything to get those co—ordinance?

A, :It was obtained from Google Maps.

Q. . And would it.surprise you if that wasn't the

co-ordinance when you ran -- the exact co-ordinance when-.

'you put in 120 Bleachtry Lane on Google Maps?
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A. That would surprise me.
Q.. Now, how many times,had you used this particular

confidential informant.before this incident, before this
time? |

A, He was}used a numberlof differeﬁt times. I don't
know the exact number before this buy.

Q. So you usedlthis CI befo;e?

A.  Yes.

Q. Now, when you went and got the search Qarrant,

was the CI, the confidential ‘informant, there with the

magistrate?
" A. No, he was not.
Q.. And had he pointed out the trailer on a map or

énything to'the magistrate?

A. No, He pointed it out'to me.

Q. And isn't it frue that you only wrote that
incident report that he pointed out to ‘you dgys after
you'd gotten the search warrant?

r A. 'That's when I wrote that supplementﬂ

Q. But you didn't write‘that-supplement mentioning
that he pointed it out to yoﬁ until after the searchl |
Qarrant, the day after it was searched, correct?

A. Right.v -

Q. Is that the point you realized that you-hadn't

put any of that information in the actual warrant?
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A. No.

Q. Just to go back, ‘the CI-in this case nevei met
Dominigque Shumate, correct?. |

A. Not to my knowledge. .

0. And he didn't identify Mr. Shumate €ither?

A. No. : . : : '

Q. And there was moneyeexchanged‘and'd:ugs exchanged
in that buy?

A. Yes.

Q. And was that money ever'connected to Mr. Shumate?

A. No.

Q. And, in fact, you get the serial number off the

money and put it in to evidence?

A. Yes.

é. And that was nevei coﬁnected to Mr. Shumate?

A. Correct.7‘ , .

Q. '~ So you're saying there's no evidence what 'so ever

that Mr. Shumate sold drugs to this CI in question that
led to this search warrant?
"A. Right.
| MS. ROSS: 1I've not no. further questions.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. ROBINSON:
Q. Officer, to go a little bit more as to

Mr. Burnside. The CI never identified Mr. Burnside as
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being the person he sold to, correct?
A. That's correct. _ ) : - Cee -
0. Never identified him in a line up either, did he?
A. No, he wasn't shown a . line up. '
Q. Now, you testified a few‘momehts ago to Ms. Ross
‘that you were the officer in charge; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Investigating officer?

A. Correct.

0. As the investigating officer or the pefson in.’

charge, it's your responsibility to kind of corral all the

sheriffs's resources an@ get information and do research
and so forth,.right? J »

A. Sure.

Q. | And that way you can kind of give'inférmétion to
your assistants and the new deputies that are Qorking on
the casé as far‘as what's geing on in a partiéular case,
right? '

" A. That's right.

Q. Now, you testified a mément égo to Ms. Ross on
cross-examination that you don't know who owned fhis 
particular trailer, Lot 7, or owned Lot 7; is tﬂat
c6rredt?

A. That's right.

Q. You never went to the Greenville Cohnty Registrar
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of Deeds to find out who owned this trailer?:
A. You can check tax records and it will show you a

pfoperty owner.

Q. And the property owner was neither of these two
gentlemen? | | |

A. No, because that land get's leased out to someone
ﬁhs,then owns the trailer who then rents to someone else.

Q. Let's talk about that then, since we've

determined that that trailer or Lot 7 on that 'map over

there -was notvqwnéd by either of these two genflemeﬁ,
Mr. Shumate ar Mr. Burnside, let's talk about rental or
ieasevagreementswthat‘you{re talking about here. You
don't have any.rentél or lease,agreéments with either of
their names on it, db yoﬁ?:

A. No, I'don't ﬁave the.rentai-agreement.

Q. So, in'fact; the person who rented or was leasing

this trailer - was Mr. Drummond, isn't that correct?

A, I believe so, yes.

Q. Mr. Dfummond actually is a State witness, isn't”
he? |

A. “Yés;

Q. Again, I want to make sure the jury understands
this, when the solicitbr a moment ago talked about in the
opening talking about Mr. Burnside or Mr. Shumate owning

this property, they owned this property, that wasn't true,
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was it? Tﬁey don't own this property nor do they renf-or
lgaserthis_property, Lot 7, do they?. |
A. No. It's not necessarily in writing.
Q. So you have nothing in writing or from thé RMC or
'anyone they can say that either1Mr. Shumate or
Mr. Burnside either owned or leased this propertY}
correct?
A. I don't have a specific document, no.
ﬁR.‘ROBINSON: That's all I have, thank you.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION |
BY MS. BENTLEY: | |
Q. Did you do any‘invgs;igation info who made the
' sale of drugs’ on November 10, 20107 |
A. We tried to obtain a name or a nickname and the
informént didn't know the names Qf-anything. All he coulq
‘give was a vague'descriétion of a blaEk male suspect.
MS. BENTLEY: Thank you.
THE CbURT: Alright, step'down.
MS. BENTLEf: The Sfate.would call
THE CLERK: Please - come forward to be sworn
in. Place your left on.the Bible and raise your right.
| PATRICK SWIFT, having been duly sworn,
testified as follows: - -
Thank you. You can be seated. Would you

please state your name for the record.
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[ o R A o)

Q.

A.
Q.
County

A.

Q..

. THE WITNESS: Patrick Swift.
THE 'CLERK: Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. MCCALL:
Would you please tell the jury where you work?
I work at the Greenville County Sheriff's Office.
How long haQe»you worked there?
For approximately nine‘yea;s.'

And had you worked at any other law enforcement

agencies before the Sheriff's Office?

No, ma'am.

What's your current duty with the Greenvillé
Sheriff's Offiqe? |

I'm é.master duty with the directed patrol unit.

Can you tell the Court how long you worked for

the patrol unit?

A.

I worked for the.directed patrol unit for almost

four years now.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
eithex

A.

Are you also a member of the SWAT team?

I am. |

And how long have you. been a member?

Since '06 -- I'm sorry -- almost five years.
Have you received any special training with

of these units?

Yes.
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Q. What are you duties as officer of SWAT and

-directed patrol'qnit?

A. SWAT team we reSpond to several different types
of calls. It could be a high risk search warrant, 1t
could be a - hostage type call. It could be a manhunt type

situation or an armed subject or a barricaded subject.

‘With the directed patrol unit, our primary job ishabout 80

: percent narcotlcs and 20 percent gambllng and illegal

prostltutlon

hQ. How did you become involved in the 1nvest1gatlon
of Lot 7 at 120 Old Bleachtry Road°

A. Direct patrol unit we had -~ I believe we flrst
gct some crime sStopper tlpS saying there was illegal drug
activity that was going ‘ori in several of the trailers in
theAtrailer park. We were able to develop a couple of
Ci's which is confidential informants. They went inside,
made controlled purchases of narcotlcs from four dlfferent
trallers in thlS moblle home park Lot No. 7 was one of
them. ‘

Once we got the search warrant 51gned by a
judge, the SWAT team was called for extra. unit power and
because of the high risk nature of the search warrants.,

‘lQ. What  was your roll specifically on No;ember 177
A. I had two different rolls. My first roll was

being on the SWAT team. My team, I'm assistant team
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. W N

leader for tﬁe,SWAT team on one of the teams, and I was
assigned to conduct the initial clearing of Lot No. 7 and
after that was done I wae going to take off my~SWAT hat
and‘put on my BPU hat and assist in(the searching and all
the different“paperworkithat goes on with the search
warrant. 'And if“we found anybody inside of ﬁhe trailer,
to charge indictments. and that type of thing;

Q. On this State's Eihibit'l, the map, could you
step down and show exacfly where you departed your vehicle
and where you pulled up to enter the traller at Lot 7 and
what happened'J |

A. We were in a U- Haul truck andwe pulled up to
thlS 1ntersectlon right here. | When we got out of the
back,'we went 1n»between these twoutrailers. I'deployed a
noise distraction dev1ce which is what we call a flash
bang{ I deployed it at the back of this traller

Q. Can you tell the jury why you deployed this flash.
bank?
| A. We»were going to come in through-one"éide‘and we
wanted them distracted to the back side so that's when I
-- they make a very loud noise. I threw it at the back of
the trailer and we made entry in the frontleide. |

Q. ‘Cen you described exactly what happened when yod
and the SWAT team arrived at the fron; door of Lot 77

A. The door was initially it was barricade by a 2X4
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W N R

that had been placed over the door from the inside so it
took us approximately 30 seconds. The guy was trying to
breach the door it took him probably about 30 seconds to

get inside the door. He had to strike it numerous times

(

with the breaching ram and basically the door just kind of

‘came apart around the 2X4. We started coming into the

house ----
Q. Before you go any further, I'd like to have you
look at what's marked.State's 2, 3 and 4.

MR. ROBINSON: I would object on relevance,

‘Your Honor, ‘in this case.

, MS. MCCALL: This just shows the front
entrance of ‘the traller ang the barricade and what
happened.
THE COURT: Subject to objéction. Go ahead.
BY MS. MCCALL: |
. Q. If you would just take a look at: that Do you
recognlze what's depicted in these photos?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. How are you able to do that?

A. "How am I able to recognize them?
Q. Yes.
A. This is the door that we broke apart that‘we were

'trying to breach to get in the trailer.

0. Did you take those pictures.
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A. Yes.

Q. Are they fair and accurate reprééentations of the.
different aspects of the incident location back on
November 17th or 18th?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Have they been altered in any way?

A, 'No, ma'am.

‘ MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I'd move in State's
Exhibit 2, 3 and 4.
THE COURT: Subject to his objection, they're
in.. | ] , o
(Pﬁotographs marked as State's Exhibit Nos 2,
3 and 4 fbf identification were admittedvinto eviden;e.)
BY MS. MCCALL:

Q. Could you hold up the plcture and tell the jury

'what State's 2, 3 and 4 depict?

A. This is the outside view of the trailer. There's
a front porch that kind of went up and this is the screen‘
door on the front door of the trailer. ThlS is a photo of
the actual door of the trailer after we had to strike it 
numerous times with the breaching ram to.get it to fall
apart. And this is another picture of the same door?

Q. Does that picture show the 2X4°7?

A. I this is part of the door frame that came oﬁt

with the door.  It's got a lock on it so I think that's
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part of the door frame.
0. Getting back to the clearing of the house, where.

did you go first? How did y'all enter?‘

A. I guess I was third, maybe fourth inside the
trailerf The living room was being cleared and there was
another .1ittle small room off the.kitchen off to the right.
that was being cleared. I went left down the hallway and
there is a bathroom there and I came to that bathroom door
and encountered Mr. Shumate inside the bathroom He was
standlng over the t01let and  the t01let was runnlng. It
appeared to me that he had just flushed somethlng
a I grabbed him and :put- h1m on the ground and
handcuffed him without any f;rther 1nc1dent from him. At
that point I could hear deputies going- pass the bathroom
going down the hall. I ‘can hear they had encountered
somebody else and. g1v1ng them demands:in another room. I
never actually encountered him myself while clearing the
trailer.

I did do a brief protective pat down of
Mr. Shumate and then I brought him out31de the traller in
handcuffs and .he ‘was sitting out 1n a place where a deputy
could watch both the two people that had been found inside
the trailer. |

Q. How were you able to determine the identity of

Mr. Shumate?
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A. It might have been ID but I'm not sure.

Q. After you took Mr. Shumate outside, what did you
db next?

A, At that point'once'thé trailer was secured, I
took some photogfaﬁhs of the traiier before we started
searching. We also lettered the‘rooms in the different
trailer to help usAkeep track of what room was what and
then I tqokAphotographs of "the trailer(

0. ifm going to show you all at one time'Exhibits 5
through 26. | |

MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, I have an
objection; one, as‘to rgleﬁance to'these-pictures thaf
they havé,;and'thelsecond is 'the foundation. They'haven'f
set up a foundation as to the Exhibits 18, 15, 14, 13, 12,
11, 9 and 6. I would object as far as foundation.

'MS. MCCALL: .Your Hoénor, we are-about‘fo lay
the féundatiop of whé.took these pictures. |

'THE COURT: I think he's already testified
that he did take them. oOvérruled. Move on. “

BY MS. MCCALL:

Q.. I just want you to look through 5 through 26 and

I just want you to tell me how you recognize those -- S
through 25.
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Are you able to recognize them?
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A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And ?ow are you able to recognize them?
a, These'are'the photos from the trailér that I took
that hight when we served the'searéh warrant.
Q. Are these a fair and accurate representation of
different items found within the trailer?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. - And have they been altered in any way?
A. -No,'ma'am.
MS. M&CALL; Your Honor, I'd like to move
State's Exhibit Nos. 5 thiough 25 admitted ihto evidence.
. THE COURT:l They‘re’admitted; L o
(Photographs marked és State's Exhibit Nos. 5
through 25 for identification was admitted into evidence.)
‘ BY MS. MCCALL:
Q.- Could you tell the jury'whaf Exhibit 5 deﬁicts;
that picture? ‘
A, This is a bathroom of the trailer, that's the
toileﬁ. |
Q. 'Is there anything you‘can!séé in the bathroom on
the sink?
A. ACell phone, some Listerine.
Q. And did you go back to the bathroom after
securing the defendant, Shumate?

A. Yes, I did?
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Q. And what did you observe?
A. Particularly I was looking inside the toilet.

The toilet was running when I encountered Mr. Shumate the

first time. Just based on numerous search warrants that

I've done with the Sheriff's Office sometimes people try
to ---
~MR. ROBINSON: Objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 1I'1ll sustain that objection to

"the last comment. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: I went back to the bathroom to
see if there was anything.in there. When 1 went back to

the bathroom, I looked inside the toilet, there was a Uno

playing card, like you play Uno. It was floating in the

toilet inside the water. At the timé I didn't really
think that much of the Uno card until later in the search.
| BY MS. MCCALL:

Q.J I'd like to show you what's been marked-as
State’'s Exhibit 26. Could you tell the jury what that is?
A. This is a cell phone. | |
0. Did you find thaf'cell phone in the residence?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Ié that the one that's in the picture?

A. Yes, ma'am.

0. Once you found that cell phone, what did you do

with that cell phone?
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A. I éecured it. The photograph was taken after I

secured it and it was taken to the scribe for the warrant

which was.Debbie.Lanton.

Q. And after it was scribed, what did you do at that
time? ’> |

A. After it was scribed -- well, I took all of the
e&idence that was collected that night and took it down to
property and évidence. | :

Q- And is it in substantially the same condition' as
when you put it in property and evidence?

A, Afes, ma'am, C | \.

Q. And where 'has it been kept until today?

A. In property and evidence in the basement of the
Law Enforcement Center:- ‘

MS. MCCALL: Your Hohor, I'a like té move

State's Exhibit 26 into_eVidencé.

THE COURT: 1It's in evidence.

- {Cell phoﬂe marked as State's Exhibit No. 26

vfor identification was admitted into evidence.)

BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. Going to the search of'the residence, did any
other deputies hé;p you with the search of thé residence?
A. There were other deputies.
Q. Who was that?

A. Deputy Landrum was there; there were a couple of
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other deputies from vice and narcofiCs. Deputy Wells was
thére to help Deputy Landrum with the scribe.
Q. And when you searched the re31dence, can you ‘tell
us what the plan was to search this particular residence?
A. Whenever Qe do -a search warrant when we do it is

we try to keep track of what we find we will letter the

rooms up. Depending on how large the rooms is, there may

be two deputies assigned to a room.. There may be one

deputy assigned to a room depending on the size of the

room. We'll start searching the room. Once we get done

searching -- 1f we flnd anythlng durlng the search we'll -

;take photographs of it, where it is,. the best that we can

while it's in the place that we found it. Theh we'll take
it to the scribe for the warrant and'he'll give it to the’
scrlbe and let h1m wrlte it down in the search warrant,
where we found it, what room 1t was in, and who‘found it.
That's typically how we do it. ‘

Q. Tell the jﬁry just briefly whatravscribevis S0
they-understand that?

A. Scrihe is the person that logs into evidence on
the search warrant itself everyfhing that we find inside
the place to be searched. They sif down and they got the
actual piece of paper, the actual search warrant in front
of them. There is a return page on the,seafch warrant and

they scribe out everything that's found there in the .
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house.
. Q. Now, after you wenp‘in the bathropm( Qhen did‘you
staft back searchf |

A. Do you have.a copy of my supplement? Do you mind

if I refresh my memory with a copy of the suppleﬁent?

Thankquu. After the bathroom, I went to room A which was

the kitchen in this trailer. I stood in a chair and g§t ,
up on top of the kitchen counter which there was space on
top of therkitchen counter. I gof up on top of there and
found a tupperware container which contained two mqfe of
the Uno.playing qafﬁs kind of like the oﬁé I found ih the
Eathroom floating in the toiiet. |

On toé oé"tﬁese cards, I counted it out, it
was eight pieces of white rock like substance.
| Q. I’ m g01ng to show you what's been marked as
EXhlblt 6, does that plcture depict what you found on top

of the kitchen counter?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. This is State's Exhibit 27. .I'll show you what's

been marked as Exhibit 27, w1thout saying what. it 1s, do

you recognize what that is?

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. How do you recognize that?
A. It is the substance that was found on top of the

Uno playing cards in the photograph.
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Q. And based on your tralnlng and experience what
did these Uno cards appear to be used for?

MS. ROSS: I object. |

THE COURT: I'm sorry. I didn't hear the
question. H

MS. MCCALL: I asked based’pn his training
aqd ekperience_what did'these Uno cards appear to be used
for. .

 THE COURT: If he knows.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. It could be Uno
cards or at could be any kind of .surface that you can-
contain this type of substance in Also, sometimes,
they'll have a ‘surface like this where they can contain it
in an cut it at the same tlme.".It.s folded as to carry
that type of substance. o

BY MS. MQCALL;
Q. Thank 'you. And Exhibit 27; which I just brought

up to you, does it appear as it did back on February 18,

2010?

A.  It's older, but, yes, it's‘cut-up in the same
manner. One piece is blue, where.ia the picture it's net
blue. The reason. for that. is we have a fleld test kit to‘
field test for cocaine, cocaine base and when it turns
blue that let's us-know that we have probable cause to say-

that it's cocaine.
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Q. | While it was.in your possession other than field
testing it, did you alter,this:supstance in,any.wayé.

A. Nb, ma'am.' |

‘Q. What did yoﬁ dp with that substance after you -
field tested it? |

A. It was photographed and taken to Deputy Lanford,

vthe scribe.

Q. And then you ‘also took it back to property and
evidence? ‘ :
A, I also,fook.it.back4to,property and evidénce,
yes, ma'am. |
Q. Now, after searchi@g the kitchen, what was the
nexé'room that ydu Searchédé
S AL Réoﬁ B thch is}fhe'living réom and there was
$172.00 in US, Unitéd’StateS'currency.
‘ 0. 'In State's Exhibit No. 7, does that picture'
depictfwhat you found in Room B?
A. Yes, ﬁa'am, it was ground floor and that's where
if was collécted.
'Q.h After that liying.room, what was fhe hext room
that you searched?
A. I went on to Room C and that was a bedroom, I
found a black Andrbiq cell phone'that was on the floar
beside a bea in the room. It's photographs and taken to

the scribe.
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Q0. So this Exhibit 28 -- do you recognize Ekhibit
287
A. Yes, ma'am. That was the cell éhonezl found on
the floor in C.
0. And is that in‘substantially the same condition
as you fouhd it? »
‘A. + Yes, ma;am.
Q. After you got it, What.dia you do wi£h that cell
phone? ' - - |
A. ;-Thé-same thing, I took'if‘to‘peputy Lanford; the .
scribe for the warrantﬁrequeSted?‘ '
0. And where has that been Held until today?
‘A. Property and evidence.
MS. MCCALL: 'four Honér, I wouid mbvé Exhibiﬁ
28 into evidence.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. R0SS: No objection.
MR;.ROBINSON: No objection.
THE COURT: Without ébjectioﬁ, ‘it'i:s_ in
evidence.
(Cell phone marked as State's Exhibit No. 28
for identification was admitted into evidence.)
BY MS. MCCALL:
0. You find anyfhing else iﬁ this'bedroom?-‘

A. I did. I found a coat in this room. I searched
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the coat.

Q. Exhibit's 8 and 9, does that depict the coat that

you're talking about you found?
A. . Yes. |
Q. What does that depict?
" A. The black coat that was found in this room. I
searched the coat pockets and foupd this substance here,
white rock-like substaAce in a plastic bag.

Q. And this is Exhibit 29 do you recognize this as

the substance that was found in that coat?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Based on your training and experience, is it

typical to‘find when lboking through your clothes to find

any drugs?
A, Yes, ma'am.

MR. ROBINSON: Objection, Your Honor,

. foundation in this case.

THE COURT: Subject to your objection, go
ahéad.
MS. MCCALL: It was a very thorough seérch
and I was inquiring as to why --- |
THE COURT: I understand, go ahead.
BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. Does that Exhibit No. 29 appear to be altered in

any way?
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A. It doesn't loog the same as it did in the pictﬁre
because it's old, yes, ma'am.

Q. Did you field test that also.

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. What were the results of that field test?

A. . It was positive for cocaine and docaine.base;

Q. After finding that, the same}thing', you took it
to the scribe? |

hA. Yes, ma'ama'

Q. Where did you go next?

A.  Room D which is actually ﬁot a room, it's a
hallway in the trailerf

0. Does that depict thévhallway'and.howtyou found
it? B o

A. Yes, ma'am, it's the hallway as if.you were
looking at it from the living‘room.' It goes down the
hallway and there'§ a room down at the end of the hall.

Q. Okay. And do.you reéognize whaf's been depicted
in Exhibit 307

| A. Yes, ma'am.

0. And what is it?

A. It's a digital scale,'gray in color, and it was
found in the hallway of a small room in the hallway
itself. I think it was like a water heater in this small

room and there was a shelf in that room and digital scale
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was sitting on top of that shelf?
Q. And after you found the scale, took a picture,

what did you do with that?

A. Took it to beputy Lanford, he entered it into the
search warrant and then I.took it to property and
evidence. |

- Q. And does it appear to be altered in any way?

A, No, ma'am. |

Q. And it stayedlin property and évidence until
today?

~A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Now; based on your experience and traiﬁing, what -
do these digital scales appear to be used for? |

A, Tb weigh iliegal parcotics. . |

| MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, we ask that Exhibit
30 be admitted into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection? Without objection
it's in evidence. - |
(Scales marked as Sfatefs Exhibit No. 30
marked for identificatibn was admiftéd‘into evidénce.)
BY MS. MCCALL:

Q. I'd like tolshow you Exhibit No. 31 and ask you
if you recognize that? | '

A.  Yes, ma'am.

Q. Now, could you tell the jury where you found
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that?

A. Yes, ma'am. It was found in Room F which is the
last bedroom. This is a view to this other photograph
which shows hallway. You go. all the way down to the end
of that hallway and there's a bedropm there. It is alsq
where the other subject was found inside the house.

0. 12 and 13, do those pictufes depict (inaudible)?.

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. What did you ‘say Exﬁibit 31 was?

A. This ié ammunition, it's 7.76 ammunition for. an N
assault riffle. .

. Q. Now, doés it.appear.to be in the same condition
as ybu did when you placed it in P&E?
A. Yes, ma'am. |
MS. MCCA#L:A Your.Hoﬁor, I'd move that
Exhibit 31 be admitted.into evidence.
ThE COURT: Without objeciion.
(Bullets marked as State's Exhibit No. .31 for
identification was admitted into evidence.) |
BY MS. MCCALL:

Q. Just briefly since we've been referring to
property and evidence all the time, would you please
describe to the jury what property and evidence is?

A. Yes, ma'am. Property and evidence is where we

keep all the either property or evidence that we seize on
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the case. In this case, we had a lot of stuff to go down

.to property and evidence that night.

Generally the procedure is we fill out the

| paperwork saying what fime'we got it, where we got it from

l

and we put it in. There's a locker down at propérty and
evidence aﬁq’we can put all the evidence from one case
into omne specific'lécker and once we put it in there and
we hit the little lock button, the lock button is locked
and the oﬁly people. that can open it up from that point
are the people that work in‘property and evidence‘itself.
We cén't go back and try to‘open it up after we lock it.

VMS. MCCALL: This is State's Exhibits 34
through 38 that is marked for identification purposes.

: 'MR. ROEINSON: No objeétion for
identification purpoSes'oniy. ’ o ‘

| 'MS. MCCALL: 1I'd -like to mark'Exhibit Nos. 44
through 48.
(P&E forms marked as 'State's Exhibit Nos. 44
through 48 for identification.)
BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. Could you tell me what thbse are and do you
recognize those? ‘
A. Yes, ma‘am. . This is the paperwork that we

complete~ﬁheﬁ we put anything into property and evidence.

This is the actual paperwork from the night that we seized
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all this evidence that you have here in this case and when

it was placed in property and evidence. It has my name
down here. I put PW Swift down here and my signature. I
put locker I put it in. In this case it was No. 2 and put

the date -which is 11/18/2010 and the time which was.23:04
which is 11:04. That's how all of them are.filled out.
| Q. Now, are there itéms that you lég'into P&E that"
you did not find in the search that maybe some other
officer found?

A. Yes. ' : ' !

0. Why is that the case?

A. Simply because I wasn't the only one.séarching

the trailer that night. - There were other deputies that

were assisting in the seérc#. Once they found an item,
they would bring it to Depﬁfy Lanfb:d just like I did. He
would write it dan in the scribe. The paperwork is
filled out for it andHEnce all the evidence was compiled,
I took possession of all the»evidence and I-took it down
to P&E thaf night.

Q. Did you bring all the collectéd evidence‘today
from propefty and evidence?

A." Yes, we did. Yes.

Q. Now, you went over everything you found pﬁrsuant
to this search. Did you fina any drug paraphernalia that

would indicate drug use like crack pipes or rolling
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1l | papers?
2 A. No, ma'am, I didn't.
3 Q. After securing the evidence, did that conclude . .
4 | your investigation in this case?
5 A. After we secured it, like I said, I took it down
'6 to property and evidence, logged it in properly, and then
7] I completed a drug énalysis request to be done for all the
8 narcotiés that we seized for them to be actually tested in
9 | the lab by the fechnicians and then after that was
10 completedi-I put all that stuff in the box. Then I went.
11 | over to the jail where Deputy Walters was and we just kind
12 | of aésisted in some booking paperwork. “
13 | MS. MCCALL: No further questions. Would you |
14 Rlease answer any questions that counsel may haﬁe.;
15 THE COURT: Cross.
16 MS. ROSS: Thénk you, Your Honor.
17 CROSS~-EXAMINATION
18 BY MS. ROSS: |
19 Q. Deputy, let me just start‘with I seem to recall
20 | looking throuéh these pictures a number of lighters.
él Weren't there‘lighters throughout the tfailer sprueAabout?
22 A, I don't recall off the top of my head. Therelmay
23 haﬁe been.
24 | Q. So there may have been some lighters around that
25 | trailer?




66

10..

“11

12

13§

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24

25

83

Swift - Cross
A. I don't recall see any. I know we don't recall
taking any into evidence.
Q. And just -- I'm going back over some notes I.
wrote. On those scales, were there any fingerprints or

residue on the scales that were found up in the closet

cabinet?
A. I can't recall. I'm not sure.
Q. When you talked about -- you did something like

"this when you were talkingvabout fihding"Uno"cards in the~

I

cabinet so it was'up high? -

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q It wgén't outfjust one,the.counter top?

A. No. |

Q I think you testified that when you go through to

take these pictures, did you take a video .as well or did
anyone take a video camera in?

A; No, ma‘am.4

Q. So when you weﬁt th;ough-you-took'the pictures,
right? .

A. Right.

Q. Aﬁd this was after you‘had gotten the drugs and
you'd given them all to Officer Lanford, but you had
already turned over all the e&idence to be scribed at that
point when you fook the pictures, right?

A. No, originally, I took photographs before we
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'

‘started searching; And then as items were found, they

o

were photographs. - (
| Q. \Soiyou took photographs df anything relevant to
the case?- |
A. ‘Right,'just trying'to get the layout of the:

‘trailer.

Q. And that's to prove the case to the jury and

that's why you're taking these photogréphs. Now, where in’

those photographs is a picture of the Uno card floating in

1

the toilet?
. A, There wasn't. .
Q. And‘you'wefe with SWAT team at,thét point when
you went in? -

A: Yes,

Q. - And also theré was a canine team and vice and
narcoticsAand directed patrol also there?

A. Yeés, ma'qm.: ' |

0. Woﬁld you estimaté there were at least 20
officers serving‘those'fQur search warrants there at the
.same time?

A. On the 1low side; yes, ma'am.

. Q. And you said ﬁha; you came in and you shot off
sort of a blast -- géund blast and then on the front they
started'famming the door? i |

A. Right. We don't shoot it but we employ the NFDD
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on the backside of the house.
| Q. Is that kind of like fireworks, loud noise?

'A. You could‘equate'it like that. 1It's like a large
fire -- it doesn't shoot up in the air like a roman cannon
would but ---

Q. But it's loud enough to make .enough noise thatlin
a trailer you'd run to the back to try to figqre out what
it was. . | :

A. Right, you would trying to figure out  what it was
to, there's no doubt. o .
| Q. And after you did that someone is going'in with a
battering ram on the front? |

A;v fes, ma'am.

Q. And this is happening simultaneously, I §uess, at
the three other trailers as well? '

Af' Yes, ma'am.

Q. And this was coordinated betWeén SWAT and canine
and all these different officers Qere all out there. |
These are all at different trailersg Can you ﬁoint out
which trailers there were?

A. I'll do my best. I know the one that we did and'
I was responsible for is this one:here. This one was also
a part of the search warrant and I thinkffhis one was.

I'm not sure of the other ones. |

Q. But essentially four warrants were coming out at
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the same time?
A. That's correct. o . S L
0. This started -~ the search warrant came after the

CI went and made a purchase at 120 0ld Bleachtry.Ro;d,
right?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you'actually issued the $20 to that CI; is
that correct?

A. I did.

Q. ; Now, you wrote down the serial number on that

bill, right?

A. We took a photograph of the bill that has the
serial number on it.

Q. Would it surprise you that you noted that serial

number in your incident report?

A. No. Typically I'll do that.

. Q. And'thaf particular bill was 'not found in Lot 7
when y'all went in with the search warrant,.was it?

A. No, ma'am.

0. Now, you issued the $20, but you didn't see that

CI make a purchase from Lot 7, did you?

A. No, I'was working that night and the CI was also

-- no, I didn't.
Q. Okay, so you didn't see either of these two

gentlemen ---

3
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A. No,

Q. That night. ‘Now, just one thing, these were put
into evidence but there was no shotgun that was found at
the scene was there? |

A. No riffle.

Q. When you took Mr. Shumate into custody, you
patted him down and did a .full search, pulled his pants
down'and everything and no drugs were found on this

person, were they?

A. ! NO. N ‘ L ' - ’ ’ - \
0. And no cash or money found on this person?
A. No.

MS. Rosé:‘ I got ho further questioﬁsn

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson.

MR. ROBINSON: May it please the Court.
' BY MR. ROBINSON;’

Q. Deputy, let's.stgrt with the restrbomjfhat"s in
that picture. You said that Mr. Shumate was §tanding by
the toilet; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it appeared that the toilet had just béen
flushed; is that right? |

A. The water was running and the toilet.

Q. Now, you would agree with me that it's pretty

natural for human beings to flush the toilet after they
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use the restroom? Would you agree with tﬁat?
_A° Yes, sirf .
Q. Now, when you searched the toilet, you didn't
find any drugs in that toilet,.did you?
A. No, sir. |
Q. You play cards, officer?
A. Not typically, no.

Q. Isn't Uno a pretty common game for card players?.

It's a pretty popular game, isn't it?

A. (No response.)
Q. .You don't know? You've'never played Uno before.
A. I have played it.
Q. How many cards aré in a,Und-deck?
A, I havé no idea.

. Q. In your experience do a lot of people play Uno?
A. I don't hang~out with a lbt of people that play

Uno.

Q. You don't.

A. VNo.

Q. . Would it surprise you that Uno is one of the most
popular games in the United States to play? Would it
surprise you?

A. I don't guess it WOuld.

Q. Now, as far as Mr. Burnside goes, you've got a

bunch of pictures there. He was obviously found in the

7
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back of the trailer; is that right? He was,iﬁ the back of
the trailer; is that right? |

A. That's right.

Q. And you:would agree with me there were ﬁo drugs
found around or near Mr. Burnside; is that correct?

A. I didn't find any. |

Q.> And as far as any gun, I think that you testified
a moment égo on cross-examination regarding these bullets
that Weré found in this residence, these bullets belonged
to an assauit riffle, don't they? |

A. Yes, sir. J

Q. 'And'therehwas ﬁo assault rifflg ever founq either
around or on Mr. Burnside? |

A. No,.sir.

.Q. In fact Mr. Shumate also did not have that kind
of gun or riffle near him at all, did he?

A. There was no riffle in the house. There Qas a
gun in the house. '

Q. 'But the gun that you're talkihg about was not the
gun that belonged to these bullets; cofrect?

'A. No.

Q. And the gun that was found,'I believe, up inlthe
top of the -- in the kitchen of this trailer and not.fhe
back of the trailer, correct?

A, I'm not sure where the gun was found. I'm not
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sure.

’

Q. Now, the door that we're talking .about here, -

isn't it pretty common for doors to be closed in
residences? Isn't that pretty common? Places normally
have doors that are closed, don‘t'theY?.

A, Yeé, sir.» |

0. Now, in terms of --'I believe that the solicitor
may have eluded to this, the‘money that was found in this
hoﬁe, this trailer, you don't know who that belongs to, ‘do
you? 1 |

A, ‘ﬁo, it was thrown on the floor.

Q. Now, isn't it pretty common for people to carry.

cash with them? ‘Ish't that pretty common for people to

carry cash?
| A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have realiy no idea as far as where this
money came from and who it belonged'to, do- you?

A. No, 'sir.

0. Now, as far aé the scales in this case that
you're talking about, I believe the scales ﬁere not fouﬂd
near either Mr. Burnside nor Mr. Shumate, were they?

A The scales were found in the closet. Neither one

'of them were found in the small room where the scales

were.

Q. So neither of them either had dominion and

/3
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control or found near these scales, correct?

A. No, they Qere not found near the scale.

Q. And I think you testified a few moments ago
either on cross—examinafion or direct examinafion that
your CI or the CI that was involved in this case never
purchaséd any drugs from either Mr. Burnsiqe or
Mr. Shumate; isn't that correct?

{ ‘A. -I'm not sufe. TheyAveiy well could have
purchased it from them, but I didn't know who fhey were af
the time that they purchased them. .

0. And you mentioned a coat a few minutes ago. You

don't know who that coat belonged to you, do you?

A. - No, sir. It was'found in the closet in the
trailer.
Q. And neither Mr. Shumate or Mr. Burnside were near

the coat, were they?

A. They were not in the room -- neither one of them

were found in the room where the coat was located.

Q. Okay. And, also, no drugs or paraphernalia were
founa near Mr. Burnside or Mr. Shuméte, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And as far as this door goes, you got some
pictures in a couple of the exhibits that indicate the
door was busted in but you didn't find anything to

indicate that the door was barricaded, did you?
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A. Yes, sir;, it was barricaded.
0. How so?-
'A.. There was a 2X4 that was across the door. There

waé a4 door thét opened in and a screen door that opened

out and there was a 2X4 across that door. Typically a-

door won't last more than one or two hits on a breaching

ram and it took us probably 30 seconds to get inside this

trailer. o . »

A.;Q. .You didn't never check to see whether or not the
locﬁ'to thié.door‘wés broken, did you?
A. - Yes, it waé bfoken,
Q. So it was*broken?

A. Uh—hum.{

Q. ' So it wouldn't be unusual for a stick or a 2X4 to

be placed in that door as a locking mechanism?

A. The lock was broken after we broke thé door down.
Q. So ydu have no information to present to this
jury that the door was no broken before you decided to

bust in, correct?

A. Yes, sir. I have no information of the condition .

of the lock before the search warrant or after the search
warfant.

Q. And you would agree with me that it's not
unc0mﬁon if a door doesn't lock that 2X4 put across it

just to secure it and make sure it closes? You would
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agree with me, wouldn't you?
A. Repeat that.
Q. - You don't know whether the lock was broken.
Let's assume it was a broken lock. It would not be
unusual for, someone to have the - the owner or whoever

ownéd the property to have a 2X4 putgécrbss it‘just to -
make sure the door closes. That would not -be usual, Qould
it.

a. I don't know. -I would have my door fixed if the
lock were broken. | | |

0. - Whén you say barricadedK you ﬁave‘no information
you can present to this jury that.thiswdoor‘waé,éqtﬁally‘
barricaded, do you?

A, No, it was barricaded with a 2X4. That's not

| common because usually doors are secured by a lock and not

a 2X4 inside Qf a door. That's what'ﬁé call-a barricaded
ddor and the reaSoh -— a lot of times the réason~it's done
that way is to make it harder for us'toﬁget'inside of thef
house.
Q. 4.But you don't know whether if was barricaded or
not. You think it was barricaded --- .
MS. MCCALL: Your-Honor.
THE'COURT: That's been asked and answered. -
MR. ROBINSON: I have no further questions.

MS. MCCALL: I just have a couple of
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questions.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MCCALL:

Q. Was the door té the bathroom open when you
entered the residence;‘dd you ;emembe:é

A. Yes.

Q;I .And when. you encountered Mr. .Shumate, were his
pants up? |

A. Yes.

Q. . So it did not appear that he was using the

restroom:
A. No.
0. And about how many searches have you conducted

with a search warrant?

., A. Five hundred -- a lot." I've done a lot of search
warrants.
Q. And have you encountered a 2X4? Is that common

to see that?
A. Yes, we've encountered that several times.
MS. MCCALL: Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you. Step down.
(Witness leaves the witness stand.)
Counsel, approach.
(Whereupon, there was a bench conference.)

Ladies and genﬁlemen, I have some matters I

[
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need to take up that doesn't involve you. Insofar>as

| you're concerned, we'll suspend at this time for lunch and

pick back up with after lunch. Please remember the order
that I read from Chief Justice Toal and I'll ask that you
please keep your badges on during the lunch recess. I ask.

that you do that so that everyohe'involved'with this'caée

t

'will no that you're a juror and that it would be improper

for tﬁem to.discuss‘of'taik about this“case"in yoﬁr
presence so¢pleaSe keep §our badges on. ;

I'd ask you to be back in your jury room at
2:00 p.m. &hank you. ) |
| fake the jur? out..

XWhereupdn, the-jury,was~dismisséd for
lunch.) |

See everyone back at 2:60.

MS. ROSS: Can Mr. Burnside remain out ‘on
bond for lunch? | |

THE COURT: No, he's in the custody of the
sheriff.

. (Court feturns‘to session after lunch.)

THE BAILIFF: ‘All rise, court is now in
session.

THE CQURT: Please be seated. Anything
before I bring the jury back. /

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, may Deputy Swift be
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excused?
| .THE COURT: "Any objection?

MR. ROBINSON: No objection.

MS. RQSS: No objection. Your Honor, one
thing thap,i‘had noticed diring Investigator Walters's
testimony. He talked abbutAgetting a statement from the
CI. 1 was never provided'a.etatement and neither was
Mr. Rebineon in dieeovery from CI. I wquld be asked that
we be ellowed to review that' statement.

,MS' BENTLEY: The State‘would oniy reply that
Was'hoﬁcharged made inlthe CI buy and therefore the’
statement'of the Cifis irreievant.

MS. ROSS: 1In the prior motion to suppress

. Wt . . L
based on‘the search warrant, the search warrant was

cohpletelyfbesed on the word of theACi. There was nothing

about the CI being reliable and if in fact there is
anything ‘in that statement based on the CI's reliability
or the search being anywhere besides Lot 7,.120 Bleachtry

Réad}lit certainly would be relevant to the basis of this

entire search warrant and goes to our case.

THE COURT: Can you redact the name and 1l&t .

her read it?
MS. BENTLEY: Yes, sir, I can do that.
THE COURT: You do that. You have a copy.

MS. BENTLEY: I have a copy with the CI's
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name on it.

THE COURT: . Well, can 'you just run it
ﬁhrsugﬁ?

MS. BENTLEY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Then you can make a copy snd give
it to her.

MS. ROSS: Judge, this is my only copy but I
would hand it up to be a State'stExhibit;‘ I would boint
out and get you a copy of the search warrant as well, but
just'briefly reading through it, and .this is the first
time I've .had a chance to look at it, this states tharjrhe
CI went and knocked on the door of‘thé-first trailer on
tﬁelleft ' He knocked on the door and I told him needed
$20 and he handed me crack rocks, I told him thanks and Ib
got in the vehicle and he drove me to a securéd area, thisj
is the second trailer he went to but it says on the left
which is not what was written for the trailer in the.
search warrant.- |

Again, I just looked at it so Ifrl hsnd up’
the search wérrant for review as‘well,”bu; in the search
warrant, the CI, the description of the premises to.be
searched is the second mobile home on the right.

THE COURT: I'l1l make this a part of the
record.for purposes of appea;. I'm not going any further

with it.
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MS. BENTLEY: Do you not want argument from

| the State, Your Honor?

THE COURT: . Bring the.jury;4

MS. ROSS: Your Honor, I would just renew my
motion about the search warrént; He¥e the 'search warrant
was based on the information provided to the CI and if
that information was a different trailér:in that trailer
park, this is an absence in the search warrant in such
that it would require‘it fo be suppressed especially -- I
don't have the case right in front of me ——'but Victor A
Miséouri is the defendant in that EaSe and if information
isiknown to the officér is not presentéd to the judgg that

gives the warrant and is, in faét, omitted and

misinformation is given to that magistrate than the search

warrant must be suppressed.’ So I renew my motion to
éuppresseduthatd, |

THE COURT: Solicitor.

MS. BENTLEY&"Your anor,'I would comment
that pursuaht to what the statement says and what Deputy.
Walters tesfified, they.fifst went to the second trailer
on the left wﬁen coming off of Edwards Street. He was
turned down by the occupant of that trailer pursuant to
what Deputy Walter says. He then says that Investigator
Woodall moved the vehicle, it does not describe where thé‘

vehicle was moved to, he went to the first trailer on the
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left. This trailer is iﬁ the middle of the complex and as
Deputy‘Walters poinfed out, this trailer is in the middle'
of complex. If is identified with specificity.
. THE COURT: Alright. Bring the jury..
.(Jury,reFeﬁtefs thé courtroom.)
(Witness sfatgment énd search warrant marked
as Court Exhibit Noé._i and 2 for identification.)
Alrigh£, solicitor,'you>may proceed.
MS. BENTLEY: The State calls Master Deputy
Bréndon.Brdwn. ' , ' .4. ‘e |
THE'CLERK:",Piease comé‘forward4£0”be sworn
in. . | . .‘
BRANDON BROWN, ﬁaviné Eeen duly sworn,
testified as foliows: h . |
Thank you. You may be seafed.
Please statehyéur name for'the'record,‘
THEAWITNESS: Brandon Brown.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. BENTLEY: :
Q. Do you prefer investigator .or master deputy?
A, Any way is fine.
Q. Where are you employed?
A. I am currently employed witﬁ the Greenville
County Sheriff's Office éssignéd to vice and narcotics and

task force.
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Q. How. long have you worked for the Sheriff's
Office?. . o o L

A. Right at 10 years.

Q. What positions have you held in the Sheriff's
Office duiiﬁg-that 10 years?

A. When anyone get's in law enforcement, you étart

out in uniform patrol. I was in uniforﬁ patrol for about
three years and went to work in gang investigation about
eight yedrs ago. Gangs was moved inside of'ﬁarcotics
which I'Vé been at right at four years now.

Q. In vice anq narcotics,}was there a specialty that
you have .in vice and narcotics or is everybody just -
working for the same? |

A. My'special within vice and narcotics, as I said,
w&é gang investigation "at the federal level which I am |
assigned to the FBI téSk‘force.

Q. What kind of training do you have in drug
ideﬂtification? |

A. I've been qﬁalified previously in the Thirteen
Ciréuit'Court‘in 11 different categories of expert
gqualifications bétween the gangs and narcotics;
identification oh cocaine and crack coéaine, heroine,
methamphetamine, as well as our basic quélifications and
training that we get throqghout the year; our regular

updates that weé get on a lot of cases that are daily as
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well as the street interviews that we ao on a,regﬁlar
basis with aﬁything from a dealer to an average casual
user to an addict.

Q. Have you worked in an undercover capacity"before?

A. Yes, ma'am. |

Q. How many times have you worked in an undercover
capacity aé an investigator?

A. .. No less thén 20 times.

Q. ..In~what types of activities do you participéte in
when you're”unde¥cover? u

A, In the,gnderco&er'capacity it's basically from
basic intelligencé to purchasé of various‘diffeient kinds
of narcotics to purchasing of firearms as well as dealing
with various different gang asﬁects while undercover.

0. .Can YOuldeécribe any-specific.training or.

experience you might have been giving in the field. of

narcotic sales?.

A. In narcotic sales?  Like I say we dealAwith
varying and a wide range of classes we attend as well aé
annual certifications primaiiiy such as methamphetamine
tech which is something we have to maiﬁtain_én annualv
certification to be ab;e to break down meth labs as.well
as any kind of updates that cdme out of the federal
government and in a lot of cases that come across the

border because a lot of stuff is going on in our bordering
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states.
Q.. Do you continuously take classes and read -
literature on drugs and narcotics?
A. Yes, ma'am. Pretty much on a daily basis some -

kind of update is going on and thingSfthat we have to do

to maintain‘our knowledge of everything that's going on in-

the streets.

Q. .Would you consider your experiences undercover as

additional forms of education?

A. Yes, ma'am, absolutely.

Q. - How many‘drug investigations have yoﬁ been a part -

of in\yodr eight years of vice‘and'narcotins?_
about 320 search warrants ‘Each search warrant you‘can
add in between five and ten purchases of narcotlcs so it's
well in the thousands as to how many cases I've been
involved in, in my time in narcotics.

Q.- Havelyou éver taught other law énfnrcement
officers about narcotics to gain experiences?

A. Yes, ma'am. On a quite regular basis I déf
teaching on narcotics and gangs no only th:oughout-the
county but throﬁghouﬁ.the state and the country.

Q. And you mentioned préviously that you've Béen
qualifiéd as an expert in this circuit? |

A. ‘Yes, ma'am, I have.

A. In'my time of narcotics, I conducted no less than
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Q. How many times?

A." I've got a total of 11 different qualificatiﬁns"
totally and most of those qualifications are two and three
times withiﬁ the same court.

Q. When3was the iast time you were qualified as an'
expert? o - - ’ S

A. Yééterday.

' MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, at this time, the
State would:offer Brandon B;own as an expert-in‘gﬁreet
ievel narcoticfsales and gang .recognition. ”
~ THE COURT: Any voir dire as to his expertise
in‘that are;? ' | |
VOIR DIRE
 BY MS. ROSS:

Q. Well, .as far as narcotics, are you a scientist?

In other words; do ‘you do any -kind of scientific tests on -

things to determine whether they are narcotics or not?
A. Other than field test kits, no.

Q. So you're not a chemical analyzer or anything

‘like that?

A. No, ma'am, I am not.

Q. And as far as the experience that you've gleamed

- in your years working in law enforcement and on the

streets, this is common sense things, common sense

observations that you're making?
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A. " I'm not sure what you're agkiﬁg.

Q. Are there any kind of,scieﬁtific observations.

A. Not scientific, no.

0. Any kind of training as far as using a dog in any
kind 6f‘search'§kills or scientific training or that sort?

A. 'I'm not a K9 handler, no, ma'am.

MS. ROSS: I got no furthér.queétioﬁs on

that. N o

. MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor,’i have an issue
that I wéﬁld'iike to take up outside of the‘jury;*'

. ThE COURT: Take the jury out, please.

(3uny exits the courtroom.)

v

Mr. Robinson.

MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, as far as his

qualificafions»; think they set the (inaudible) ‘as far as:

an expert in investigation of drug crimes. I have no

problem with that, but I think the nesxt analysis I would

make as far.as the prejudice to my client if hé's going to

start‘testifyingrthat this particular case is indication

i3

tﬁat‘this-is some kind of‘drug operation that's going

‘down. That's what I am concerned about béqause they

testified already that either of these folks in this
trailer did not have any kind of rental agreement or lease

agreement. It's a purely circumstantial mere presence

case and if this officer gets up and testifies that as far
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as this doér.allegedly being barricaded ehd these guys
doing a drug operation I think is extremely prejudidial to
these clients.

THE COURT: Alright.

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, Investigator Brown
was present ;he day‘—— he was part of this investigation
so we would offer his testimony as his personal experience
inside this‘trailer and as an expert in sfieet level |
narcotic_salgs. vaﬁou would like_me‘totpropher some of
his testimony --- ‘

TﬁE COﬁRT: ‘No. You understand that;

Mr. Robinson? ‘ . |
MR. ROBINSON: I understand that. She's
quélified_as:an expert inAthis‘case‘as far as that goes.
I think éheﬂs.going to ask about what he éaﬁlin the
trailer and ;‘was just wbndéring if she's going'to get

some sort of conclusion from him that because they were in ,

‘this trailer they'were involved in a drug opération.

MS. BENTLEY: I would be asking him regarding
the~eviden¢e, the trailer, and his personal experience and
the hundreds of thousands of search warrants that he's

been a part of whether this trailer does appear to be a

drug house.

THE COURT: That's proper.

MS. ROBINSON: The objection as I stated the
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prejudicial value far outweighs any sort of‘probétive
value. B

THE COURT: I disagree with that.

MS. ROSS: Judge, just on that I will add
that this-officer's name is no where is.discovery. The CI
statement ‘that I put in and made an exhibit is né where in
the discovery that I receivéd. | |

As far as testimony by experts, well, I
understand that therg*s recently greater leniency as to
what makes an expert in law enforceﬁent.ﬁ On 702 it's
scientific, technical orlspecialized knowledge to aésist
the tryer of fact( that's the basis for an expért opinion.
Here there are plenty of pblice officers who can give an
opinion --- I misstated. Mr. Robinson has a piece of
testimony that was signed Investigator Brown 'so I'm wrong
on the discovery at least for him, but I would'again
object to him tesfifying as an expert. Whilefif he wants
to give testimony about what he saw,.thatfé éertainly
proper.

THE COURT: }Subject toAyouf objectiog, he'su
qualified. |

MS. BENTLEY: He may testify regarding his
opiqion as an expert.

THE COURT: Yes. Bring the jury.

(Jury re-enters the courtroom.)
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BY MS. BENTLEY:
Q. Investigator Brown, you were just qualified as an

expert in street level crimes and drug recognition,

correct?

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Please tell us, as an investigator, did you
become involved with the search warrant execution at Lot

7, 0ld Bleachtry Road in November 2010?

A. Yes, ma'am, I did.
Q. Tell us how ;you became involved in that
investigation?

A. I am an entry operatdr on a SWAT team. and the
SWAT team ﬁas‘agked to assist in the execution of a couple

of the trailers-qu:ihg the search warrant.

Q. And you'were assigned to Lot 77
A. Yes, majam, I was.
Q. Please tell us at what point or how you entered

the tréiler? ‘

A. When we first approached,‘Master'Deputy Swift
deployed what's célled a'flash bang‘or a- flash distraction
device and it was deployed on the side of the trailer to |
where we could make. a safe enough approach to the front
door. When we made the front door, my primary

responsibility was to maintain the cover of our breacher,

the individual who was responsible for the big rounds that
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you See on tv ahd‘everything. He then proceeded to.

attempt to breach the door. After three hit, the dbor was.

not opening which is extremely rare for our breacher;
however, the door‘would not open but a panel fell .out of

the door. I theh removed the breacher from the area

-because it becomes extremely dangerous whenever someone is

‘bahgihgtoutside'of the~house ‘There is also- a p0381b111ty~

of flre or somethlng of that nature comlng from w1th1n.

1

I removed the breacher from the area that I.

waS»covering, got to where I could v1sually see inside the

traller and actually p01nt my weapon 1n31de the traller

and actually point my weapon ‘inside the«tra;ler to ver;ff‘

that it was safe enough for our breacher to oontinue to

try to open the door.

Q: How long dld it take h1m to breach that door, do

fou recall?

A AéfI'explained, it probably happened over about
30 seconds 0F so. At 30vseconds, that's a time frame that
you don't know' if someone is g01ng to shoot back at you

and that seems llke an eternlty standing on the front

‘porch of the door.

Q. :The Breacher did eventually make it 'through the
residence, is that correct? ‘ : '
AL Yes, ma'am, he did.

,, Q.. Please tell me where you went?
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A. As soon as' I went in, I moved right to left
clearing -- as soon .as I went into the trailer immediately
I’ could visualize the kitchen area to my right. It was-an

extremely. open area so it was real. easy for me to clear
it. As I moved from right to left‘just inside the right
of the trailer, othef menbers of our team inclﬁ&ing Master
Déput& Swift anq Investigator Airé; cleared téwa;ds td .
féapyof the residence which is where the bedroom éfé; was.
lQ; Who wés'in the bédroom area?: |

A It was later found to bé Andrew Burhside:'-

0. And is Mr. Burh§iéé}in-the courtroom fdday?>

A ;,Xés; ma'ém, he is.

‘Q.ii‘Whé;e‘iS‘he seated?

A. Sitting rightathere.
Q. TWhere was Mr. Burnsiderheﬁ you entered that back
bedrqom?. ‘ " o

‘? A. As I began my approach down the.rear bf the hal};
we got a code that'we‘use.simply "man-up, " which<bas}célLy“n
meané that one of the’operatoré inéide the.hgﬁse need, |
édditionél‘manpower to help‘them assist with whatever_tésk
it may be. In this case it ended up beiﬁg thét
Investigator Aires could visually see what later was
identifiéd as Andrew Burnside, however, coﬁld not gaiﬁ
control of him due to him being partially under the bed. 

That's when I moved into the back bedroom area assisted
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Investlgator Alres with handcufflng and maklng sure that
Andrew Burnside was safe as well as all operators Ainside-
of the house was safe.

Q. Did you pat down Mr. Burnside?

A. Yes, ma'am, i did.

Q. Was enYthing found on his person?

A. LtdOn't recall that there was. I know later on
we ended up finding an identification with his name on it,
but I can't recall whether 1t was on his person or just
s1tt1ng close to him.

Q. ,Did'YQu péfticipate-in the physical search of the

residence -- of the dwelling? -
" A, No; ma'am, I did not.
Q. -Are you familiar with what was found pursuant to

the search?

A. Approximate weights, yes, ma'am.

0. Do you know the approximate Quantity of crack
cocaine that was found in totai'in‘Lot 77

-A. Aoproximate weights of crack cocaine found was
around 18.grams. |

Q. Do you know the approximaté'weight of cocaine’
powder that was”found?

A. It was right around three grams.

Q. And were there any other drugs found at ‘the home?

A, There were various prescription type pills found
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W

) throughoﬁt the house. I couldn't give you a gédd account

of how many of them thoﬁgh.

Q. Could you pleaée tell me the street Qalﬁé of one
gram of crack cocaine?
| A. One gram we average out based on various
undercover operations as well as bur day to dd§ dealings
in narcotics to. estimate.right around $100 per gram in the
Greénville County area. ‘

Q. And what about cocgine‘ﬁowdet, what's the
apProXimate value of one gram of £hat on the street?

A. .Tybically right,aroﬁhd«the saﬁe,fhihgﬁﬁ

Q. And what about assorted prescriptidh pills, for
example, a'hydrocodone?' ' o

'A. Hydrocodones range depending on the amounflof
gquantities being purcpased anywhere_from $6 to $8 a pill.

Q.‘ What about alpfazol;m? |

A. I couldn't tell you. |

Q. Are you familiar with the amount of crack or

cocainevthét's typicallyisold in one transaction? |

A. Yes, ma'am. 1It's easier to describe it to you or
kind of explain to you the.process of how that}s actually
formed to give the gravity of what each weight is.

Q. Okay. | |

A. When cocaine is cooked into crack cocaine, which

is by far one of the more addictive drugs in the Upstate

.
ke -
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area, it is cooked down typically in ounce type of

quantity.weight, 28 grams. 28 grams of cocaine is then :

| cooked in a very very simple process and made into crack

cocaine. When it is made, it is typically cooked in a

Pyrex dish~whiéh is used in most cooking- type

applications. Because most Pyrex dishes are round ‘in the -

base of them, once it's cooked the finished'product is
called é édbkie simélf because it looks like;ah off-white
color light brownish coockie in the bottom gf the jar.

| | Tﬂat is then cut into tenth of a gram rocks

and anywhere between tenth of a gram to twentieth of. a

gram is. typically:what sold on the street as what you've

‘heard commonly .as crack rock as you've heard in the movies

and everywhere else.

. 'Q. What's the average value 6f tenth of a gram or a

‘rock of:crack?

- A.. A craék rock e?er since ‘the 80s when it waslfirst
introduced has been $20. It has not changgd br varied at
allg It Has sfayed the same continuously. ’

Q. 'dkay.‘ When'you entered ‘the trailer and you were

sweeping throﬁgh, did you make observations reéarding the

contents?
A. Not asxmuch as sweeping through as much as when
we were ex—spilling out of the trailer. We always do what

we call-secondary searchés which is just to make sure .
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-there are nodothef individuals hiding throughout the
residents. When we first make entry, we kind of look for
cur immediate threats in front of us. Afterwards we look

in closets, cabinets and so forth juet-to make sure there

isn't anybody thaﬁ's hiding that could pose a possible
risk to law enforcement.

, "Duringﬂthcse observations, we always notice
the living arrangements, what kind of clothing‘fodd'andf
stuff that's in there to let. us know if. thls is actually a
llveable re51dence or if it's a house that's just used for
other type of act1v1ty. »

Q. 'Based on your training and experience and your
observatlons on November 18th, dld you form an oplnlon odA
what Ldt 7 was used fer?

A. IhSide the residence, there was furniture, some
clothing, small food items, so on and so forth, but-the,
pfiﬁarynthing;that really came to our'attentidh'was this
door beidg barricadedlsignifies that someone hae something
to protect inside. ‘That's not typically something that's:
done sy anyone. That saYs,to us that trailer is used
primarily for the distribution of ﬁarcoties.

Q. In your training and experience, is it common for
people that‘deal in narcotice to have a dwelling that they
doinot necessarily live in?

A. Absolutely. There is people.that deal, whether
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it's on the street level or high level, do not deal out of

their own residences They distance 'themselves as much ‘as

they can from their actual business, from thelr llves, if
you will.

0. Why is that?

A. Typically-because a lot of people get the
impression that law enforcement can take anything that's
attached to narcotics‘and it simply doesn't work that way;
however, we try to do that with vehlcles and some property
whenever we can show that they own it. But if they don t
own it, 31mply renting it, that's klndtof the perception
on the street<and that's why that's done'that way

-Q. You mentloned earller that turning cocaine powder
into crach cocaine 'is not a dlfflcult process.

A. No, ma'am, it's not.

, .Q. What are some of the advantages to cooking'your
own crack?

A. ' Typically it's a more aﬁdictive,drug than what

cocaine is and it involves a whole different clientele.

Typically your crack cocaine will sell quicker as to where

you can break it down into tenth and twentieth gram'rocks
and sell it literally quicker than you can make it. It

just goes that gquick on the streets because it's sueh an

addictive drug. Cocaine, itself, is not as an addictive

drug. ‘It's not as street savvy of a drug: It's not,.you
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3

know, everybody on the street wants to get their hands on.

Q. I'm going to,show y@u what's been aﬁmitted as
State’élExhibit 6 and 14. Coulq you look ét thosé for me?

A. State's Exhibit 6 looks to be like -- No. 5 and
No.16j'white rock like substance sitting on the hood of
the car. | »

Q.° And based on‘your tréining-and experience, are
those ahy conclusions you can make based on the size or
the quantities of those wﬁipe rock lock substances?

A, - That's extremely common size of what’you might
get out of what I jusf describéd,to be as a é;ack-rock;,

however, just looking at it I can't make that .judgment of

‘what- it is. By size and appearance, that's what it

appears to be.

0.  And what about'ih.the next exhibit?

AhhvState}sAExhibit’lAlappeprs to be plastic hotel .
key card thaf's used for entering a hotel room with the
same type of rock that was found on the Uno cards, dlso
sitting beside it is a cellophane wrapper possibly from a
cigarette pack sitting beside it with a razor blade
si£ting beside it which is commonly used in the éutting df
crack cocaine. |

Q. Are weapons typically found in these drug houses

‘that you'spoke of?

A. I can't say typically but on a lot of occasions,
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yes, they are. They have product that theyneed to
| protect and it is a dangerous world from both law - -
enforcement making entries in their house as well as other

dealers or robbers making entries into their drug houses.

So, yes, on a lot of occasions they are found in the

residences.

Q. Looking at State's 16 and 17, can you tell me *

what you see in there?

A. State s Exhibit 17 looks to be a cablnet,

“probably a kltchen, and it looks to be pos31bly some;

prescrlptlon type pills 1n plastic sandw1¢h bag.

Q. The next exhibit as well, |

A. The next exhibit is 16 appeara to be the same
thlng, possibly tupperware with some change in 1t with '

p0351b1y some unknown prescrlptlon type plllS in a

'sandw1ch bag There are some more unknown prescrlption

type pills in a sandw1ch bag not .in a prescrlptlon pill

bottle. They're separated in a sandwich bag?

- Q. Based on your training and experienCe, what is '

the presence of assorted pills and baggieé'indicate?

A, Again, typically, ready for sale. -

Q. 'Tell me about your training and experience with
iy

surveillance equipment on street level narcotic sales?

A..- As far as our end?

i

Q. Is it common to find those in these drug houses? |-
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A. Oh, yeah, absoluteiy.‘ it's to where and‘I would
say within the past two years probably almost every house
that we'get a search warrant on has some kind of detection
equipmeht in it. We're finding anything from small 17

inch box tv's up to 55 inch. flat screen tv's that has

nething but the pictures of their cameras there

.surroundlng their house and that's not a common thlng for

the general publlc to be that paran01d as- to who is: comlng

around their house.

0. Lodking-at‘State's Exhibits 24 and 25, is that

--equipment typical to what you expect to find?

A. State'’ s Exhlblt 24 shows Just that a surveillance
camera 51tt19g, I.belleve, it's the front door pointing.
down at the étair'step section. And State's Exhibit 25 is

showing an actual bex'style tv that has‘the cameras anq

'monitors on it.

Q. One last questlon Investlgator Brown, in'these

drug houses, do street level narcotic dealers typlcally

<leave their drugs unattended.

A. As far as different parts of the house?

0. Would they allow someone to purchase drugs and

( remain in the residence. unattended?

A. Typically‘not. Whenever there's a street level
transaction it is the user will come in purchase what they

want and immediately leave. There's typically not a whole
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lot of hanging around time or anything like that. The

‘dealer wants to be able to have as little time with these

individuals as they can. Again for paranoia which is fhé
same reason .they put them in a separate part of the house,
much as the same reason they put éﬁrveillance cameraé
throughout the residenée..
0. At fhe end of they déy, do they fypically leave
thousands of dollars of drugs behind?
A. No, ma'am} they do not. |
* | MS. BENTLEY: I have nowartherrquestions.
Pléase answer any questions either attorney may have.
THE COURT: Ms. Ross or Mr. Robinson.
MS. ROSS: I have no,éuestions.‘
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ROBINSON:

Q. Officer Brown, when you went into this residence,

this home, it's a trailer; isn't that correét?

A. Yes, sir, it is.

Q. And when you first went in, could you explain to
the jury there's a living room on yo;r right; isn't that
correct?

A. If I recall correctly, when I first made. entry,
thefe was a kitchen immediately’to my right.

Q. Okay.

A. And you almost came directly into the living

101



102

10 |

11
12
13
14

15

16 |

" 17

18
19

20

21

22

23

24 |

25|

119

Brown - Cross

room.
Q. And is it a double*wide or a single.wide trailer? .
A. I believe it. was a single wide.
}Q. And length wise, it's probably around eight feét
or so, just typical? o '
A. I coulanft be_acéufate about .size.

Q. You actually went in with the other officers td

'secure the area and look at -the scene, correct? You went

in the trailer, correct?

'A; ,nCorreéfQ I wég én the entry'féam,

0. And when you went in the trailer, Mr. Burnside.
was in’the back of the tréiler, righté

A. -Yes,.sir,lhe,was.; , .." _— S

Q. The fqom that he was inn there were"no drugs or
anything found in his room,: were there?
| A, "I don'tvrecail.

Q. Now, dia‘you do aﬁy -- you didn't do any-

backgrounﬁ to find out whether this property was owned by

' either Mr. Burnside or'Mr.‘Shumatqr did you?

A. Me, personally, no, sir.

Q. So you have no actual that this actual drug
house, as you call it, was. owned by these folkg,_dd you?

A. Not personally, no, sir.

Q. In terms of these different items that were found

in the location, you don't have anything that ties these
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items to either Mr. Burnside or Mr. Shumate, do you?
A. Not personally, no, sir.

Q. They were not in possession of any of these items

nor were they in any sort of -- they didn't really have

access to these items either neatby or anything, did they?

A. They had access to all the drugs inside the house

because it was barricaded inside.

Q. Okay. Let's talk about this‘barricadé~that we're

talking about here. You say based on your experience

‘these houses are barricaded, but correct me if I'm wrong

but did you ever determine whether or not this lock was
broken on this door to see if it needed some sort of prop
to keep it shut? . | ;

A. Typically whenever is door is hit by a breacher,

the door of knob are busted in general anyway, but that's

‘not soﬁething we would look at as far as the barricade;

The barricade is a specific device that is specifically
made to keep people out of the residence.

- Q. So you're saying this 2X4 is a special piece of

wood that is especially made to keep people Qut'of hoﬁées?'

"A. No, sir. The device that is made is especially
made to keep people out qf the.house;
Q. ‘You're saying this device is a 2X4 is that what
you're saying? - | |

A.  Anything that is made other than the common door
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frame of a door is - a -device that is made to keep people
out, therefore, it being a 2X4 poses a great danger and

great risk to being able to successfully get into a door

and to protect both the suspects as well as law

enforcement.
Q. But the thing is you're painting this with a

broad brush. You're saying based .on your expérienée that

this must be a drug house because there is a 2X4 keeping

the door shut, but isn't it true there are-other people

‘put -- in your personal experience -- they live in a

certain area and they .make sure that the door is lbgked"so 
the péople can't get in?

A: I can honestly say that in my éigﬁt years of
experience, I have never executed a.search wériént that

was ndt‘q search warrant where there was a barricade on

 the door. It's just not found. Every single execution

that we have done where we have found a barricade has been
a narcotic search warrant.

Q.. When you say barricaae, you're talking about a

'2X4 and-not a bunch of wood or a bunch of products propped

agéinstwthis‘dpor? You're talking about a 2X4 put across
the door, right?

A..vNot every time, no, but on this specific
occasion, yes. 4 4

Q. There was nobody that was pressing up against the
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dobr?' You can't say that Mr. Shumate nor Mr. Burnside was
keeping the dopi shut? You can't say that, can you?

A, No, sir, I'm not saying that at all.

Q. .And when you came in, Mr. éhﬁmate was in the
bathroom aﬁd Mr. Bﬁrnside was»in the back iﬁ the bedroom,.
right?:

. A.. Yes, sir.
'Q. So they wére no where near the door when théyt
came in, were they?
| A. . No, sir, they wére not.
Q. Itfs a simple question but did anyone knock

before they decided to come in? -

- A.7 We always knock and announce.
Q. Knock and announce?
A. Yes. We announce loudly Sheriff's Office and

there's multiple distraction, lights is going off and ‘it

is extremely obviously -who is executing the search

warraﬁt. It's primarily for our safety and the safety of

the.paﬁrons around?

¢. How loud is it? Is it really liké sirens going,

flash bang going and so forth? 1It's pretty loud; isn't.
that correct?

A. Yes, $ir, it is.

MR. ROBINSON: That's all I have, Your Honor.

~MS. BENTLEY: No redirect.
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May Investigator Brown be extused?
THE COURT:..Any'Objection?

MS. ROSS: No objection.

MR. ROBINSON: No objection.

THE ,WITNESS: Thank you, Youf Honor.
MS. BENTLEY: The State calls Deputy.tanford..
THE COURT: Deputy_Lanfordi please come |

forward to be sworn. Please place your left hand on the

'Bible and raise your right.

JUSTIN LANFORD,'having.been‘duly'sworn;
testified as follows: . P

You can be seated. State your name for the

rqurd.'
THE WITNESS: Justin Lanford.
DIRECT EXAMINATION i
BYvMS.,MCCALL: . .
Q. Deputy,iénford,»could'youkﬁell us where do you
work?

A. Greenville €County Sheriff's Office, directed E
pétro;(unitf |
| Q. And how long have you worked a;7the Sheriff's
Office?
A. . Five years.

“Q.. And you said you are currently with the directed

 patrol unit?
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'Yes, ma'am.

How long have you been with that unit?

o T

Two years. '

Q. On November 18th}ﬁdid you respond-to Lot 7 on
Bleachtry Road in Greenville County?

A., Yes.

Q.. ind could you please tell us why you' did respond
to that location? o 9

A. I responded to that location after we conducted

several warrants in the traller park "I went to that

.traller to (1naud1b1e) Deputy Sw1ft where we‘oonduCted the
'search warrant, . flndlng ev1dence, plac1ng it into’ property

eand evidence, taking subjects into custody.

0. What‘ﬁas your specific roll in that search

warrant?
A. Scribing the search warrant as items were brought
to me throughout the house. I also searched the kitchen

of the trailer.

Q. What was your procedure for scribing these items?

A. What we normaily do for the houses once they are
secured and cleared, we go through the house and label-
each room a,b,c and throughout. Once that's done a.person
stafts in a particular room and then moves‘from one corner
of the room around in a complete circle that way nothlng

is missed and we are very thorough throughout the house.

107



108

w N

10

11

12

13

14 |

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22 |}

23
24

25

125

Lanford - Direct

Once. that's done,'if.items are found, they bring it to the
person that's scribiné the seafch warrant to be placed
onto the search warrant itself.

Q. And after'you took invénéory of allhthe collected
items, did you turn it over to another officer and why diq
you do‘that?.'

A. I turned it back over to Master Deputy Swift who

| then took it back to:p:operty and evidence. Who ever

takes over the items that are seized, it just mékes it

' easier when it comes to court.

Q. I'm going to show you briefly what's already been

introduced as 14 through 25, If you would look_at-those

"and T ask'if you recognize those photos.:

A.  Yes.
Q. Are these,phbtos of items that were found at the

residence?

"A..’ Yes.
Q. Also,‘I'm‘showing you what's been marked as 32

and 32a. Do you recognize that?

A. Yes.

Q. Howigre you -able to recognize those exhibits?

A. These are items that were found in the kitchen
on, I guess, the counéer top where they eat at. There was
no kitchen table. Theée were.sitting in plain view on top

of the counter once the search warrant was executes.
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w N

Q. Do those exhibits appear to be in the same

condition_as they .did back November 18}-2010?m~

A. Yes.
Q. Did you alter the substance in any way when it
was in your possession?

A.. All we did was go test it to see if it tested

positive for cocaine, cocaine base, -in which it did. It

. turns blue at the time of fhe test. That's the only thing

we did to the items..- |

Q. And after you conducted that'field test, what did
you do'wiFh the substance?

A. We seal them in the containers that, they're in
and place them‘into property and‘g?idencef

MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I would move for

State's Exhibit 32a, which is the ---

BY ‘MS. MCCALL:
Did you tell the jury what that was, 32a?
322 is 'a hotel room key. That's basically it.

‘And 32 was the substance that was found ---

L O R A ©)

This is;the'crack'cocaine that was found on top
of the hotel room key on the counter.

MS. MCCALL: Your Honbr,'I'd move to
iﬁtroduce 32a, the actual card. -
ATHE COURT: -Any objection?

MR. ROBINSON: ©No objection.
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1 : . MS. ROSS: No objection.

2 THE COURT: ~Without objection, it's .in.
3 , {Room key marked as State's Exhibit No. 32a

4 | for identification and admitted into evidence.)
5 N BY MS. MCCALL: A

6 Q. 'Deputy Lanford, I'm showing you what's been

7AAmarked as Exhibit 33. Do you recognize that? .-

8 A. Yes. |
9 Q. Can you tell the jury what it is?
'10 A. It is a Giock 40 caiiber hanagun.a
iI Q. Where did you find that? .o o,
| A.  ‘This itgmé was found behind the crack cocaine on.

12
}i3 the same cognter‘prbbably‘é hands width'aﬁay‘from where '
14 | the drugs were readily accéSsible to get .a hold of it.

15§ . 0. What did YOu do with that gun once you found it
16 aﬁd retrieved it? |

17| A. We cleared the gun and checked the se?ial number
'218' on NCIC to see if it's stolen. . Once it's clear with that

19 | we place it into property and evidence. Usually? due to

20 | the circumstances with the drugs, we charge.the defendant

21 | if necessary. | . | |
22 | AQ; Is the gun appeared to be altered in any way;

23 | since i£ was éut back in P&E? ‘

24 A. No.

25 | MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I would move State's
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vsea;ch anywhere else in the kitchen?.

Exhibit 33 admitted into evidence.
THE COURT: Without objection.

(Gun marked as State's Exnibit No. 33 for

identification-was admitted into evidence.)

BY MS. MCCALL: .

Q.  After you'searched the counter: tops, did you

3

VA. Yes., Once this was done I began searchlng the .

cabinets where I found several pills whlch once we

i

'searched the restﬂof the house we did not find a"*

prescrlptlon for. They are controlled substances We

also located another bag of crack .cocaine in‘a bag of -- .’

or powdered cocalne 1n31de an oven mltt above the stove.

‘which did test positive’for cocainegbaSem S

Q}' Let me stop .you-rjust for a second so I can get

some of this stuff into ev1dence: |
Exhibit 34 and 35, do you fecogn£2e tnese
exhibits?
A Yes.

Q. How, are &ou able to recognize that?

A. These pills were(found‘together‘in one of'the
counters and_these were found on a different counter~as

well.

Q. And they appear to look substantially the same

| after those items. were found,‘I field tested the;microwave‘

as

s
3
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they looked back on 20107

A, Yes. |

Q. °~ And once you retrieved these pills what drd you
.do with those once you found these pills? |

A. Those were listed on the seerch warrant where I
found them and placed into property and evidence.

Q. Can you explain the significence:of these pills
as far as, based on your tralnlng and experlence, the
packaglng and how. they were found? ,

A, Normally whenever they re found uhen‘they are

divided up llke~that, a doctor has not prescribed someone

to take a plll you know,:cut in halfﬁor“packaged in a

'baggle You know you.always get your'pills prescribed to

you with your name; address, how to take them properly and

what not to do and when they re found llke this they re

‘usuallyy1111c1t or sold for other reasons besides the

| prescribed way usually to.get high on..

Q. ”Xour~Honor/ I'm.going to show 36, 37 and 38. Do
you'recognize these exhibits? . ' -
A. Yes.
: Q: Can you please tell the jury whatiExhibit 36 is?
A." This is an Altoids container' When I found it 1u
contalned several razors in it and those razors are
usually used to cut up crack cocaine manufactured in the

microwave.
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Q. How about Exhibit 37°?
A. 37 is a digital scale to weigh out your product

so you'll know how much you're giving a person you‘'re

selling drugs to.

0. And where did you locate that scale?

A. I believe it was above the stove as well in the

Atop counter of the stove.

Q. Did you field tested that? .
A. No, ma'am. I don't believe so.

0. Now, Exhibit 38, what is that?

A. 38 is a magazine usually for AK-47. It was eﬁpty‘

at the time we found it and there was no other parts to a

'rlffle that we found in the residence.

0. Where did you locate that?

A, That was found in the kltchen as well

0. After you found all three of these thlngs, what
did you do w1th them at that t1me° ‘ .

A. Again listed them on the search warrant and put
them in property and evidence.

0. And do they all appear to be essentlally in the
same condition as they were back in 20107

A. Yes.

MS. MCCALL: Your Honor(»I would'move_Exhibit

36, 37, 38 into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection?
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MS. ROSS: No objection.
MR. ROBINSON: No objectien.

(Altoids container marked as Exhibit 36_for

identification was admitted into evidence.)

{Scale marked as Exhibit 37 for
identification was qdﬁitted into evidence.)
| '(Magaziﬁe“ciip marked as Exhibit 38 for
identification was admitted into. evidence.)
. BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. 'iim going to éhowiyou'Exhibitw39;' Do you

i

recognize that? L

A._‘ Yes.

0. Noﬁ, when you were(searching the kitchen, did ybu

locate those two items?

‘A. These were. the items I said I found in 'the oven

‘mitt above the stove, the powdered cocaine:and crack

‘cocaine.  This shows when we test them it turns blue.

They both were tested.
Q. What were the results of that?
A.- They both turned blue.

Q. And other than it turning blue, is the substance

still in the same condition as it was back in November

201072
A.' Yes.

Q. And this is Exhibit 41 and 42. Do you recognize
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Exhibit 41 and 427
A. Yes.
Q. Where did you find these? I'm assuming yoﬁ found

them in the kitchen?

A. Yes, in the kitchen. I guess the importance of

this is when we find this much cocaine and crack we always

' field tést the microwave because that is where they make

crack cocaine. We'll, again, test it with those swabs and
if the inside turn blue, it turns immediate because
whenever youire;manufaqturing, it pops. Cocaine spays

throughout your microwave and that's the reason we made

that ¢harge for manufacturing was due to the the subétance'j

'we found inside of it.

Q.' Ana‘after you field tested it, what dialyou then
do the plate and the microwave? | .
A. This again was taken into property and evidence
and placed on the search warrant.
MS. MCCALL:" Your Hono¥, we would move for
the microwave Exhibit 42 be admitted as evidence. |
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. ROSS: No objection.
MR. :ROBINSON: No objection.
THE COURf: Without objection.
(Microwave marked as State's Exhibit No. 42

for identification was admitted into evidence.)

i}
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BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. Did you find anything else in the kitchen that
would indicating the manufacturing of cocaine base?

A. Nothing that we placed into property and

evidence.

Q. Did you personally find anything else in the’

residence when you conducted your search?

A. Whenever you're checking the dishes, you usually

have plates. I know it's hard to see but this is an item

they use as well as the tupperware to cook off the water,
the access water, that's on the items. But, again, you

can use anything that's in your kitchen, whisk, bowls,

.,

| spoons. Anything will working the ménufacturing.of this.

Q. Now, after:you,searqhed the kitchen, did you find

anything else in the residence? “
| A.’ I noticed that whenever we weré going tp:ouéh the

séarch warrant the television was on. In this picture,
you can see right here ﬁhere was a surveillance camera,
ébove the front door pointing on to the porch.andlthaf's
when I went outside and took fhe security camera that they
had down which was hooked up to the tv.

Q. lExhibit 43a, b and ¢, do you recogpize that?

A. That's it right there.

Q. So what is théf?

A, This is the security camera as well as the
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w N

transmitter and power cords.

Q. Could yourdetefmine,if:the.camera wés‘wdrking?

A. Oh, yes, it's blatantly obvious onfthe.télevision
-— the picture, I'm sorry.

Q. And that camera was that also taken down to
property and evidehce?

A. Yes, that.camera‘wasvtakenAdown.

Q. And is it in the same condition it was back in

November. of 20107?

A. Yes.
MS. MCCALL: Your Hoﬁbrl we would move to
admit’43a, b and q;
THE COURT:  Any objection?
MS.‘ROSS:‘ No objection.
MR. ROBINSON: No objeétiqﬁQ
THE COURT: Without 6bjectionk
' (Surveillenge equipmeﬁt marked as State's
Exhibit No. 43a, b and C'fér identifibatioh was admitted
into evidence.) ‘ B
BY MS. MCCALL:
Q. Did you find any mohey throughout the residence
during your search?
A. No, ma'am. I believe there was some found on one
of- the defendants, but I'm not quite sure which one it

was.
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Q. We went over everything that you did find. Did

you find any kind of paraphernalia that indicated personal

'drug_use throughout the ‘residence .1like crack pipes,

rolling papers or anything like that?
A. No, nothing like that was found.

Q. After collecting and scribing all of the

evidence, did that completg your investigation?

A. Yes.

Q. That's all I have for you.. Please answer any

'questions counsel may have.

THE COURT: Ms. Ross.
'CROSS4EXAMINATION
BY MS. ROSS: | |
Q. Deputy Lanford, you did'find‘lighters in the
house. There were lighters around inlthe tfailer, weren't
ﬁhere?

Y

A. Not to my knowledge, I didﬁ't find any lighters

personally.
0. You're saying you didn’'t :see any at all?
A. I just don't remember.

Q. Now, when you went. through stuff, things that
were found on the counter -- you weren't the first in
there, were you? |

A. No.

Q. So thoseé things on the counter, do you know if
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they had been on the counter and remained there, or had .

they been moved from somewhere else in the house to the

counter in the kitchen?

A. What I had been told from SWAT members nothing

-had been touched in the room accept fof the defendants who

had been brought outside. Nothing else had ‘been touched
== I'm sorry -- as well as the door ﬁhey went into.
Q. So when you came in, on the counter you saw the

hotel keys with crack rocks. on it? That was out on that

‘counter in the kitchen?

A.. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Now, as far as who was charged with' what, you

'siﬁply you were the scribe, right, and you filled out the

return which is this and the return is everything‘that's
féund in the house and it's all written down and;signed by
a magistrate. ‘ |

A. Yes.

Q.. When you did all that you chafgéd both these
gentlemen with everything found in the trailer, right?

,A. Correct.

Q. Yet you didn't personally see éiﬁher of them with
anything, touching anything or any fingerprints or
anything in your personal experienceviinkihg diréctiy to
these two gentlemen?

A. Correct.
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Q. In other words, nothing was found on them?
A. Right.
Q. On that camera was there a recording, could you

go back and find out what it had shown over time or did

you.
A. No, ma'am.
MS. ROSS: Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Robinson.
‘MR. éOBINSON: VI have no questions, Your

Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Step'down;‘

MS. MCCALL: The State calls Jerry Drummond,

'Ji.,‘to the stand.

THE CLERK: -Mr. Drummond, please come forward
to be sworn.

JERRY bRUMMOND, JR., having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

Thank you. - You may be seated. State your
name for the record, piease. .
THE WITNESS: Jerry Drummond.
THE CLERK: Thank you.
| DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. BENTLEY:
Mr. Drummond, where are you from?

A. Greenville.
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. "How long have you lived hereé
- All my life. - A L oo
Where did you go to high school?
JL Mann.
When. did you graduate?
I aidn't. |
When did.you quit? .
r98. : .

And how old are you today?

Q

A

Q

A

Q

A

Q

A

Q
" A. "Thirty.

o) Are yoﬁ employed?

A No)_ma'am.

Q fou're not employed?

A Not right now.

Q When was fhe last_time_you were employed?

A About a month and a half ago.

Q.  Where were you employed?

A Hills Janitorial.

0 Mr. qummond, do-ybu know the two defendaﬂts in
this case? |

A. Yes.
Q. How do you kriow them?v How do you know Kﬁdrew

Burnside? ' -
A.. We are close friends.

Q. And how do you know Mr. Shumate?
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time

"We're like cousins.

A.
Q. And your testifying because I called you here?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you want to come in today?
A. No.
Q. How did yoﬁ meet,Mr.‘Burnside?A‘
A. Through'family members..
Q. When did you meét him?
"A. I would say around '99.
Q. And what about Mr. Shumate?
A. Béén knowing him all my life.
Q. And you said you're like cqusins?
i;. Yeah. |
0. Befofe this happened, how often did y'all spend
together? A | ‘
A. I;megn Qho? Which bneé
Q. Mr. Burnside.
A, We pung.- .
0. ?Bu hung'how? '
A. We might haﬁg out at the club and at home.
Q. VWhat about Mr. Shumate?
A. Never at home but he came around a few times.
Q. Did you ever live with these two gentlemen?
A. No, we never lived together.
Q. Did you live at Lot 7 on 120 Bleachtry Road-?
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AN

A.

Q.

there?

A.

Yes.

Tell me what you mean when you say you lived

No one has ever lived there, it was just like a

bachelor pad.

o.

I'm g01ng to show you what's marked as State's -

Exhlblt 50, do you recpgnlze this?

R

>0 P 0 ¥ OO M .0

Yes.

What is it?

Water bill.

To whom is that water bill aadressed?

N

My name.

‘What is' the address on that water bill?

120 Old Bleachtry, Lot 7.

So you had water?
Yes, and lights.

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, at this time I

would submit Exhibit 50 into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection?

- MS. ROSSQ No objection.
MR. ROBINSON: No objection.
THE COURT: Without objection.

(Water bill marked as State's EXhlblt No 50

for 1dentlflcatlon was admltted into evidence.)

‘BY MS. BENTLEY:

~

123



124

10 |

11

12

13§

14

15
16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25 |

141

Drummond - Direct

w N

Q So Mr. Drummond, you had utilities at Lot 7.
A Uh-hum.
Q. And l1lights, too, you said.
A Uh-hum.
Q ﬁow, you said you really didﬁ't live there. It
was a bachelor's pad.
A.  Yes.
Q. At what point did you obtaih -- did you lease it,
did you own it?
A, 'It'Was rented.
Q. From whom did you rent it?
A. Our landlord was Billy Rhodes.
Q.. And when did you rént this trailer from Mr. Billy .
Rhodes? '
| A. I would say 2009, somewhere around November 2009.
Q.. @nd when did you leave that trailerx?
A. Like two weék or a week before November 3rd.

Q. And we'll get to that in a minute. Did

' Mr. Burnside ever stay with you at that trailer?

A. I wouldn't call it staying there. I mean he had
spent the night but I couldn't call it staying there.
Q. What did he do there?

A. What did he do there? We just might have company

“over, females, and that sort of things.

Q. What about Mr. Shumate, did he ever stay there?
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A.
0.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

or three

remember?

on bills.

I would say, no, he never stayed there.

1

Did he visit you there?

Yeah, 'he has visited. - ,

'And did Mr. Burnside visit you there?

Yes.,

How often had they visited you there?

I would .say on a scale of 1 to 10 probably twice

timeé out the week. A

Can you tell.mé the date on this bill, please?:
11/12. |

November 12, 2010°?

Yes.

. How much is this bill for? .

$193.

Did you pay this whole bill yourself?

‘Actually I didn't pay that bill.

What was your avérage water bill, do you

No, ma'am.
Did you pay all the bills yourself?

No, ma'am.

Who helped you pay the bills?

It was a party thing where we all would chip in

We all meaning who?
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1.8

(N )

I o -

Q.

Me, Andrew, Shumate, a few more people.
And'why would they help you pay the bills?
Because everybody came and chilled.

You just chilled there. You seem pretty specific

about the date you moved out of that trailer. You said it

was when?

" A.

Q.

o » O b

3rd?
A.

Q.

' going to

A.

sentence
time.

Q.
3rd?

Like two weeks before November 3rd.

‘What happeﬁea on November 3rd?

I was incarcerated.
And for what were you incarcerated?
Habitual'qffender.act,

Did you know you were going to prison on November

Yes.

At what point did you know you were ‘going to be

prison? S R, T o

Actually I knew what I wa§ﬁfacing was a mandatory

¢

'sonmy lawyer told me around -- actually when I .

first got my,léwyer he told me I.would have to do some

And had you agreed to plead gquilty on November

Yes, ma'amﬂ
So you knew that that date was your end date?

Yes, ma'am.
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Q. Did you have things at Lot 7, did you keep -
furniture there?

A. Yes, I had my things there. Before -- well,

after I went to court, I had my wife take everything from

the house.

Q. Did you make arrangements to have your bills
.paid? | |
| 'A.. ‘No, ma'am.
Q. Did you 'ask anyone to pay your bills for you?
A. No, ma'am. |

+ . S

Q. I want to show you some pictures, Mr. Drummond.
Do you recognize what's been marked as State's Exhibit 23?

A. ‘As what.

Q. It's on the back. What is‘iﬁ?'
"'A. It's the kitchen area.

Q. Of?

A. Lot 7.

Q.

And is it the same way as it was when you left
it?

No, ma'am.

‘What's different?

I see chairs, I see a different table.

. Are you éppliances the same?

No, ma'am.

o » oo ¥ o

What's different?
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o » 0o »

A.

Microwave.

What's different about the microwave?
I had a black microwave.

Did you take that with you?

I don't know what happened to it. I didn't take

it with me because I was incarcerated.

Q. You didn't take it to your wife's house?

A. .She took it but I didn't take it.

Q. i'm‘show you what's been marked as State's
Exhibit 25. Do-you recognize what's in there?

'A; A television.

 Q. Was that.your television there when‘you left?

'A. No, ma'am. |

0. What about the second television under the lamp?

A. I can't see it. I don't know what that is.

9. Do you recognize State's Exhibit 247

A. No, ﬁa'am. ) |

Q. _You don't know what that is?

A. I mean I see it, it's a camera;

Q. Was that there when you left?

A. No.

Q. Do you recognize the clothes in Staté's Exhibit
No. 87 |

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Were those clothes there when you left?
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A. No.
Qf And do you recognize the money in State's Exhibit .
77
A. No, ma'am.
Q Did you leave any money behind?
A. No, ma'am.
Q. Did you leave anything of-value‘behind?
A No, ma'am.
Q. Mr.'Drummond,‘are you familiar with crack
‘cocaine?
| A, Yes, ma'am.
Q.’ How afe you familiar with it?
A. I ‘have so0ld before. ‘
Q. You have. 'Have you ever sold from Lot-7 on 0ld

Bleachtry Road?
A. No, ma'am.
Q. You never sold out of there?

A. Well, actually,'I have had sales c¢come there but

-not inside the house.

Q. Why not inside the house?

A. Because I didn't do that.

Q. You didﬁ't do what?

A. I wouldn't sell where I hanged at, just a regular
séle Whére I hang at? |

Q. Do you have any personal.knowledge regarding
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either Mr. Burnside or Mr. Shumate poSsessing crack
cocaine?

A. No, ma'am. R

Q. You have no personal knowledge?

A. What you mean personal knowledge? You mean what
they do?

Q. Yes.

A. I can't say what they were doing when I was gone,
but when I was there, no. | '
A Q. I'm sorry you're gding fo need to clarify what
you just said. |
A, i don't-understand. What you saying?
Q.‘ i'm.asking yoﬁ havé you eveonbserved either

Mr. Burnside or Mr. Shumate possessing crack cocaine?

A. No, ma'am.
Q. Have you ever sold if to them?
‘A. I have sold it -- you asking me have I seen them

get it or in-their.pqsséssion? I'd have to say, no,

" because I have sold it to them myself but you saying --

the way you put it like have I seen it get it from’anyone
else?
Q. Let me élarify, if I may, what T think'you just
saiq. You have sold crack cocaine to Mr. Burnside in the
past.

A. Yes.
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Q. And to Mr. Shumaté in the paét.
_A. Yes.
Q; Did they possess that‘crack cocaine after you
sold it to them?
- A. . Okay, yes.
Q. Mr. Drummond, you'were incarcerated beginning in
November, 2010.
A.. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Do you have 'any personal knowledge about what

happened to your trailer after that?
A. No, matam.
You have no'idea who stated there.
No, mé'am.‘

You have:no idea what went- on there?

Q.
’A.
Q.
A. No, ma'am.
Q. Yoﬁ just let the bill remain in your.name?
A. There was supposed to have been out of my name.
Q. And whose name were they supposed t@ be in?
A, The trailer was supposed to have been given up.
Q. Was Mr. Burnside still visiting seven out of ten
dastin'November'ZOIO?
A. I wasn't even there seven out of ten days.
0. Iﬁ October of 20107

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Shumate?
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A. Yes.
Q. One last question,.looking at State's Exhibit No.
23, do you recognize the hat in thét picturé? o
A. No, I don't. '
Q Can you read name on that pictufe?
A It says, "Precloop" (ph).
Q. Whose name is on the back.
A It say Shumate.
Q. I have no further questions. Please answér any
questions Mr. Robinson or Ms. Ross may have.
THE COURT:" Ms. Ross.
CROSS~-EXAMINATION
. BY MS; ROSS:
‘Q. You've got a crack charge in the pgst?
A. Yes. . ' ) - )
Q. You'vé got a conviction there?
A. Yes.
0. And ‘a strong armed robbery, too?
A. Yes.
Q. And when you were arrested you said that was on
November 3rd?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. You said your wife went and took .all the stuff
out of there?

A. Yes.
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I

Q. You don't know when she took‘it out, exactly what

date?

A. No.
Q. Sovyou can't say when she changed the name on the

ﬁrental'agreement or anything?

3\
A, No.

Q. Did shé'havewkeys to what you call your-pafty

place?

A. Np.

0. She didn't have keys to that?

A. .No. | |

Q; Yet you're saying she was the one who went and
cleaned ouf all your stuff and you don't know anything

about when?

A. No. The door was open. Someone was always
"there. -
0. Someone was always there, 'People came and. went

froﬁ that place? .

A. Yes.

Q,> On a regular basis. And you said before
DominiquezShﬁmate was related to.you and he's your cousin?

A. Yes.

Q. ~ And you said whéﬁ you first testified that he
never stayed there, he would come visit, right?

A. Yes.
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Q. And you sold himtdrﬁgé'before,,right? And when'
he would come visit and youftalked_about Mr. Burnside

coming to visit too} when they came to visit, they'd come

into the place, right?

A. Yeah.

0. And hang in there with you and it was a place

'ﬁhere people hung out. You'd say it was a guys pad where

guys”énd girls would come hang out and that's what you-
kept it for? |
?A. Yes.
MS. ROSS: 1I've got no furthef quéétibns.,
THE.COURT:V Mr. Robinson.
| CROSS—EXAMINATION
BY Mﬁ. ROBINSON: | -

Q. Mr. Drummond} you called this -a bachelor's pad,

‘right?

' A. ' Yes, sir.
Q. So that would mean there were a lot of men that
came in and out of there; is that right?

A. Men and women.

Q. Men and women. So it was a pretty popular place?

A. If that's what you want to say. No, I wouldn't
say it was a pretty popular place beécause it wasn't a lot
of people, just a selected few.

Q. How many people?

—_—
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}

A. I couldn't say. 1It's like if I meet someone and
want to bring}them there, that's . what I would do.-

Q. NQW; after you left, you don't know how many

peo?le came and went from there, do you?

A. No. .

Q. - So it could be many-people, correct?
A, Yeah.
Q. And fo your person;l knowledge, -people knew fhat

as a bachelor's pad where you could come and hang out; is

that right? .

A.  Yeah.
MR. ROBINSON; That's all I have.
- MS. BENTLEY: One last question.
- REDIRECT EXAMINATION
'BY MS. BENTLEY:
Q. D;d you leave'aﬁy narcofics there when you went
to prison?
A. . No, ma'am.
MS. BENTLEY: That's all I have.
THE QOURf: " Thank you. Step down.

(Witness leaves the witness stand.)

Let's give the jury a short recess. Take the

jury out, pleése.
MS. BENTLEY: Méy Mr. Drummond be excused?

THE COURT: ' Any obijection?
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MS. ROSS: No.
(Witness excused.)
(Jury out for recess.)
THE COURT: Are we ready to go?
MS. BENTLEY: May Deputy Lanf6rdAbe'éxcused?
MS. ROSS: No objection.
MR. ROBINSON: No objection. | ;
THE COURT: He's excused. |
Bring back thg jury.
(Jury re-enters the courtfdom.)
MS. MCCALL: The State calls James
Armstrong. \ _ |
.THE CLERK: AMr; Armstrong,‘wéuld yoh pigése
come upAto be sworn in., ' '
JAMES ARMSTRONG, h;ﬁing been duly swofﬁ;'
testified as follows: | |
Thank you. You may be seated. Pleééé'state
your full name for the record.
THE WITNESS: James Armstrong..
bIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MCCALL:
0. Mr. Armstrong,-where are you employed?
A. I'm employed with the Greenville County

Department of Public Safety, Forensic's Division Crime

. Laboratory.
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Q. And how long have you worked for Greenville
County?

A. A little over 16 years. -

Q. And what position dd you currently hold with
Greenville County?

A. I am a criminalist. I have a dual responsibility

as a firearm examiner and a forensi¢ drug chemist.

Q. How long have you held that position?

A.'. §ixtegn years.

Q; What tréinihg’and education did you receive to -
become a fofensic drug chemist?

A. I have a bachelor of science degree in chemiétry.'
I trained in the area of drug identification approximately
one year under the direction of our lab supervisér.’ I

attended numerous instrumental analysis schools concerning

‘the instruments I use in my analysis. I-attended the

forensic chemist seminar sponsored by the Drug Enforcement

Administration in Washington, DC and I have testified in

federal, state, and local courts 149 times as an expert in

the field of forensic drug chemistry.
Q. Do you still.receive tréining,on occasion?
A. Yes, ma'am, I do.
Q. 'What tasks do .you perform as a forensic chemists?
A. I analyze any suspected controlled substance such-

as plant materials, tablets, powders, .liquids anq report
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my findings on that.

Q. . About how many cases have you been asked to
analyze chemical,K substances?
A. Thousands.

Q. And how many cases have you analyzed chemical

substances that turned out to be crack cocaine or cocaine

or pills?
A. Thousands.
Q. And how many times havé you testified in court
about thé ;ésults of your -chemical analyéis?
A. 149 times. ‘
Q. _Have you ever been qualified as an expert in the
drug analysis?
A. Yeé, ma'am.
Q. .- How many -times?
A, 149. .
MS.:MCCALL: Your Honor, at this time, the
Staté'mbves,t6~have Mr.‘Armstrong qualified as an expert.’
‘THE COURT: Any voir dire régarding his
expertise in that area?
MS.-ROSS: No, Your Honor.
Més ROBINSbN: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you. He's qualified 150

times.

BY MS. MCCALL:




10
11
12
13
14

15

16 |

17
18
S 19
20
21
22
23
24

25

156
Armstrong»— Direct

Q; Mr. Armstrong, were you asked to analyze any
.chemical subétances-in;this case? - | -

A. Yes, ma'am} I was. |

Q. And what were'yéu asked to analyze?

A. I héve to see'my report. |

Q; u Okay. I'm handing'yoﬁ what's been marked as
Exhibit 49.

A. A variety'dfidigferent items,: Item PS1, a rock

substance; Item PS5 a. bag containing a rock substance,

' PS9, plant material, PSl1l2a four green tablets, PS12b two

Lblqe,table; PS12c one white table, PS13 bag.qontaining

:four yeilqw tablets and portions of other, PS14 a bag

g

containing rock substance, PS15, bag containing powder
éubstance, PS16 is a bag with plant material, PS1l7a a

plate with residue. and PS18 was rock substance.

Q. How did YOu obtain all those chemical substances:

that you just mentioned?

A. Received from our prbpertf;and evidence room
whiph is in.the basement of the Law'Enfércemént Center.

Q. ' .And how did you check tﬁese out?

A. -In order to receive.thé items: we héve to go to
our property and evidence room and ask for cases that are
in our locker or our vault to be worked. They bring them

out to me on our counter top and I sign the evidence out

with the property and evidence sheet and then I take them
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back to my office for analysis.
Q. And I'm going to show you what's been marked as

Exhibit 27, 29, 32, 39 and 40. Do you recognize that?

A. Yes, ma'am, I do.

Q. Are these~itéms that you checked out of pr§perty
and evidence? » | " : ' "

A. VYes, ma'am, they:are.

Q. . How do you know that? ’

A.  All of them accept for-this particular bag here,

my initials and the date which I sealed them in,a double

»

heat seal as well as the bag which I opened the items and

have my initials and the date and my initials and our”
number also written on the bags‘thaﬁ acﬁually cOntain the
substances.

This other item has my initials and déte if 1
opén it, there‘s aﬁother seal and there's another outside
bag contained in there. .

'Q. I'm showing you Exhib}t 29a, is that the outside‘
bag that your initials Q;ﬁld have been on? '
| A,‘ Yes, ma'am, this does contain my initials.
Q. Now, were th;se bags all sealed when you chgcked
them ouf of property and evidence? |
A. Yes, ma'am, they were.
Q. Now, I turn your attention to the chemical

testing of the chemical substances, what did you do with
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those exhibits?
~A. First then when I received the items I make sure
everything is sealed. I then cut the bag open, initial

and date it and then inventory the contents, make notes,

then do a chemical spot test and an instrumental analysis

to confirm the presence of or absence of controlled
substance. ' Once I complete that part, I generate a report
of the findings.

Q. How do you analyze the substance? What type of

tests?

A. In tﬁis particular case, I pefformed chemical
analysis, microscqpic analy#is on the plqnt.materiai, an
infrared spectroscopy, another called a GC MasSpect tol
confirm -the presence of controlled substances.

Q. And from these tests, were you able to form an
expert opinion as to what these éexhibits contained?

A. Yes, ma'am, I was.

Q. And after you analyzed the material, did you
document your examination that you conducted and your
results? |

A. Yes,‘ma'am, I did;

0. At that Exhibit 49, kept in the course of the
regular course of business in'the‘lab?

A. Yes, ma'am, it is.

Q. - Is it your regﬁlar practice to use and document
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the findings in your drug analysis?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. As far as Exhibit 49, can you tell the jury what

' that is?

A. This is a copy of my 1lab rep&rt generated for
this caée. It has all the items listed. At the-ﬁery tdp
it has the case number. It'has the officer name provided
by the officer and subjegt information, the incident date,

the date I_receivéd it and it also has a spot for me to -

'check what type of testing I performed and a p;ace for me

to write the results of my findings.
MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I wou;d.aék that
Exhibit 49 be entered into evidence. |
THE COURT: Any objéction? .
MR. ROBINSON: No objection.
MS. ROSS: Your Honor, I'd object-based on my |
earlier objection to the search wa;rant.
THE COURT: Subject to your objection, it's
in evidence. u
(Report marked as State's Exhibit No. 49 for
identification was admitted into evidence.)
BY MS. MCCALL;
Q. What did you reveal the substances to be?
A. State's Exhibit 27 corresponds with my item PS18,

the rock substance was found to be_cocainé base, a weight
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éf 0.90 grams. .

THE COURT: That would be crack cocaine?

THE‘WITNESS: Yes, xour Honor, Exhibit 27.

THE COURT: And it weighed what?

THE WITNESS: 0.90 grams. State's .Exhibit 40
corresponds with my item PS14, found to be a.bag}
containing powder substance found it to contain cocaine in
the wéight of 2.92 grams. State's Exhibit 32 corresponds.
with item PS1 which is rock substance found it to contain
cocaine base with a weight of 0.68 grams. ‘State's Exhibit
39'éorrésponds with item PS14 a bag qpntaining'rock
substance found it to contain cocaine base with a weight
of 6.39 grams. State's Exhibit 29 corresponds with PS5
that woulq be a bag containing rock substance, cocaine
bése with a weight.of 10.42 grams.

BY MS. MCCALL: |

Q. Thank you. After you analyzed these substances,
what did you do with them at that time?

A. Once my analysié'was completed, I heat sealed all
-- the containers were heat sealed individually once I
éomplete fhat item and then they were taken back to our
property and evidence room for storage.

Q. Afe those exhibits that you just mentioned, are

they the same evidence that you returned to Greenville

property and evidence?
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A. Yes, ma'am, they are.

Q. You said you resealed the baggies before you
returned them?

A. | Yes} ma'am, I did.

Q. And what day did you return them to;properfy and
evidence? '

A, I returned them on February 9, 2011.

Q. And are these essentially in the saﬁe conditigﬁ
today as when ybu returned them?

A. Yes, ma'am;

0. You have the picture but the substance looks a
liftle‘different like soﬁe blue and some discolopation, is
there any explanation as to why the coloring’ma& have
changed? -

A. State's Exhibit 39, some of the blue which is on

r

"the outside actually is where the ink I had written on the

item, the weight and my initials actually smeared off

some, and the milky or watery type substance on the inside

could be some fype of chemical reaction that's taken place

‘inside this heat sealed bag.

>MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I would now move
that State's Exhibit 27( 29, 32, 39 and 40 be admitted
into evidence. ‘

THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. ROSS: I renew my prior objection.
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THE COURT: Subject to that objection,
they're in. N '
| (Drugs previously marked as State's Exhibit
No. 27 for identification was admitted into evidence.f

(Drugs previdusly marked as State's Exhibit

‘No. 29 for identification was admitted into evidence.)

(Drugs previously'marked '‘as State's Exhibit

No. 32 for identification was admitted into evidence.)

{(Drugs previously'mdfkéd‘és State's Exhibit

‘No. 39 for identification was admitted into evidence.)

(Drugs previously marked as State's Exhibit
No. 40 for identifiqation wés.qdmittedwintO'evidenée.)
' BY MS. MCCALL: o
Q. Mr. Armstrong, were;yéu asked fo analyze pills iﬁ
this case. -
.A. Yes, ma'am, I'wés.
Q. I'm going to show'you7what‘s‘marked as Exhibit 34
and 35, do you recégniéé thaf?' L
A. Yes, ma'am, I ao. o
Q. “Aré these items tﬁét you checked out of pfbperty
and evidence?
"A. Yes, ma'am, I did.
Q; And how do you know that?

A. Property and evidence is the only location that I

receive evidence.
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Q. - When you take out thg pills from Exhibit 34 and
35, was that sealed?

A. Yes, ma'am, they were.

Q. And how do you know that they were sealed?

A. If they were not.sealed, I would have made
nétatipﬂs on the bags but the way that I put my initials:
and'the date.on-the cut line indicates that the bag was
sealéa; |

;

Q. 'Now, let's tu}nfyour attention to the testing of

‘those pills, what did you do with Exhibits 34 and 35°?

A.- With these items, they are pharmacuetical

mproducts,‘I_loqked at the markings on the fabiets and

indicative based on the markirngs the potential contents of
the tablets. ‘ o o

Q. 'And from that anélysis, were you able to form an

opinion as to what these exhibits are?

A. Yes, ma'am, I was.

Q; Could you tell us that 6pinion?

A. State Exhibit 34 actually has three different
types of.tablets inside thaf corresponds with my P$12é,
12b énd 12c. There are four green tablets which they are
indicated to be Diazepam which is a scheduled 4 controlled
substance. Item 12b was two blue tablets indicated‘to bé

Alprazolam, which is a scheduled 4 controlled substance,

. 12¢c, -one white tablet indicated to be Hydrocodone, a
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schedule 3 controlled substance.

State's Exhibit 35 corresponded - with my PS13
was found to be a baggie containing four yel;OW'tablets
and portions of other and they indicated to be Alprézolam,
which—is another schedule‘4 con;rolled substance'.

BY MS. MCCALL: |
" Q. =Exhibit 34 and 35, is that the saﬁe evidence that
ybu returned to property and evidenée?
A. Yes, ma'am,: it is.
.Q. And how can you‘be certain of that?
A; 'They are still ;n the original condition that I
seal them and took them back. ‘
Q. And they are essentially in the same condition
today as when you took them béck to propérty and evidence?
A. Yes, ma'am, they‘are.:

MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I move to admit
State's Exhibit 34 and.35 into evidence..

 THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. ROBINSON: No objection.

MS. ROSS: ‘Same objection.

THE COURT: Subject to your objection.

(Pills marked as State's Exhibit No. 34 for
identification and admitted into evidence.)

(Pills marked as State's Exhibit No. 35 for

identification and admitted into evidence.)
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BY MS. MCCALL:

Q. Mr. Armstrpng, I'd also like you to look at
Exhibit 42, this microwave plate. Do you recognize that?

A. ‘Yes, ma'am, ‘I do.

Q. Were you asked to analyze that microwave plate?

A. Yes, ma'am, I was. |

Q. And how did you obtain that microwave plafeé

A. I received it frbm'property andAevidence.

Q. How do you know that you checked that out ‘of

property and evidence?

A. The red tape has my initials and the date on the

tape as well as on the bag and also has my initials and
item number~0n’the plate.
Q. And when you picked tﬁa# up, was the bag sealed?
A. Yes, ma'am,-it-was.

Q. I now turn your attention to the testing of that

chemical substance. K How did you analyze State's Exhibit

427
A. The plate did haveVSOQe residue 'and ‘I scrapped
some of the off and did a chemical analysis and I found

that the residue on the plate contained cocaine base.

Q. And after you finished analyzing Exhibit 42, did

you return it to property and evidence?

A. Yes, ma'am, I did.

Q. Is that exhibit the same as you when you returned
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to property and evidence?

A. Yes, ma'am, it is.
Q. And you resealed the item?
A. Yes, ma'am, I did.

MS. MCCALL: Your Honor, I move that Exhibit
42 be admitted into evidence.

THE COURT: Subject to your objection. 1It's

‘in evidence.

(Plate marked as Exhibit 42 for
identification was admitted.into evidence.)

MS. MCCALL: That is all the questions that I

have.
THE éOURT: Ms. Ross. _
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. ROSS:
va Mr. Armstrong, just one thing, Hydrocodone;”is

that Avicidin or what is Hydrocodone?

A Hydrocodone is also known as Loritab.

Q So that's Loritab? Alprazolam is‘Xénax.

 A. That's correct. |

o] And what's Diazepam?

A That‘is Valium.

Q. So these were 11 pills plus portioné of Valium,
Xanax and Loritab that were in two different baggies,

correct?
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A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And as far as all these drugs you analyzed, you

don't know who they belonged to, do you? You don't see

them any farther than what you analyzed?

A. That's correct.

Q. And as far as the pills, your analyéis‘is based
on looking up‘this pill and Seeing what it looks like and
seeiﬁg if it matches? A |

- A, Based on a database. .
x Q. So you can't tell whether it was some-@@rtvqfl
ciever,imitqtidn pillfor‘not?

A. 'That's cqrrectl

Q. THank YOﬁ.

BY MR. ROBINSON:

Q. Mr. Armstrong, in looking at. the microane plate,

- you don't know when anythingIWas made in there, do you?

" A. I‘have no idea.

MR. ROBINSON: That's all I havéu
THE COURT: You may step down.
'MS; MCCALL: Your Honor, may Mr. Armstrong be

excused? | |
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. ROSS: No objection.
MR. ROBINSON: No objection.

MS. BENTLEY: The State call David Gambell.
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THE CLERK:, Mr; Gambell, please come forward
to be sworn in. Place your left hand on the Bible -and -
raise your right,'\ .

DAVID GAMBELL, hafing been duly sWorn,
testified as follows: A |

‘Thank you. You‘may be seated. Please state
your name for the‘record. - o |

THE WIfNESS: David Gambell.

| DIRECT EXAMINATION
"BY MS. BENTLEY:
Q. Officer Gambell, where are you‘empioyéd and in
what capacity?
A.; Forepsics iﬁvesfigator for the GreenvilleVCounty

Forensics Division and the Department of Public Safety.:

Q. And how long'have -you been a forensics
investigator?
A. For a little over three years now.

" Q. . What are some of the duties that you have as part
of your job?

A. I respond to any type of ¢rime scene requested.
for any type of processing or pick up cases for in house
processing at my office. |

Q. Do-you‘test for fingerprints as part of your
daily j;b duties?

A. That is correct.
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Q. Were you asked to anaiyze items for fingerprints
in this case? o

‘A, Yes, ma'am, I was.

Q. What items were you asked to process for
fingeiprints?

A. I was asked two different times to‘process three

items of evidence. The first item of evidence was item

PS6 which is a Glock Model .22 semi—automafic handgun.

Q. " I'm show‘ydu what's beeﬁ marked and admitted as

| State's Exhibit 33. Can you tell us if- this is the same

gﬁn you analyzed?
. A, It appears to be so.

Q. And how did'you’test this'handgun fof
fingerprints?w ;

‘A. That specificrhanagun I tested-it’uSing fuming
a;d latent powder, the fuming being super glue based
fuming, put it in a chamber with the subengiue and fhe
gases and the fumes that it creates 'stick to the gun which
leaves any fingerprints that are on the gun;in a more

permanent state so you would be able to lift them or

manipulate them, taking them off the gun as many times as

'you need; and then latent print powder which is basic

graphite powder that sticks to any foreign substance on
most substances.

Q. Were any prints developed from State's Exhibit
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337

A. On that item there were non comparable results.

Q. Whaf does that mean?

A. It means that there was no epough ridge deﬁail or
points enough to run throuéh CODIS to be able to identify
it.

Q.. You examined State's Exhibit 33, was there
anything regarding that gun that would make it difficult
to hold on to a print? |

A. Most firearms are difficult to get prints off of

egpecially glocks. The whole feceiver meaning the handle

and trigger mechanism are a textured plastic which does

‘'not hold latent prints and the receiver which is the slide

and the barrel of the gun given the condition is just not

suitable for latent processing.

Q. What else did you process for prints in‘'this
case?
A. I also processed an item PS17.which was a white

Sharp microwave. .

Q. I'm just going to point out State's Exhibit 41.
Does that look like the microwave?

A. It does look like the microwave I processed.

Q This black ---

A. That would be my latent fingérprint powder.

Q

Could you tell us how you processed this gianf

e
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microwave for prints?
A. The microwave I just used latent print powder and
a brush and processed the entire surface area.
0. Were there comparable prints obtained from this

microwave?-

A.. There did appear to be.comparable ptints off of"

 the microwave of which I lifted ﬁsing basic tape’and I

stuck it on a white fingerprint card and forwarded to the
létént‘print division so they could compare.

Q. Wefe you made aware if the fingerprints matched
either. defendant? |

|  A._‘ I doé not believe they matched either defendant.

Q. With a surface'éuch as é microwave, would there
be any reason why someone qould touch this microwave and
not leqve a priﬁt?

AL There could be é number. of reasons. Microwaves
are we call high traffic items meaning'tﬁey're Eéuqhed

numerous times so depehding on the amount of o0il that is

already on the microwave makes it difficult to leave a new

oil print on it. What leaves your fingerprints is oil
fiom your hands in most cases. Also I don't believe the
item was originally requested to be processed, so anytime
it is handled anytime from when it is originally collected

and given to me, even time it's been moved, boxed, bagged, -

.or anything like that can rub off a fingerprint from the
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exterior surface.
0. And what else were you asked to analyze?

A. I‘was also asked to analyze.item PS5a which was a

plastic bag.

Q. I'm going to show you 29%a. Do you recoénize

State's Exhibit 29a?

A. That does appear to be the item I processed.
Q. How do you recognize that you've processed this?
A. Because of the fingerprint powder that I used and
the initials. . '
MS. BENTLEY: I'd like to admit Exhibit 29a
into evidence. | - |
THE COURT: Any objection
MS. ROSS: No objection.
MR..ﬁOBINSONi No objection."
THE COURT: Admitted.
(Plastic bag marked as State's Exhibit No.
29a for identificaﬁibn‘was admittedAinto evideﬁce.)
BY MS. BENTLEY:

Q. Were any ébmparable prints removed from this

baggie?
A. They were not.

Q. Do you know why?

A. Most baggies that are that thin usualiy we have

.negative or.non comparable results on them just because of
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how thin the actual material is. It just does not hold
fingerprints.
Q. I have no further questions for you. Please

answer any questions counsel may have.

THE COURT: Any QQestions? o -"_
MS;‘ROSS: Just a few, Your'Honor!
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. RéSS: |

Q. Officer Cémpbell, the microwave(‘there Qere
comparable prints and‘you ran those pfinté'agéinst these
two gentlemen, correct? |

| A. That'é coffect. _

Q. And they aidn't match either of them?

‘ A. That 1is corréct, to my knowledge. "

.Q; .Did the process stop or did you ruh it through
AFIS, the print database.

A. That I'm not sure. I forward it to the latent
division and I'm not sﬁfe the extent of what they do with
them. '

Q. ' So you can't say the prinﬁs on there matched
Jerry Drummond or any other person known to-the AFIS
database?

- A. No, ma'am.

Q. Thank you.

A. Yes, ma'am.
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MS. ROSS: I have no questions.
© - THE COURT: Step. down.
MS. BENTLEY: May Officer Campbell please be
excﬁsed.‘.
- THE COURT: Any objectioh?
" MS. ROSS: No objection;v
. MR. ROBINSON: ° No objection.

MS. BENTLEY: The State calls Investigator

to the stand.’

:  THE CLERK: Investigator, could you come
around to be sworn. - Please placé'youf left on the\Bible
and raisé’yogr right hand. |

- |  ‘STEVEN PERRON,'having.beén duly éworﬁ;
festified as follows: |

| .Thankvyoﬁ. Would &ou*pléase’State your“ﬁame
for the recofd.’ |

| THE WITNESS: ‘Steven”Berron.‘
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY 'MS. BENTLEY: o
0. Inveétigator, where are you employed ahd in what

capacity?

'A. I'm an investigator with the Greenville County
Sheriff's Office. ‘

4 Q. Is there é particular divisidn in which you are

assigned?
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A. I work in the Department of Crimes Division.

Q. As a crimes investigator, do you ever :deal in
seized money?

Ap Ygs, I do from being -- I'm a seizure officer in
the Sheriff's Office.

Q. ‘Please tell us what a seizure officer aoes?

A. -I'ﬁ responsible for all the paperwork that's
maintained fof séizures,'vehicles, traffig, any;hing that>
has to do Qith‘the séiiure I take carelof the papefwork.

Q. How does seizure money come into your work
péssession? | |

A. When the officer comes in the case he winds up

"seizing thé money and then I get notified that the mohey,

had.been seizéd. - I then forward the money -{ I'm sorfy,-—
the papérwbrk to:the‘SOlicitor's Office who will go ahead
and start the civil procéss of seizing the money..

Q. Is.every dollar'tﬁat is seizea kept?

A. No. It's decided by the lieutenant or captain of

that division to go ahead and seize the money. There's

threshold. Typically nghave a threshold of a §1000 to go
ahead and seize. | .

Q. Do you know why that is?

A. Because of the money it takes to go ahead.and
seize money, oniously-there‘s a cost to seizing monéy and

in order for us to gain from seizing money, we would have
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to méke a certain amountAof money in order to do that.

Q. It-takes money to make money?

A: That's right.

Q. Did you deal with seized money in.this case?

a. Yes, I did-

Q. Andrew Burnside and Dominique Shumate. Would you
pieasé tell us how much money was seized from Andrew-
Burnside?

A Accordihg to the currency report the total amoﬁnt

was $314 and that was a combination between Shumate and

Burnside? h
Q. Did the Sheriff's Office decide to go through the
p;oéedure to keép”éhat $31é?
| A. No, ﬁa;am, they didn't.
Q. Do you knoﬁ why?
A. " Because it didn't meet our threshold.

Q. What did you do with the money when you decided -

A. It was decided by the lieutenant to go ahead and

return the money back to the two suspects?

Q.  Did either man have' any problems acceptiné that
money?
A. No.

Q. And did they accept the money?

A, Yes, they did.
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Q. -How much money did Dominique Shumate accept?

A. . He received $172 for Dominique. Shumate and the
remaining  amount was given to Mr. Burnside $142.

0. Did either man have any problems accepting that
money.

A. I didn't have a chance to talk to Mr. Burnside.

‘He was already in the detention ---

Q. Did you deliver the money in person to

‘Mr. Shumate?

A. Yes, I did.
Q. Did he accept it?
A. Yes, he did. /
Q. ' And to your knowledge did‘Mr. Buriside reject the
money that was given to him? |
A. No.
MS. BENTLEY: . No further questions.
. THE COURT: Any'questions on cross?
MS. ROSS: Just briefly.
CRosstXAﬁINATION
BY MS. ROSS:
Q. The context of this you simply went to
Mr. Shumate and said would you sign for this $172 and he
did, correct?

A. I don't think it was quite like that. I

explained to him that the money was being returned to him
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because it didn't meet our threshold and I'm returning the
moﬁe& to him, coppect; , o N
Q. And you said here is the $172 ---
A. Would you like. to take it, yes.
MS. ROSS: Thank you.
MR. ROBINSON: No questions. I have a matter
to take up. . ‘
THE COURT: Can we excuse this witness?
MS. ROSS: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. ROBINSON: Yes, Your Honor.
“THE COURT: -Witnéés.excused.
T%ke the jury oﬁt,-please.
'(jury exits‘the courtroom;)
MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, we make a motion

for a mistrial at this time based ‘on the téstimony she

just elicited from the officer.. He mentioned Mr. Burnside

was in jail at the time. I think that's prejudicial to my
client in this case for the'jury this offiéer blurting out
jéil.

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, first: would lige to
hear it. I thought I cut Him off before he said detention
centér, but Mr. Burnside for this very crime, he had not
made bond yet.

THE COURT: I don't think th;t's a sufficient

basis for a mistrial and I will deny the motion.
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Who is your next witness.

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, for one question,

the State will recalls Deputy Walters to the stand.

THE‘COURT: Bring tﬁe jury.
(Jury relenters the court:oom.y
Dépnty Walters; come back around. You're
still unaer oath. » | |
| {Deputy Walters recalled by‘State})
BY MR. BENTLEY: |
Q. Deputy Walters, now that all the evidence is in,
I just have one éueétion. -As}fhe éase agent, were you
ﬁade aware of thg'iaﬁeht fingerprint.repért?:n

o

- I was made aware of that report. -

. - Did you review the report?
Yes, I did. . o,
Weré the prints through AFIS? . u

They were run through AFIS, yeah.

o ¥ © ¥ O

Were any matches obtained. from the fingerprints
fhat were obtained?
A. VNo matches wére cbtained, no.
THE COURT: Any gquestions from Ms. Ross or‘
Mr. Robinson.
MS. ROSS: No.
MR. ROBINSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can step down.
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MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, that concludes the
State's case. |

THE COURT: Take the jury out again, please.

(Jury exits the courtroom.)

Any motibns?: }

'‘MS. BENTLEY: None from the_State, Your
Honor.

MS. ROSS: At this time I would renew ali my
motions especially this motion regarding the search
warrant in’ light of the statement put 1nto ev1dence I
would also move for a directed verdict at this time. Mere
spspicion is not'enough. The charges here are traffickiné
with intent to distribute What you've heard is e&idence.
that these young men> ‘were in a house where: drugs also
were. There is ev1dence that they were actually
distributlng or selllng drugs or manufacturing.

Therefore, we would,move to dismiss at this, time.

THE COURT Motion is denied. I think thatfs

an issue for the jury

MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, I'd make the same

motion based on the fact that, as I said the jury in the
beginning, I think mere presence because they were there
just raiees suspicion. There has been no indication that
any of these drugs or property was linked, either actually

or constructive, in anything the State presented, as a

Y
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result of that I would move for a directed verdict.
THE COURT: That makes a good argument . for
the jury, Mr. Robinson I will deny your motion.
You'll have some testimony?
MS. ROSS: I discusseq with my client and 1'm.
asking him to standlup'and be instructed'by you about tﬂis
, ; .
very issue. |
THE COURT: How about you, Mr. Robinson?

‘ MR. ROBINSON: I just toﬁched.on it with him
but I'd like to téik to him first, and his sister is here
and I'd like to talk to hHer real fast;'

THE COURT: . Take them out and let them talk
to their lawyers. | | |
| Ms. Ross;'did you not'ask me if your client
tdok,the stand what would they use? Was it you, Ms. Ross?

MS. ROSS: It was me. itfs my-undérstanding‘
and it might help:him make his determination; my
understanding,is Mf; Shumate's prior record is he has
simple possession of second and I'm not even sure about
that. Hé-dpeé‘haVe a posseésion of cocaine wh#ch Ikthink
would come in. ~There would an issue I would look at that
mariju@na‘doesn't carry over a year and it shouldn't come
in, buE_thét one drug conviction would. |

I think we decided that we would not put a

.defense for Mr. Shumate.
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THE COURT: Alright. Mr. Robinson, do. you
need any more-time?

MR. ROBINSON: A little bit more time, Your

Honor. I think he wants to talk to his mother, if that

would be okay. I don't want to take any more of the
Court's time.

THE COURT: That's fine.

MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, after consultation

-with his family has decided not to testify so I will ask"

the Court to question him.
THE COURT: I will. Will you put each of

these gentlemen under oath, please. :

THE CLERK: Would you please stand and raise

your right hand.

ANDREW BURNSIDE and DOMINIQUE SHUMATE, “after

"having been‘sworny testified as follows:

‘Thank you.

THE COURT: Be seated. Now, Mr. Burnside and

Mr. Shumaté, we have reached a point in your trial where

you will make a decision as to whether or not to take the

stand and testify or present other testimony} do you
understand that?
DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.
'DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, I've just been told by your
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lawyers that you decide that either of you will také the
stand and testify; is that correct?
| DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sié.
DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: That's your constitutional right.

You have absolutely no bufden in this case. . You don't

have to take the stand and testify or present evidence
beqauée«the burden is on the State to prove you guilty

beyond a reasonable doubt. Do you understand that

‘"important right?

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.

DEFENDANT sHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, since you have a right not
to take tﬁe stand and testify or present.evidence, I will

advise the jury that is a right that you have .and they

'can't hold that against you. I need to tell you now that

'you‘héﬁe a perfect right to take the stand and testify.

Do you uhdeﬁétand théf?

DEFENDANT BURNSiDE: Yes, sir.

DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: If jou take the stand and testify
then you becoﬁe like any other witness in the éase; You
become subjected to cross-examination by the solicitors,‘
do you understand that?

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.
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DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1I-don't know if you have any
record for which you can impeached by the State, but if’
you-do,lthen they can use that on cross-examination. Do.
you understand that?

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.

DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

~ THE C6URT: With that undersfanding that you
told me that you've decided that neither of ydu will
testify; is that right? |

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.

DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, is this- a decision that you,

yourselves, have made?
DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.
DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Your lawyers have not put any

pressure on you not to take the stand and testify; 'is that

correct? This is your decision?
-DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Yes, sir.
DEFENDANT SHUMATE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are either of you under the

-influence of any alcohol or drug or any other substance

right at this moment?

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: No, sir.
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. THE COURT: I can't remember -- so thé
inference of intgnt applies in both cases?

MS. BENTLEY: Yes, Your Honor. The intent to
distribute level is 1 gram and in trafficking is 10 grams.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll charge each criminal
offense and we'll cover mere presence. lIJll charge the
law on expert witnesses. i will Charge'ciréumstantial
evidence. e

| MS. ROSS: Judge, on circumstédtial,~we would"
ask for the State v. Edwards which is each Circumstantiai
relied on by the State must be,proven‘beYonﬁxa reasonable
doubt. It must be gqnsistent/with each other‘and point
conclﬁsivel& to,thg.element of guilt.

;THE COURT: I've got my chérde I'Ve been
usiﬁg for 30 yeafs and I will use that Ms. Ross.

| MS. ROSS: TIs reasonable doubt and hesitate
to act in your instruction?

THE COURT: No, I charge V. Nebraska.

MS. ROSS: And we'd respectfully request -
hesitation. And you said mere preéence would ndt be
enough ---

THE COURT: I'll charge that.

MS. BENTLEY:  Would you.charge constructive
possession, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.
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MS. ROSS: I would ask pursuant to State v.
Cherry which is 577 SE 2nd 719 just the. amount of drugs '’

creates a permissive inference of intent to distribute

which the jury ---

THE COURT: Thaf's whaﬁ I charge. 1If you

want to attach that requesf to make it part of the record

for appeal --
. MS.VROSS; Sure.
THE COURT: Mr.'Robinsop, anything you want
to add? | | - N

‘MR. ROBINSON: No, Your Honor.

in the morning.

. ———~END OF TRANSCRIPT AFOR' DAY 1~~~

THE'COURT: Please be back promptly at 9:00
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PROCEEDTINGS

THE BAILIFF: All rise, Court will come to
order, the Honorable C. Viétor Pyle presiding.

THE COURT: Thank you. Please beAseated.
Good morning.

Solicitor.

MS. BENTLEY: Thank you. Goodjmorning,
ladies and gentlemen and welcome back. Thank you fof your
attention during this trialland the presentafién of the
evidence. You've seen'all‘the evidence there is t§ see
and heard all the te;timony there is to hear and now,phe
decisioh.is yours. You are the f;nders of‘facf in‘thiS'
case and you determine whetheeroﬁinique Sﬂumate.ana
Andrew Burnside are gquilty of the crimes charééd!

They are each charged with a number of
offenses, they are each charged with the samé:offénses.
They have been charged with trafficking crack cocaine,

cocaine' base. The find them gﬁilty of trafficking you

rmust find that they possessed at least or over 10 grams of

crack cocaihei The,eﬁidence presented shows they
possessed approximétely 18.4 grams of crack 'cocaine.

They've been charged with possession with the
intent to distribute powder cocaine. 'To find them guilty
of possession with intent to distribute, you must £find

either evidence of distribution such as scales, money, or
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that they bossessed at least one gram of coéaine.' You'll
find inrthe lab report that they:possessed almost three
grams of cocaine. '

They have been ¢charged with the intent to
distribute controlled substances; controlled substances or

prescription pills. You heard they possessed a number of

‘prescription pills with no prescription no prescription

bottles in small baggies used to distribute drugs, along

with the crack cocaine, the powdered cocaine, the scales.
Additionally, they have been charged with

distribution of manufacturing crack cocaine. We<brou§ht

you in this microwave and plate that both tested positive

" for the presence of cocaine base. The only way to get

cocaine base at the top.of the microwave is by cooking it.

It explodes and pops inside.

You also find that because they were
manufacturing that cocaine base; they were aiding,
abetting, conspire to distribute that crack cocaine. And
aé‘you can see some of these samples of crack are'still
precisely cut just as they were when they were found open
on the counter and»hidden throughout the house.

Finally, they've been charged with possession’
of a weapon during the commission of a violent crime.

You'll have the gun and you can take it back with you or I

. can show it 'to you right here. To find them guilty of-
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possessing a weapon during the commission of a violent
crime you first have to find them guilty of a violent

crime which is trafficking in crack. Second, you must

determine that the reason that they possessed that gun was

because of that tiafficking activity.

How do we provefthat? That gun was "in the
kitchen. in the kitchen was the microwave where they were
making the crack with many of the pieces of crack cocaine,
with the pills, with the scales, with the ammunition. The
gun we've prdven was there .as a deterrent, a deterrent to
a drug related robbery. @As you've heard and I'1ll tell you 
aga%n,~this might look like trash to you and I but this is'
almost $700 worth of,crabk cocainé and they had that gun
to protect their inventoiy.

There are a lot of pieces of evidence for you
to consider.. There's a lot of testimony for you to
consider, but there are two things that you do not need to

deliberate about; first, whether the search warrant was

- valid, whether they were lawfully allowed in Lot 7. That

was a matter of law decided on by the Judge.
The second is whether they were the men that
sold drugs to the CI that led to the search warrant. They

are not accused of that. They are not standing trial for

that, that is not a matter at issue today.

What you do have to determine with whether
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"knew about them and they possessed them beyond a

Dominique Shumate and Andrew Burnside possessed and had

control over these items in Lot 7. You must find they

reasonable doubt.
There are very few things in life you can
know with absolute certainty, very few. We could not and

do not have to .provide you with a brain scan of these

defendant on November 18th to show their knowledge and

intent. We do have to present to you evidence and

'testimony that leaves you convinced, firmly convinced of

their.knowiedge and guilt and wé‘submit'wé ha&e done that.

There is no reasonéble way, ﬂo reasonable -
explanation fér these defendants to be'bérricaded inside
that single wide traile; and'not know about it and ﬁot be
involved. Look at this evidence, look at ‘almost $2000
worth of drugs all over the housel' Look at £he gun in the
kitchen on the counter in plain view. Look at the séales
hidden in and around the house. These<menfhad active
knowledge of what was going on in Lot 71

You heard they-helped pay the bills in Lot 7
along with Jerry Drummond. They were there three or four
times a week. I'll tell you more about Mr.'DrumﬁOnd’s
testimony and why he came on the‘stqnd in a minute.

The Judge is going to instruct you on

.something called constructive possession. Neither man was |
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found with any drugs on their person and: that's what
actual possession is that'they actually had the drugs in
their pocket, in their hand. They didn't have it here.
Ccnstructive-possession is no less a crime
than actual possession. The prove constructive
possession, -like I said, I have to prove fhey knew what
was going on, they knew about these.drués, and they '
exercised control over,theseAdrugs. How did they exercise

control? Well, no only are they in the home where they

'pay bills, they are barricaded inside. They have

surveillance cameras on ahd working and displaying exactly
what's happening outside. You can look at that for
yburself.' They knew who waé comihg in and they took the

36 seconds it took to,bréach.that door. and did whatever

‘they could. A reasonable conclusion. from the placement of

eﬁidencevand plaéemeht §f fhé defendants is they tpok that
30 seconds, they stashed what they could Qhere<they could
and they'ran‘ésiﬁa}~away as they could. ‘They couldn't run
far becauseée it's a sméli space. But isn’'t if convenient

that these two men afe'in the only two rooms in this whole

residence where there's nothing at. Is. reasonable to

-conclude that they just mere‘appeared there? They just

lucked out? No.

They knew where everything was. They're

trying to flush some of it down the toilet when the police
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arrive, and they did what they could to distance

_|.themselves. . . . ...

Ladies and gentlemen; I would say thaf actual
\physicalvevideﬁce, the physicél placement of the
‘defeﬁdants, the physical barricéde‘on the door, the
surveillanée camera, the quantity‘of drﬁ@s; the lab
aﬁalysis:of fhe microwafeﬁ I would say that that is more
ithan'enoﬁghlto leave you‘firml§ convipced“of the '
defendants's guilty. . | ,

| But the §tate‘presentéd-mére than that. 1In
addition to this actuél'e&idence,‘wé.presentéd the
testimony'of investigatoerrandon Brown, anuexpert iﬁ"
streét level garcotictéales, and Jerfy'Dr&mmoﬂd.q

“First, Inveétigator Brdwn/ yéﬁ'havefhéafd

that he has executed hundreds of search warrants,

béen doing thisAfor.eight.years. He told &ou that Ldt 7
is not a iesideﬁce like you or I or the:éverage.person‘
thinks of a residenc;. It's a typical Arug house.
There's some furniture, thére's somé'qlotﬁes, fhere's a
”litt}e'bit of food, but primariiy‘it's a piace where
'people can go and deal drugs.

'They eén make them and deal them. They can

hang out there if they want to andAwait‘for cﬁstomers, but

if's not a residence. And that's important because we do

personally, and:ﬁe's been involved in, over thousand. He's'|
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15 |

not have to préve_that either Mr. éurnsidé or Mr. Shumate
lived at Lot 7. ‘Living in the residence'iéihot an ;element .
of possesSion, it is‘hot an element of ény cr%me'charged.
You merely have to find that they had knowledgé and

control of whét was in that place. -

Investigator Brown also told you that in

every search when he has‘ encountered a door barricaded,. it

.| was narcotics related and it is now almost common place to

have surveillance equipﬁent in drug houses. They are
ineXpénsive and“easy to apply.

| The Judge is Qoing tq teli'you apd this is
true that as finaers of fact yqu'detefmine wh6 to listen
for. You determiﬁe‘whoAand whatifo believe. ¥6u can
believe_bnegﬁiﬁness above all the;witnééses. You can
be%iéve a little bit of what everygge ;ells you and that
is»impbrtant bécauée you also hea;d'from Jefry‘Drummond.
Mr. Drummoﬁd is admitteéiy-not an ideal witness.
Mf.'Drummqnd was the man who ;ince November 2009
officiaily rented thétkfrailer and what dig he tell you.
He told you ; few things! ~

One, he told you Mr. Burnside and Mr. Shumate

-are good friends with him and he considers Mr. Shumate a |

cousin. He did not want to be here. He did not want to
say anything that would ‘hurt either of those two men and

that's understandable. But he also told you that, yeah --
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well, when I asked the question correctly he told that,

-yes, he had so}d them crack. Yes, .that house had been

used to make crack sales before. ~ Yes, Mr. Burn51de and
Mr. Shumate helped pay the bills and he also told you why

he is not sitting at that,taple with them. And that is.

because he was incarcerated. He was incarcerated on

' November 3rd of 2010 before the CI buy was made, before

the search warrant was issued, and he could not have had

constructive possession of what was in that house. That's

" the only reason he's not sitting there. He was in prison

.already.

Ladies and gentlemen,,at the end of the .day,

at the end of this trial, this is a straight forward case.

'Ne,JtherePs not a fingerprint on the microwave. No,

there's not text messages saylng anythlng regarding drug
sales. What is there? There are two men, two cell phone,
two piies of cash, $2000 worth of drugs, barricaded inside
a trailet, with a gun, a 2X4 and surveillance equipﬁent
Those defendants knew exactly what was ‘going on and there
is not a reasonable explanation asmde from the fact that
they are guilty. . |

| ‘ They are guilty in trafficking crack cocaine,

They are guilty with possession with intent to distribute

cocaine, they are guilty with possession with into to

~distribute préscription pills. They are guilty of
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distribution and manufacturing crack cocaine énd they are
guilty of possession a weapon during the ccmmission of a
violent crime. | |

| ‘I ask that.you deliberate, review the
evidence, and you return a verdicf that speaks the truth;

guilty on all charges for Andrew Burnside and Dominiqde

'Shumaté.‘ Thank you.

THE CQURT: Ms. Ross.:

MS. ROSS: . Thank you. ‘Ladies and'géntlemeni
of the jury, invﬁy opening I told you they were in aldiué
house, a cfack housé. These two young men were in the-
house gnd there's no denying 'that, but they were in the
wronggplaée at the wrong time.

At the beginning I talked about that and I
gave you an example.of sometimes it does happen Wheré you
are in the QrongvplaceAat the wrong ﬁime and you don't
know all of what's in that trailer.

Now, I'm just going to go back: to Jerry
Drummond. ~The<so}icitor was talking aboutnhim a little
eérlier. 'Ihis was his piaée,‘his pad. He let people come
and épend the night. I have to tell you when I heard that
tes;imony I heard him say that Dominique Shumate was a
cousin. He never would have spent the night. He wasn't

the one coming over all the time. He'd come over a couple

of times. He bought crack, he used crack.
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Now, you had an officer come and say there
was no paraphernalia, no one was using drugs in this

house. Just look at the pictures:. They were. I kept

asking about lighters; I didn't see any lighters. Right

next to the gun was a lighter. There's another picture in

here of a red lighter sitting on ﬁhe'table. ‘There were
lighpers. There were people coming and going from this
trailer all the time using drugs, hanging out using drugé.

Dominique Shumate didn't live there. He went

' to high school, graduated, had a little baby, had a job.

He didn't live in that house. His job was not doing and

selling drugs. He had $150 on him, T think. That was in

his pocket. When he was searched and thrown down on the

groﬁnd, $150 does not a drug trafficker make. Dominique
Shumate ié not a drugltraffickér. W
| Now, ‘I know he's<gﬁilty of .some charges.

It's one of‘those things when you're charged with a bunch
of crimes,'you éithér plead guilty or you go to trial.
He's not guilty of‘t:afficking. He's not gﬁilty of hélf
these things.  He's guilty of.possessing'and doing cfadk'
cocaine. He was uéer.' He's not a téafficker.

| Now, let's look at the fingerprints about

this place. His fingerprints were not found on this

microwave. They weren't on there at all. They weren't on-

~the plate. They weren't on the gun. = They weren't on
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anything connected to'ménufactufing drugs. These guys
were not traffickers. There's not evidence they were the

ones bringing in and taking out drugs and drug’
trafficking. There's no evidence of that.
Let's talk about the gun that was right here.

Now, there's a explosion outside this trailer near the

.back and I will add I did take pictures of this, trailers

you have to have two entrances. You:.can't just have one.
There's a fire code.  There's always a back door to run

out if you want. When you have bombs going on and

someone's ramming the front door, they could have run out

the back door. Or if they're big time traffickers, they
céuid have got the. gun and threatened someone ﬁith.it;

They didn't do anything like that.

Let's talk about Mr. Shumate.  He ran in the

' bathroom. You'll see there was an UNO card with crack'on4

it. There was a card like that the officer testified was

hidden up in a cabinet, a card with crack. There- was also

' a card out on the counter that had some crack on it. Il

submit to you that what Dominigue Shumate was doing was

taking his crack, what he had bought, what he had intended

- to smoke, what he had knew about and had control of, and

flushing it down the toilet. .Getting rid of the evidence

against -him.

Yes, that makes him guilty of knowing about
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important about. the search warrant or the CI, I submit to

some crack, possession of crack, but that does not make
hlm gullty of trafflcklng crack or manufacturing crack or

posse351on with intent to dlstrlbute these pills that were

‘hidden up in a cablnet. Loritabs, there's no evidence

that Dominique Shumate ever sold these pills or came into
any kind of contact with these pllls You heard Jerry
Drummond talk about this place and what it was. |

It . was house, a bachelor pad,.all theé guys
coming and going on this place. |

NOw;'the solicitor said that it's not
yeu that it 'is important because here a'drug buy is dehe
at this heuse on November 10th.. Based on that police
officers went and got a seareh warrant and. searched this -
housefen November 18th, 'oﬁer’a week'iater Now, this is a
bachelor pad These are not the guys who did that sell
If they were, they would have been charged with.it.
Someone else did the sa;e, and,; ladies and.gentlemen? to
prove guilt of ttafficking, to prove guilty beyond a
feasenable doubt, the State has to do mere than‘say these”

guys were in the house. Essentially you're hearing from

-the officers, they don't care whose selling drugs. They

just want to get the search warrant so they can run in and
bust whoever is unlucky enough to be in that trailer at

the time.
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It’s 8:00 at night; psfty time, whoever
happens to be in there get's busted. There is not |
evidence that someone went and purchased from there and
they run in with their search warrant and say we know
you're the one.selling because somebody just purchased‘
thers. They had the CI. They're saying someone 1is
purchasiug there and they said it's not these guys.

'Ladies and geﬁtlemeh; I would ask fof moreg
before you convict someone of manufacturing drugs or
distributing drugs than they were in a house with drugs
Because we "know someone was dlstrlbutlng out of this house

unless police 1lied about the CI. We know someone was:ahd

‘we know it wasn't either of these two guys. So don't

convict him because someone else was sellingvout of the
bachelor pad. ' It's like evidence of a frat house, if
someoné sold out of a frst house and they found drugs in a
cgat.: Tﬁis iswauhuge amount of drugs, 10 grams, that's
where we get the trafficking, this big amount.

That was found in the pocket of a coat in a
closet iu fhe bedroom of this house. A house thst doesn't
belong to these two guys, a house that belongs fhé Jerry
Drummond.. There is no evidence that was either one of
these guys house: And, ladies and gentlemen, they would
have said it's his coat;'look it's his size. They can't'

prove to you it's his coat. There is no offer of evidence
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that the main amount of drugs were found in the room where

there was no other'stuff. It was just hidden in a coat.

Everything was hidden‘away, All of the drugs
were hidden away accept what was on, I think, one of the
drugs that was on the counter.

You heard about that that stuff was all

.hidden away in oven mitts, hidden away and not in plain

view. The reason it was hidden it. was no‘for,public use
for everybody who goes and comes in that hquseﬂ Everybody
uses lighters and smokes crack in this house.

And that's something about plain fairness(
ladies and gentlemen. I would ask ybu to.be fair to
Mr. Shumate. Now, we know someone was dealing out of that
house. We know it wasn't him. We know Jerry Drummond
that Jerry Drummond had all this stuff goiﬁg on in this
house, yet, he's walking. He éets‘to testify and the
Stéte is asking you to put these two young men away for
trafficking for this and they're not guilty.
. Now, against these are just points that I
want to make sure -- they talked about . the $300. They
weren't willi?g-to bother with that for a forfeiture.
That wasn't even enough money to care about, but they're
saying $1600 is enough to be trafficking, to convince

someone of trafficking. 1It's not, ladies and gentlemen,

'and I'd ask you to find Dominigque Shumate not guilty of_
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trafficking crack.

Now, on other stuff, I don't think there's
evidence beyond a reasonable doubt that he knew about

l : .

these pills or he was distributing them. He didn't have
any idea about these pills, none. There is no evidence
that he knew about drugs hidden away in someone's pocket
or in oven mitts.

The Sfate didrnot prove these charges beyond
a reasonable doubt so I'd ask you to find Dominique
Shumate not guilty of those charges. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson.

MR. ROBINSON: You know I waited and waited
and waited and waited for the prosecutor to come clean on
this piece of property. 'I was really hoéing they would

finally admit to you that either of these two people owned

the property or rented the property or leased the property '

or anything. -And in the beginning, the opening statement,

you remember the one assistant solicitor said they owned

- the prdperty, this Yot, and I was hoping at the end of

this thing, in the closing statement, saying, no, they'
didn't own it, but they didn't. They.even go a step
further sinée they don't have that they said, well, they
didn't own it, rent it, or lease it, but the bills in this
case. |

No one testified that these folks, either
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Shumate or Burnside,lever paid any bills in this place.
None of those witnesses, even Mr, Drummohd, their kéy |
witness in pﬁis cése who leased this property never |
testified they paid_bills,'nothing.

If you notice in Exhibit 50, and you'll see

this whén you go back there, this is a heating bills fof

»Jerry Drummond, but again, if they're not going to be

forward about who owned iﬁ,.leased it, rented it, at least
be forward about who was not paying the bills. And,
again, in their'c;osing, they said, paid thg bills. They
never paid the bills. |

. Let‘é go back on other stuff, too, this

microwave. . This is a.white microwave with lots of prints

‘on it and not one print was related to either of .these two-

guys. A lot of other pecple, maybe, but they bring in a

‘witness, a forensic person that says -- doesn't say, yeah,

one of the fingerprints was theirs, he says we .don't know

_who these prints were.

And then we have this, Exhibit 32a,'this.is a
Ddﬁinos Pizza cart. Now, figure outlwhen you delibéfate
how important this i§. |

The cell phones which‘ére Exhibits 28 and 26.
The cell phones were found in this trailer, but there's no
evidence that either of these fellas owned this. There's

no one from either Altell, Vefizon or AT&T that said
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either of these gujs owned these phones. And not only
that, there's no fingerprints.

The Altoids container, no one came .in here

and testified that,this was theirs, there's not prints on

this thing. The;automatic weapon, this was Exhibit 38,

fhat was never tied to these folks. This gun that they

'say was found on the property was found near neither of

these®’guys and she failed to mention it wasn;t loaded.

There are a_couple of things thatAreally
stick out in this,égse, the lack of any person who came‘in
heré to co:robdrate anything regarding these two folks.
They didn'£ have any CI's and séy; éh; yeaﬁ,“I saw them
doing something frém'thié‘résideﬁééﬁ"“NeiEhef‘of'these>
policé officérs Qho testified said anything about any
infqrmation or evidence tha; these guys had anyfhing from
thié residence-

Y'all watch tv and so forth, you watch Cops.
or'those kind of p:ograms. There's no video of this, bﬁt
they got no one that could say either the CI or the. cops,
no‘one could say that athhing‘was ever sold through this
trailer by these two folks.

They try to say, well, because these two guys
were in this trailer, they mﬁst be guilty. These guys,

two young men, we're doing a big sting and these guys are:

. in this trailer. Oh, my gosh, but I told you in the
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14

beginningwthe main ideas in’this case, mere presence does
ﬁot mean that yéu're.guilty.r Just because you are
éomeplacg that doesn't belong to you that has no record of
you ever having done anything in this place, has no
finge;prints, nothing, just because you're in there or in

this piece of property that doesn't mean you're guilty. of

the crimes. Mere presence does is not enough to convict

in this case.

| Now, 'let's talk about this idea of a
barricade. 'That7wasla big notion in this case. ' They make
it sound, aﬁd if youvliéten to’ the office;s in this case,
this barr%cadé was' put up. ‘Look at the piétufe. See if
you see any 2X4, because there's not one. There was not a
2X4. Think about this, y'all know what a 2X4 looks like,
they had the batter ram this place without going to’ the

batk door or some other door and there is no evidence that

‘they presented that they barricaded themselves in there.

They have no 2X4,‘they got no evidence.

Think about it, bérricéde,_whaéﬁdo you think
a barricade is. These folks, interestingly, were no found
near the barricade.  Now, the solicitor ‘talks about the 30

seconds that they had to get away. These guys didn't go

out the back door, they didn't go any place.. The one guy,

Mr. Shumate, was in the bathroom to take a pee or whatever

he does, but I asked the officer on the stand, did you
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find any drugs in that commode. And what'did he say, no.
Mr. Burnside,“they found him under the bed. So what?

Does that mean he's guilty of this when it's not his

trailer? It's not rented to-him and he‘doesn‘t‘pay the

bills. Merely because he's present is not epough ih thig
case to convict theée fwo guys of‘fhése charges.

Now, this is one of the thingslybu're going
to take back Qith you and it should be interesting. You

notice you make a big issue of this tv that's monitoring

' something outside. Well, it's been incontroverted that

~they didn't own the place, they didn't ‘own this stuff, no

one came forward and said,. yeah, we - have records

‘indicating that Mr. Shumate and Mr. Burnside purchased

this tv system or this tv. It would be very good to have
someone from one of these companies come in and say, oh,
yeah, Mr; Shﬁmate and Mr. Burnside wént out to shop and’
they pufchasedlfhis closed circuit tv and this camera, buf.
they didn't do that.

Théy didn't own ﬁhis place, . they didn't rent
this place, they didn't lease this place. They didn't
even pay the bills in this place. And they weren't found
near any drugs, nothing. They weren't found near the
microwave, they weren't found near the little table here,
this little thing that they have, nothing, or pills,

nothing.
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“Sb ask yoursélf, ladies and gentlemen, based
on merely being-present in a place, merely beiﬁgniﬁ this
Place, ére these guys guilty?

| If you think ébout it and as I told you in
the beginning, being a menmber of a jury is one of the
greatest things you can do in peace time outside of being
in the military aﬁd it's a big honor, but the reaéonvyou
wefe chosen if for your common sense and your colleéctive
thoughts and your experiences in your life.

You have a hard job, theré's_ho,doubt. You
héve a hard job. Thére's a lot of-information,'but look
at everythiné. We got. a lot of 'stuff that haé\nothing to.
do with these folks. Nothing. Wouldn't’You'like to have
orie piece pf informatioﬁ, onedperson_come forward and say
we bought stuff from Mr. Shumate and Mr. Burnside?

There's no one..  And they put evidence up, the officer,

there's no evidence that the person bought from the, the

CI, nothing.

Ladies and gentlemen, I want to conclude this

by figuring out a quote or something that will put this in-

perspective. You know when you wake up in the morning and

- you read the newspaper and you go on the Internet and you

see things, you see police or law enforcement arrest
somebody. It's natural to think they've got the person,

but when you came in here and took that oath yesterday,
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you came in here to presume these two folks innocent and
the State has fo prove.to you beyond a reasonable doubt
each and every element of this case; that they aéfually‘or
constfuctively possessed those drﬁgs. They are not guilty
of these charges.

They're guilty of'being in the wrong ﬁlace at
the wrong .time, not listening to their mom or maybé

something like that to go over to a place to hang out, but

that's it.

There's a quote injustice anywhere is
injustice everywhere. - I ask you in this case to do

justice. Use your common sense, use all your experiences

"and find these folks not guilty of these charges, a

vérdict thatxspeaks-tﬁe truth. These’folks are not
gﬁilty. " }
Adn behalf of my clientn thank you.
THE COURT:. I'1]l give you a very short~recesé
before I charge. Take the jury out, please.
) (Jufy exits the courtroom.)
Five minutes.
(Whereupon, there was a brief break.)
Bring the jury.
(Jury re-enters the courtroom.)
I don't want anyone in or ouf during my

charge so if anyone needs to leave, please do it now.
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Ladies and gentlemen, as you know these

~defendants are charged with offenses dealing with drugs,

the first is possession of cocaine with intent to

distribute, the next is possession Diazepam and Xanax with’

intent to distribute, distribution of crack cocaine,

trafficking, and possession of a weapon during the

commission of a violent crime.

Now, with respect to possession of cocaine
and controlled substances with intent to distribute, I
charge you that thése indictments allege that  the -

¢
il

defendants -knowingly and intentionally poésessed‘a

quantity of .these drugs which is a controlled substance
'withiﬁ‘the‘meaning—of'the'statute and that they possessed

'thesekiteﬁs with intent to distribute them.

Ladies and gentlemen, in this connection I

charge you that our statutory law provides that any person

possessingfless than 'one gram of crack cocaine is gquilty
of a felony. The gtatute‘also'proﬁides that any perSon
ﬁho distributes or pﬁsseés with intént to distribute crack
cocaine. is guilty of a felony. It further proﬁidés that
possession of .one or more grams of cocaine or 10 grams of
crack cocaine, that, in fact, gives‘riselﬁo an iﬁferehce
éf a violation of the law.

I charge you that this inférence provided by

the statute is one of law, you may consider and it's only
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an inference of the violation of the law.
Now, with respect to these charges the State’
must first prove that the drugs in question is or are

crack cocaine and then the pills are Xanax or Diazepam.

| Now, further the State must prove that they knowingly and

intentionally possessed these items. Knowingly, -ladies
and gentlemen, is something that,ié consciously doné,
intentional means willful and that is not accidental.

I cHarge you fhat possession of drugé méy(be
either actual‘of cbnstructivé. It requires more than |
prdof of mere préséﬁce at ﬁhg scene‘and.theaState nust
pfove that these defeddanﬁs had dominion and control owver
the substanceé in qustion or that fhey had the right to
exercise do@inion and control over those substancesf\
However, ladies and gentlemen, I charge you thaf a persén
has possession of a substance within;the meaning'of:gur
law when he has both the power and the iﬁtent to cdntqu
its disposition or its use.

| Now, whén a substanée is fouhd‘on the
premises or thé place or the property under the control of
a person, that fact gives rise to an ;nferencé gf
knowledge and possession éf that substance or substances,
therefore, possession of drﬁgs may be infefréd from the
éircumstancés. The drug m#y be said to be in the

constructive possession of a person controlling the
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premises or the properfy or the place where it was found.

‘However, ladies and gentlemen, I tell you
again this inference is on of facf and not of law. It may
authorize é convictioﬁ but that result is not required.
It is an evidentiary in naturé and. is nét conclusive and-
therefore éhould be taken into'consideration by you along .
with all of the evidenge in this case and it is to be
given such weight as you may determine it should receive.

Stated some what differently, ladies and
gentlémen, actual possession of a'drug ié when a substance
is found to be in the agtual possession of a person
charged 'with possession. That's éctual péssession. "On
the other hand constructive possession'bécurs when a
person has dominion and control over either the ;ubstance‘
itself or the premises the property or the pléce upon
which'it;was found or he was a joint participant in
committing the offense. |

Now, as I've told you these defendants are
charges with the possession of these substahceé withAthe
intent to distribute thém. Distribute, ladies and
gentiemén, means to deliver a éontrolléd substance, in
this instﬁnce, the crack'cdcaine and the coﬁtrolled
substances, the pills. It means to-'deliver from one
person to.another a controlled substance whether it be

done gratuitously or for money or for profit.
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Now, ladies and gentlemen, with respect to
these indictments, I charge you as I told you that: the

State alleges it must-be~done with intent to distributed a

less included offense with respect to these indictments

and that is simple possession. If.you find that the

defendants possessed these substances but has failed to

‘prove that they possess it with intent to distribute them,

then you may find them guilty of simple possession.

These defendénts are next indicted for
trafficking in‘créék cocaine. This too is a statutory -
offense and our-statutofy law provides iﬁ.part a persbn
who knowingly sell,;manufactures, cultivates, delivers,
pufchases or‘bringé into this staté or provides financial
assistance or otherwise aids, abets, attempts or éonspires
to sell, manﬁfacture, cultivate, deliver dr.purchase or .
bring into this state or who is knoﬁingly’in actual or
construcfive possessioh or who knowingly attempts to
become in actual or constructive possession of more than
10 grams or more of crack cocaine is guilty of a felony
which is known as trafficking in crack cocaine.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, “it is thevémount
of crack-cocaine rather than a criminal act that triggeré
the trafficking statute and it distinguishes trafficking
from distribufion-and simple possession. If the amount of

crack cocaine or mixture of crack cocaine is 10 grams or




10

11

© 12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

217

State versus Burnside - Shumate .

more, then the tréfffckiné statute I .read to you is
appligd. | |

So wh%ﬁ then are the elements of this offense
yhich the~state75ﬁst préve to yoéur satisfaction beyond a.
r?asonable dohbt?“First of all, the state must prove that
the subStapce in:question was cfack cocainéu' Secondly,
the state must prove that these defendants knowingly
possessed th%s craék.cocaiﬁe. Again, I tell you that

khowing means with knowledge, that is, something that is

'consciously_done, and third, the state ﬁust prove thatilo*

or more grams of crack cocaine was possessed.

qugéin; ladies and gentlemen, I ‘need to charge

you that posées§ioﬁ may be actual or cornstructive. I want -

s <

to tell you again because it's important that the person

‘has possession of the substance within the meaning of our

law when he or ‘she has the power and the'iﬁtént'to
control its disposition or its use. |

Again, I remind yoﬁ, ladie§“and gentlemen,
where a substance is found on the propefty or the premises
or the place under control of the persoﬁ, this fact in and
of itself to give rise to an inference of knowledge and
possession on the part of that person. Therefore, |
possession of a substance may.be inferred from the
circumstances and the substance is deeméd to be in

constructive possession of a person controlling the
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property, the premises or place where it is located.

Possession of drugs may be‘imputed to anyone
who has the power and intent to control the distribution. .
or use of the controlled substance. - |

Again, I charge you, ladies and&gentlemén,
that proof of posséssidn requires more thaﬁ pfoof'qf‘mere'
presence at the scene‘éf a crime. Again, the staté must
prove that these defendants had dominion and control of
the substances allegedly possessed, that is crack cocaine,
or that they had the right to exercise dominion ahd
cpﬂtrol,over it.

Also, in détermingd whether 6& not .a
subétance is possessed ybu may consider thé'émoﬁnt of'thé
substance alleged to have been possessed, the manner in,
which it waé alleged possessed; the place in which it was
allegedly possessed‘and any other factor you considgr to
be important providéd, of course, that the factor ;s
supported by thg evidence.

Now, thése defendants are also indicted for
possession of a weépon during the commission of a violent
crime. ‘This, too, is a statutory offense and Section
16-23-490 of our Code of Laws makes it illegal to possess
or visible display what appears to be a handgun during the
commission of a violent crime or the attempted commission

of a violent crime and in this case trafficking of crack
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cocaine.

Now, before you can convict these defendants
of this offense, you must first have convicted theﬁ of
trafficking crack cocaine which is defined as a violent
crime. |

Ladies and gentlemen, in the-fria; of a case

the state can rely o0n direct evidence on circumstantial

1 evidence br_on'a combination of the two. Direct evidence,

ladies and gentlemen, proves the ekistence of a disputed

fact using one or more of our five senses without the aide

0of any inferences.  For examﬁle, the testimony of a person

who claims to have‘aC£ual knowledge of a fact, in other
words, an gyewitness. That is direct evidence.

Circumstahtiél evidence,‘on the otﬁer hand,
is where certain facts known through ﬁsing one or more of
our five senses produces a logical inference that other
facts eXiét‘without directly proving those facts.
Circumstantial evidence is the pioof of 'a chain of facts
and circumstances indicating the existence of a fact.
Now, as I told you the state may rely on either or both of
this'type of evidence, direct or circumstantial, and
neither if inferior to the other. One is the good as the
other in equally convincing to you and they are both
entitled to the same weight.:

Now, you should weigh all of the evidence in
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this case and after doing so you are not convinced beyond
a reasonable doubt of these defendants guilt, then you
must find them not guilty. |

Ladies and gentlemen, as‘jurors you have a
function orlresponsibility that is entirely separate and
d%stinct from my function as the tniai judge. The
constitution of our state does not allow me to charge you
on the facts of this case or to.discuss the facts:wiﬁh you
or in any way I'm going to let yéu know what :my personél
feelings are about this case. Therefore, if during'the
course of this trialuo; during'my.charge you . have a-
féeliﬁg-gr impréssibn I have a.pergénalifeeiing about <this’
case‘oné way or the-other; thén you disregard that feeling
or that impression. |

Now, it is your duty and your duty alone to
weigh thewtestimgny and théuevidénce presented in this
case and.to pass upon the éredibility o;_believability.df
the witnesse$ you heard testify. In this conﬁection, you
may believe all that a witness tells you or you may
disbeiieve all of a witﬁess tells you. You can one
witness against several or believe several against one.
You also have the right to take into consideration any
bias or prejudice or sympathy they may have in this case.

| Now, as a trial judge I am required to charge

you the law which applies to the facts. It is not a




10
11

12

13
14
15
186

© 17

18

19

20

21
22
23
24

25

221

State versus Burnside - Shumate

question of what you feel the law might be or what it

-should be, it is not neoessarily what the lawyers say it

“is, because under your oath, you are to take the law as I

give it to you and apply it to the facts as you determine

.those facts to be and to right your verdict accordingly.

It is also my duty to see that this trial is
conducted in accordance with the’facts and rules of
evidence applicable to the fact, therefore, I charge you

not to consider any evidence or testimony that was ruled .

out .by me as being not admissible.

Ladies and gentlemen, in this case as'in all

criminal'cases, these defendants come 1nto this courtroom

presumed to be 1nnocent and .this presumptlon continues to’

carry throughout the entlre trlal until and unless: 1t ‘is

removed by evidence, that satlsfles you of thelr gullt

beyond a reesonable.doubt. ' N

The burden is on the state in this case to

prove' these defendants gullty and to prove each and every

'element of the offenses for which they are charged beyond

a reasonable doubt. Some of your may have in the’ past
served as jurors on civil ‘cases and if so you were most

likely told that it was only necessary to prove that a

fact was more likely true than not true. But in criminal

cases the state's proof must be more powerful. As I've

told you it must be beyond a reasonable doubt. Proof
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not guilty.

beyond a feasonable doubt is proof that leaves you firmly
convinced of these defendants guilt.

There are very féw things that we know with
absolute certainty and in criminal our law does nof
requiré proof that overcomes every possible doubt. If
based on your consideration of the evidénce in this case
you are firmly convinced that}these defendants are guilty,

then you must find them guilty. If on the-other hand

there is a real possibilityfthat they are not guilty, then

you must give them the benefit of that doubt-and find them
.Lédies and:gentlemeh, our law does.hof compei
a defen&ant in a criiinai case to £ake the witness stand
and testify bi présent'eviaenqeh and no presumption of
guilt ﬁay‘be raised or no inferenqehéﬁ any kind may be
drawn from these defendants‘decision.ndf to testiﬁy. Our

law never imposes upon a defendant in a criminal case the

burden of calling any witnesses or producing any evidence.

or even testifying. Therefore, the decisions of these
defendgnts‘not to take ﬁhe‘stand and testify can not be
taken, held,-discussed, against them in any manner
whatsoever.

Ladies and gentlemen, under the oath you took
in this case you swore to try the case based solely on the

testimony and evidence and the law presented and heard in
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this courtroom. I told you that it is your duty to léy
aside all outside opinions, bias or prejudice or sympathy
you may have in reaching your verdict. The word verdict

is taken from the latin word wveredicto and it means to

-speak the truth. You have no friends to reward or enemies

to punish. I charge you to abide by your oath and return
a verdict that speaks thevt:uth.

‘ Now, you .will have 'in the jury room with you
these indictments. These indictments do not constitute
evidence. They simply sets forth the allegations by the
state and they aré the-legél documents that bring this
case intq fhe courtroom anq present to you for your
cbnsideréfiqn.'

- | Ladies and gentlemen, with respect to your
verdicts-With respect to'thé indictment fof possession of

cocaine with intent to distribute and possession of

controlled substance with intent to distribute and that is

the pills, you have three choices, that is guilty, not
guilty or guilty of simple possession.
With respect to the indicdtment for possession’

with intent to distribute crack cocaine, again, there are

‘three possible verdicts and that .is guilty, not guilty or

guilty of-possession.‘

With respect to the indictment of

-~

distribution of crack cocaine, there are two possible
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verdidts,'guilty or not guilty. With respect to the
fréfficking crack cocaine, guilty or not guilty and with
respect'to count 2 of tha? indictment, possession of a
weapon during the commission of a violent crime. Again, I
must tell you that to find them guilty of possession of a
weapon, you mUstlfind them guilty of trafficking crack
cocéine. |
"Madam ‘fore pefson} you‘will find on the back
of each indiétment a space»whefe it'says verdiﬁt.
Whatever the verdict of the jury is must be unanimous on
each indictment and whatever -that is plegsé'write it out
on the space prévided and then sign wheté it says
fore person of thé;jury._ |
.Pleaée at this time, ladies and gentlemen, -
retire to yoﬁr{jury room but please don't begin o
deliberétipg<until I send Qord.ih for 'you to do so. -
'v(quy exits courtroom.)
Anything further? ‘
MS. BENTLEY: Nothing from the’siate.
MR. ROBINSON: On behalf of Mr. Burnside, no
exceptions.. A
MS. ROSS: Nothing from the defense.
THE COURT: Send the.exhibits back and tell
them to begin delibératian

(Jury began deliberations.)
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Okay, ladies and gentlemen, we have a verdict
in this case. Of course, we don't know what that verdict
is but I need everyone in that courtroom to understand
that regardless of what that verdict is there will be no
outbursts of any kind, no displays of emotions, and should
there be any, that would constitute ¢ontempt of court and
I will punish accordingly. If anyone in the courtroom not
undersfandiwhat I said, please stand up.

(No response.)

Bripg'the Jury.

Madam Fore lady, you reached a verdict, could
you hand it to the-bailiff, ple;se.

Please publish the verdict.

THE CLERK: Your Honor, this is case no.
2011-GS-23-1733, the State versus Dominique Shumate,
indicfment for trafficking cocaine base andbpossesSioﬁ of
a weapon during the commission of a violent crime, we the
jury'find the defendant as to count 1, guilty, county 2,
guilty. Signed'fqre person.

2011~-GS-23-1738, State versus Andrew

‘Burnside, indictment for trafficking cocaine base -and

possession of a weapon during the commission of a violent
crime, we the jury find the defendant guilty of count 1,
count 2, guilty. Signed fore person, Virginia Sullivan.

2011-GS-23-1740, Andrew Burnside indictment
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for distribution of cocaine base, verdict guilty, signed
fore person, Virginia Sullivan.
| 2011-GS-23-1735, Dominigue Shumate,

indictment for distribution of qocaine base, wverdict 1is
guilty,rsigned<fore person Virginia Sul1ivan.

2011-GS-23-1731, Andrew Burnside, indictment
for possession of‘cocaine with intent to distribute,
verdict éuilt§ of possession, signed fore person, Virginia
Sullivan. -

2011-GS-23-1736, Dominique Shumate,
indictment of possession of cocaine with intent to
distribute, verdict guilty of possession, -signed Virginia
Sullivan, fore person. | .

20i1—GS—23-1739, Andrew‘Burnside, possession
of a controlléa substance with intent to distribute,
verdict, guilty of possession, signed fore person,
Virginia Sullivan.

| 2011-GS-23-1734, Dominique Shumate indictment

for possession of a controlled substance with intent to
distribute, verdict guilty of possession, signed
fore person, Virginia Sullivan.

If this is your verdict, piease raise your
right hand.

(Jur&,complies.)

Thank you.
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THE COURT: Thank you, ladies and gentiemen,
for your service on this case. Tﬁis will conclude your -
sérvice for this date. This afternoon call the numbei'and‘
they will tell you when to reporf baék, - Thank you very
much for your service on this case. ‘ '

- (Jury dismissed.)

-Any motions?

MS. ROSS:‘ Judge, I will renew my ﬁbtion'for
directed verdict and. all my prior motions and objectiohs.
And I will also ask for a judgment notwithstanding the
véfdict in this case on the trafficking charge.

Mr. Shumate was charged wi;h felony trafficking and also
possession with inteﬁt to distribute crack cocaine, I
wéuld Argue those charges were redundént and eﬁcompéss the
same action, and therefore, I will particular make'a ’
motion for those charges.

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson?

? MR. ROBINSON: 'I have no motions at;this
time, Your Honor. -

THE COURT: Solicitor, how about the
indictments for trafficking érack and then the indictmenfs
fof possession of crack with intent to distribute?

MS. BENTLEY: Your Honor, the indictment fof
trafficking.crack was a separate charge from distribution.

There was not a PWID .crack. I believe there was a‘PWID
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{ cocaine and PWID controlled substance which are totally

different from the crack cocaine.‘ The distribution
manufacturing charge of crack cocaine stems from the
evidence regarding their manufacturing the crack cocaine
in the microwave, tﬁé‘tupperware, tﬁe razor blades with
the intent-to‘therefqre.distfibuteL
| THE COURT: .And the total ﬁas ovef lokgrams?
' MS, BENTLEY: Yes, sir. |

THE COURT: Motion is denied.

gome on éround.

MS. BENTLEY: -These are enhancedscbnvictions;
Your Honor,‘and there are priors, if you woﬁld like to
know about;that.' : | : . . ‘ |

THE COURT: Tell me about that.
f~_ O MS. BENTLEY: For Mr. Burnside, these .are all
th;rd offenses, he.has prior poSsessioné of cocaine base }
in 2009 -and 2007. And for Mr. Shumate, this is a
traffickingfsecond. He has one prior possession of crack
cocaine and'he héS.bne prior pdsséssion of marijuana witﬁ
intent'to ‘distribute. Under the new law the marijuana
would not enhance f;om,what we know.

MS. ROSS: Judge, that's what I understand as
well.

THE COURT: Solicitor, tell me with respect

to Mr. Burnside on the possession with intent to
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distribute the pills, third offense,bthe range is?
MS.-BENTLEY: Zero.to'one yeaf, Your Honor,
end;that's just possession. |
‘ THE COURT: Okay. I got it. The
trafficking, third offeuse, for Mr. Burnside?
| 'MS. BENTLEY: .25 to 30.
THE COURT: And a mandatory $50,000.

Mr. Burnside, you exercised your

constitutional right not‘to testify.” I tell you nowfthat

you have a perfect ;ight to address the'court*ooncerning
your sentence. Now, is there anything you woula like to
say‘before I sentence you? o

| DEFENDANT'BUﬁNSIDE I don't have too much to
say only that I was at the wrong place at the wrong tlme
at ~somebody else's house and I just caught there and I
wasn' t supposed to be there They went:in there and found
the stuff in there and.they found me gullty for ‘the stuff
I dldn t know was there.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Shumate,'anything
you would like to'say-with’respect to_séntence?

'DEFENDANT SHUMATE: I just want to say the
same thing that I was in the'wrong plaoe at the wrong time
that I shouldn't be doing Jrugs and being in a house that
was not mine and I just apologize. i |

"THE COURT: Ms. RoOsS.
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MS. ROSS: Thank you, Your'Honor;,may it

please the Court. I wés appointed to represent »
Mr. Shumate on November 19, 2010 when he was arrested for
this.  Since then vae had contact with his mother who is
in the courtroom today. If you couia stand up, please;
Michele Epps. And his sisters afe.here and there are
other family members here on‘Dominique's behalf. I am
truly sorry that he's looking at the time of mandatory
minimums that he and the qo—defendahF are looking at.

| f~will tell you the solicitor was very
cooperative and made a plea offer of four years for
Mr. Shumate. vHis.mdther advised him to take it and he
knew he needed to -- he simply was too-friqhtened to go ﬁo
jail. He had a job, he had a newborn, and just'WOuld not
plead guilty to it. | |

- He had signed up, signed sentencing sheets to
plead guilty, but just missed his oppartunity to do~thét
and that's how we ended up on the trial docket today.

- I would just ask you to consider closer to
the minimums on theée_charges he's looking-at. He know
he's done the wrongkthing and punish for that is simply
punishment for hnot thinking and kind of frankly being an
idiot about the whole thing. I would ask you td limit the
damage because he knew he needed to plead guilty but we

got here today.
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I'd ask you to consider all these things. He

~is a high school graduate and I believé he has a job.

THE COURT: Mr. Robinson.
MR. ROBINSON: ' May it please the Court. ’Yoﬁr
Honor, about three weeks ago we mét with the prosecutors

in this case and they had made us a plea as well and we

didn't take it and I think it's really difficult when kids

like this don't listen to their families and they think
they can make decisions because parents and families know
best some times, but he's very remorseful_and sorry.

You know, it's a sad commentary sometimes
when young men get in situations like this or put
themselves in situationé and have tb‘pay these harsh
consequénces. His mother is.a very nice lady and his
family is a very.niée family. We ask for the minimum ihl'
fhis case. Thank you{' | .

THE COURT: I'm having difficulty with yéu
telling me you were 'in the wroné place at'the wrong time

. .
and that you're not guilty of anything aﬁd Mr. Burnside
this is your third offense for trafficking and Mr. Shumate
this is your second offense for trafficking. |

MR. ROBINSON: Your Honor, he just wanted to
say something if he could.

THE COURT: Sure.

DEFENDANT BURNSIDE: Your Honor, they say
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it's my third offense for trafficking but they had charged
me because I had got'caught using and that's how I got
charged. I was just never that and I had got caught using.
and certain times.‘

THE COURT: Thank you.

On a third offense trafficking, it says 25
years. ' | | '

MS. BENTLEY: Yes, Your Honor.

. THE COURT: Mr. Burnside on the indictment
for traffiqking,crack cocaine third offense the sentence’
of the Court is you be committed to tﬁg Departmeﬁt of
Cortectién for a period of 25 yeapé énd pay the ﬁandatory
fine of .$50,000. On’the'indictmeﬁt for'posséssion of
cocaine second, the senténce is you be .confined for é
period of five years concurrent. On.the indictment fpr
distribUtion of cocaine third, the sentence is you béi
committed-to thé Department of Correction.for a period of
15 years,concurreht with a fine of $20001'and on the
indictment for possession of a contrélled'substance third
offensg.oné yeaf concufrent.,“

Mr. Shumate, on the trafficking second
offense the sentence is you be committed to the Department
of Corréction fﬁr a period of 15 years and pay the
mandatory fine of $50,000. The indictﬁent for possession

of schedule 4 controlled substance one year concurrent.
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Distribution of cocaine, crack cocaine, five years

.concurrent and on the indictment for possession of cocaine

one year concurrent.

PROBATION CLERK: Your Honor, may it'pleaée'
the Court, they are currently on probation and we would
ask that you go ahead and revoke their probatlon

THE COURT: Okay..

MS. BENTLEY: .Your Honor, pardon but I didn't

| hear the sentence -on the weapon charges, posseSS1on of

weapon durlng the commission of a violent crime.

. THE COURT: Do I have a sentencihg sheet}on
that? 'Okay. I}ve got it. |
L ' On the indictments for'posseSSLOn of a weapon
flve years.concurrent
A MS. BENTLEY: Thank you, Your ﬁonor.

---END OF TRANSCRIPT RECORD---
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= " DOCKETNO. 2011.Gs2- ~ 00733
WITNESSES | Ny / : LAB ’
_ N4 The State of South Carolina
J A Walters : ) .
County of Greenville
Greenville County Sheriffs Office '
1171812010 |  COURTOF GFAEPALSESSIONS |
‘ B , : A Fe%r ) _ 01
: ' - TERM 2611
’ } THE STATE
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER .
: 1484259 and 1484273 -

DQMINIQUE,JARARD SHUMATE
Count | and 1l :

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
» ] i

Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Count one - : ‘ 5 Indictment for
one *_ Guilty 045110549 |

Count two: _ (uil4 y ' TRAFFICKING COCAINE BASE (CRACK
- COCAINE) AND POSSESSION OF A WEAPON
DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT
CRIME

VIOLATION § 44-53-0375 and § 16-23-0490 '

- 1f no, explain

2L SUSPENDS

Did Clerk receive 4river's license?
YES ____ NO

" Defendant

RECEIVED -
MAR 16 200

.
Clerk of Cou
Greenvilie County

¢le




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
o ) TRAFFICKING COCMNEBASE (CRACK COCAINE) AND.
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) POSSESSIONOF A' WEAPON DURING THE COMMISSION OF A
' . VIOLENT CRIME
At a Court of General Sessions, coovcned on F“Eg :2 ::1 2@12 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County prcser_lt upon their oath: -
COUNTI - TRAFFICKING COCAINE BASE (CRACK COCAINE)

That DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE did in Greenvxlle County, on or about the 18th day. of November,

: ..2010 knowmgly sell manufacture deliver or bring into the State of South Carolina or did knowmgly provide

ﬁnanclal assistance or otherwise aid, abet, attempt or conspire to sell, manufacture, dehver or brmg into the State

or was knowingly i in actual or constructive possession of more than 10 grams of Cocaine Base (Crack Cocaine).

Thls isin v1olat10n of §44 53-375 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended

COUNT II ;POSSESSION OF A'WEAPON DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME

That DOMINIQUE J ARARD SHUMATE did in Greenville County on or about the 18th day of November, 2010
'possess or vnslbly display a handgun during the commission or attempted commission of a v1olent cnme to wit:
‘Trafﬁckmg Cocame Base (Crack Cocaine). This is in violation of §16-23—490 of the South Carolina Code of

Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

%0&& “Bendten,

SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES Yovd

J A Walters

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

11/18/2010

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1484283

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
RYE L

~/ FOREMAN GRAND JURY

Foreperson of Grand Jury

RDICT

0189

DOCKET NO. 2011-GS-23-
LAB

The State of South Carolina
County of Greenville

CORL O GRNFRAL SESSIONS

Rl

TERM 2

THE STATE

* DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE -

Indictment for

POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED
 SUBSTANCE WIINTENT TO DISTRIBUTE

VIOLATION § 44-53-0370 -

00173y

If no, explain »

DL SUSPENDS
Did Clerk receive driver's Jj
YES _ Nover's license?

~ Defendant

RECEIVED
MAR 16 2011

“ Clerk of Court
Greenville County

vle




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ' INDICTMENT FOR

. ) POSSESSION OF A'CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE WIINTENT TO
'COUNTY OF GREENVILLE - ) . I.')ISTRIBUTE

At a Court Aof Gelneral Sessions, convened on ' :- B - V the Grand Jurors of'Greer_wille
Coupty present upon their oath: . | _ .
That DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMA’IE did in Greenville Couﬁt&,' on or aboﬁt the 18th day of November,
. 2010, possess with intent to distribute or -vaid, abet, conspire to possess with the intent to distribute a quantity of
controlled substances, Diazepan and Xanax, such possession not having been authorized by law. ﬁis is in

violation of §44-53-370 of the South Carbiina Code of Laws (1976) as amended,

Against the peace and dignity of the Staté, and contfary to the statute in such case made and provided.

pﬁca,@ '&k}/&\

SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES n/

J A Walters

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

11/18/2010

-ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1484268 '

ACTIO

. 7 ey
L° /£

FOREMAN GRAND JURY |

Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Guilty

DOCKET NO. 2011-GS-23-

The State of South Carolina
A County of Greenville

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
February —)

THE STATE -

VS,

DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE

Indictment for
3014

DISTRIBU'fION OF COCAINE BASE (CRACK
COCAINE) »

VIOLATION § 44-53-0375

% 001735

RECEIVED

" MAR 16 201

Cterk of Court
Greenvitle County

91¢



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) o INDIbTMENT FOR
_ ) DISTRIBUTION OF COCAINE BASE (CRACK COCAINE)
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) . ,

"‘T‘-h-r—r.-._-:‘;,;w

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on FEB 2 1 v; g?' . 'the‘Grand'Jurors of Greenville

. L : A . '
County present upoxi their oath: ! % i
That DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE did in Greenvxlle Couqti‘ on or about the 18th day of November,
2010, distribute, dispense, dellver or aid, abet, or conspire to dlstribute dxspense or deliver to an undercover

operatlve a quantity of Cocame Base (Crack Cocaine), a controlled substance such distribution not having been

authorized by law. This is in violation of §44-53-375 of the South Carohna Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

'Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

09*&@/%6”\%

SOLICI\TQ{ '
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WITNESSES m/
J A Walters a
Greenville County Sheriffs Office
11/18/2010
" ARREST WARRANT NUMBER -

1484275

ACTIGN OF GRAND JURY
" E BILL

"FOREMAN GRAND JURY

- Foreperson of Grand Jury

" VERDICT
GUIH';/ mc DOSSeSSION

{

DOCKET NO. 2011-GS-23-

b 001736

The State of South Carolina
County of Greenville
. COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
: )

.Febru'avf'vi | T'ERM'Z%D

. THE STATE

V8.

DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE

lndlctmént for
0183

POSSESSION OF COCAINE WITH INTENT TO
DISTRIBUTE

VIOLATION § 44-53-0370

RECEIVED
43 16 200

Clerk of Court
Sreenville GCounty

812
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ~ ) INDICTMENT FOR

' ' o ) POSSESSION OF COCA!NE WITH INTENT TO DIST, RIBUTE
'COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) ;

At a Court of General Sessious, convened on FF?} '2._ i zf}Z ) the Grand Jurors of Greenville

t " , . at

County present upon their oath: - .'{
That DOMINIQUE JARARD SHUMATE did in Greenvnlle County, on or about the 18th day of November
2010, possess with mtent to dlstnbute or aid, abet, or consplre to possess wnth the mtent to distribute a quantity of
Cocame, a controlled substance such possession not having been authorized by law, Thls is in violation of:§44-

" 53-370 of the South Caro]ma Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

(X«ak Q Rente

SOLICITQR)




9 2 () STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

)
COUNTY OF Greenville g .
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2011GS2301733
. Dominique Jarard Shumate ) A/WH#: 1484259

AKA: )  Dateof Offense: _11/18/2010 -

Race: BLACK ' Sex: M Age: 28 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0375(C)(1)

DOB: o 3S#i.. . )  CDRCode#: _ 0451

Address: _ . — ) o s
City,State,Zip: - Gre

DL#: - " SID#: % SENTEN CE SHEET

*CDL Yes{ ] No[] CMV Yes[] No{] Hazmat Yes[] No[]

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was CONVICTED OF or (JPLEADS

TO: Trafficking in ice, crank or crack - 10 g or more, but less than 28 g - 2nd offense

in violationof § 44-53-0375(C)(1)( of the S.C. Code of Laws,‘bea.n'ng CDR Code # 0451

(] NON-VIOLENT X]' VIOLENT [X]SERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS  []Mandatory GPS(CSC [18§17-25-45

- W/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The chargeis:  [X] As Indicted, |:]Lesser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)
The plea is: L)E]Wlthout Negotiations or Recommendation, [ Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: 4&1 AR Tst ' | S
McCall, Kaltiryn Harper SC Bar# fendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the tate Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of / ﬁ days/months/@or [0 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
4 @/01.' to pay a fine of $ %_ZQL, provided that upon the service of - days/months/years and/or payment
of$ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are iricorporated by reference.

[J- CONCURRENT or [[J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: : .

[J The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.

(3 The Defendant is to be placed on the Centra] Registry of Chlld Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Cnmmal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

) SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[(JRESTITUTION: - [] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing . [ ] Ordered ~ PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: __ $ — days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms Obtain GED ]
(O Setby SCDPPPS : ' : Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
_ — : ’ " May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ .. Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) ‘ 5 ' Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(AX(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 m@ NO pmts. of $ : beginning
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUT Surcharge) $100 o : o
g 56.5. 295 5)(DUI Assessment) s12 : $ —___ paid toPublic Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3§ Other:
"Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 " _
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $AS )
) 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 [
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea ~§ [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $94) § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk-
3% to County (if paid in instaliments) $ ~ during probation.
$

TOTAL ” M f
Q Presiding Judge )/QQ

Clerk of Court/ Depu%tc(le " Judge Code: 2D

Court Reporter: Sentence Date: S b ) O—

SCCA/217 (03/2011)




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS - 221
COUNTY OF : Greenville ; .
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2011GS2301733
; Dominique Jarard Shumate ) AW 1484273 E
AKA: A )" Dateof Offense: _11/18/2010
Race: BLACK  Sex M Age: 28 ) SC.Code § :_16-23-0490
DOB: . | sS#_ R : ) CDRCode# _ 0549
Address: )
City,State Zin:  Greenville, SC 29605 \
DL# ... SID#: 4 g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[J »
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who O CONVICTED OF or DPLEADS -
TO: - Poss. weapon during violent crime, if not also sentenced to life without parole or death “ - ‘ :
in violation of  §. 16-23-0490 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549
NON-VIOLENT (J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [J817-2545
\ ‘ w/minor st or Lewd Act) o
" The charge is: AsIndicted, [T]Lesser Included Offense, [[JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials).

Thepleais: - [X]Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [0 Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTESTJ (AN T2 | o L

* McCall, Rdthryn Harper SC Bar# Defendant - Attorney for Defendant ~ SCBar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, [ County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of - days/month: or [ underthe Youthful Offender Act nottoexceed - years
and/or to pay a fine of §- ; provi at upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

o ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

f$
months/years and subject to- South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of -
1[?22&’ which are incorporated by reference. S
CONCURRENT or [ ] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: B o
[0 The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code . § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied o
by the State Department of Corrections. - ' ’ -
" [J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135. °

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal .
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or _ammunition. . Co

, SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[ JRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing (J ordered PTUP-
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ‘ ‘ Obtain GED 0 :
[ Setby SCOPPPS __ : - Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— ' - May serve W/E begining
Recipient: ' Substance Abuse Counseling - []
*Fine: _ $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be-pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) -$100 3 {0 pmts. of $ beginning
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ - s .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 7§ Other: :
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 (32N
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUT Breath Test Fee) $50 3 .
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca § - - [0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
. Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) $s $4 4D § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County  (if paid in installments) $7 during probation.
TOTAL : $

Court Reporter: \ Sentence Date: O —\\g -2 \o—
SCCA/217 (03/2011)

I Clerk of Eoﬁrt/ Dxtz &MPMB \J\')\ Md\_\ gg;iediélfdgdgbﬂ 70 ﬂ ] / n/ @a (i”




2 2 2STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ; '
STATE - VS. y  INDICTMENT/CASE#: _ 2011682301734 ’
: : Dominique Jarard Shumate ) A/WH: 1484283
ARA: )  Date of Offense: _11/18/2010
Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: 28 §.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(B)(3)
DOB: TUSS# ) i
R SS#:. ) CDR Code #: __ 0189
Address: e ) j
City,State,Zip:  Greenville, SC 29605
DL#: ST g | SENTII:NCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[] N <
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
TO: Possession of Sch IV Controlled substance . :
in violation of § 44-53-0370(D)(2) of the S. C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0180 . '
X NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS, (JMOST SERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC " [J817-2545
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) . :

The c!}arge is: [X] AsIndicted, [ JLesser Included Offense, ((JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
Thepleais:  [X]Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [0 Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: _f{ WA TS | o | B

McCall, Kathtyn Harper SC Bar# fendant Attorney for Defendant - " SCBar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the tate Department of Corrections, .[] County Detention Center,
for a determiniate term of ( days/monor [] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed - years'’
and/or to paya ﬁne of§ . - ; provided that upon the service of . days/months/years and/or payment

of § : plus costs and assessments as apphcable* the balance is suspended with probation ' for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

~ probgtion, which are incorporated by reference. . .
CONCURRENT or (71 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . . . ] .

[_]" The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code . § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections.

[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Reglstry of Ch]ld Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S. C Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U. S C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Cnminal
Domestic Vlolence ) to shlp,transport,possess or receive a firearm or ammunition.
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

‘CJRESTITUTION: [] Deferred ["] Def. Waives Hearing [ | Ordered.  PTUP

Totak $ .. Pplus20% fee: $ - days/hours Public Service Emp]oyment
Payment Terms:- ' — ~ _ Obtain GED. _
[ Set by SCOPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp;
— May serve W/E begmmg
Recipient: ' _ Substance Abuse Counseling [
*Fine: $ ' Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessmeats 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $) DO. Q]) pmts. of $ : . beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) . 8100 § .
§ 56-5.2995 (DUI Assessmen) $12 5 $ . paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 8§ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) “$25 $4S (D .
8 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 - D
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) 850 S .
- § 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § {1 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $s $4 4 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $7 . during probation.
TOTAL ‘ 3 _ -7
, Presiding Judge / v g
Clerk of Court/ PeputyCl Judge Code:
Court Reporter: . Sentence Date: ~\\o -1 No—

SCCA/217 (03/2011)




ATTEST:

The plea is: ﬂthout Negotiations or Recommendation,

TULY

[ Negotiated Sentence,

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ; L
STATE . VS, ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS2301735
Dominique Jarard Shumate )  A/WH 1484268 : ’
AKA: ) Date of Offense: _11/18/2010
Race: BLACK _Sexx M Age: 28 ) S.C.Code § : 44-53-0375
DOB: Ss# _ ) CDRCode#: _ 3014
Address: . . . CooT - )
City,State,Zip:  Greenville, SC 2961,
. DL#: SiD#: g - - SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[] ' ' 5-%32 . 5M
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was ICTEDOF or  [JPLEADS
TO: MANUFACTURE, DISTRIBUTION, ETC. COCAINE BASE, 2ND OFFE o
in violation of § 44-53-0375(b)(2) of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3015 _
NON-VIOLENT (0 VIOLENT [XJSERTOUS.  [JMOST SERIOUS [(JMandatory GPS(CSC [6§17-25-45.
, ' , w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) :
The charge is;  {X] As Indicted, [[JLesser Included Offense, DDefendam Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)

.0 Recommendation by the State.

223

McCall, Kathtryn Harper
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the

for a determinate term of é Adays/monr l

; providedthat upon the service of

and/or to pay a fine of § -

of§ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

probétion, which are incorporated by reference.

SC Bar#

Defendant
[t State Department of Corrections,

(O under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed
days/months/years and/or payme payment’

Attorney for Defendant

SCBar#
[0 County Detention Center,

n;;t;y/yeam and subjectto South Carolina Department of Probatlon, Parole and Pardon Servxces standard conditions of

CONCURRENT or

by the State Department of Corrections.

{J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on;
[[] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code

(O The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and ‘Neglect pursuant to $.C. Code §17-25 135

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16—25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal

. Domestic Violence ) to shlp,transport,poss&ss,or receive a firearm or ammunition. -
’ SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

(CIRESTITUTION: D Deferred [ | Def, Waives Hearing [Jorderea
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $
Payment Terms:

[ Set by SCDPPPS

Recipient: )
*Fine: v $

§ 14-1-206 (Asscssments 107.5 %) $

§ 14-1-211(A)(}) (Conv. Surcharge) . s100. § \ I\ 6
§ 14-1-211{A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 § °

§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 $

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) . $500 5
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 )5S
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 [
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) - $50° $

§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea " §
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) $5 £
3%to County (if paid in installments) $

TOTAL

Court Reporter:

' 3
Clerk of Court/ w“ M

SCCA/217 (03/2011)

PTUP

§ 24-13-40to be calculaled and applied ‘

days/hours Public Service Employment
Obtain GED
Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp

May serve W/E begining

Substance Abuse Counseling 0

‘Random Drug/Alcohol testing - [_‘_] : y
Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutlve weekly/monthly

pmts. of $

$ paid to Public Defender Fund -
Other:

beginning

[J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
§ 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk

- Quring probation. :
Presiding Judge / M i W
Judge Code: a-'b/ vl v 7
Sentence Date: SA\-zHA>—




2 2 4 STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA . ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
‘COUNTYOF " Greenville g - %
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS230
Dominique Jarard Shumate )  AWH _1484283-]S ‘ ’
AKA: : - ) Date of Offense:  _11/18/2010
Race: BLACK __Sexx M * Age: 28 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(B)(3)
DoB: SS#:... - )  CDRCode# _ 0189
Address: L )
City,State,Zip:  Greenyille, SC 29605
DL, TR % SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes [(J No[J HazmatYes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was CONVICTED OF or (JPLEADS .
TO: POSSESSION OF COCAINE, 2ND OFFENSE
in violation of § 44-53-0370(d)(3) - of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3012 .
' NON-VIOLENT “[J. VIOLENT []SERIOUS {7JMOST SERIOUS ‘OMandatory GPS(CSC [J817-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: . {J'As Indlctcd, |:| Lesser Included Offense, [ JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand J ury. . (defendant’s initials)
The plea is: thout Negotiations or Recommendation, | Negouated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST. [0 AdaC. TS0 |
McCall, Kath)n Harpep 4 SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the Wte Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 1 da)"s/mdhths/r [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years(

and/or to pay a fine of § . ; provided that upon the service of : days/months/years and/or payment
of § A ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for ___

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probaion, which are incorporated by reference. - ,
CONCURRENT or {) CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ; v o
‘[0 The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
- by the State Department of Corrections. ‘
(0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17:25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Sectlon 922,lt is unlawfu] for a person convicted of a violation of Sectlon 16—25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to shlp,trausport,poss&cs,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
' DRESTITUT!ON: [] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [ ]Ordered  PTUP .
Total: §- plus 20% fee: 3 d days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: S ' ! Obtain GED 0
[J Setby SCDPPPS ' : .Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
- : : May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: _ 8. Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0 _
§ 14-1.206 (Assessments 107.5%) 8 : Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $¢Q) pmts. of $ - _ beginning -
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 "§ ° _ ' . )
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 5 $ ___ ___ pajdto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 7§ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) . $s00 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ AS
§ 14-1:213 (Drug Court Surcharge) - $150 [
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 5 )
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § {3 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) : 85 $ 8 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in mstal]ments) $ during probation.
TOTAL 3 f
Presiding Judge / 174
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk QQN\)\ JB \ ,\) d’um Judge Cfde: ¢ g“(} v
Court Reporter: Sentence Date: S~ \\J 20—

SCCA/217 (03/201 1)
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Case Number __"~ = -~ < .7 % =

/.
Date _ ¢ ¢

do hereby glve freely and voluntarlly this statement to
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I have read the aboveé statement of z_‘,i._ pages g and it is true and corrcct as best as [ recall.

WITNESS: .+

:
X H
P S & ¢ .
A Fees ] HER 1
Y b PR
P " ) .F
A 3 < ~ - s
L Py iy }{“{5 .
Sl s - ] : AR .

Sworn before me this.—____ day of _. _ COURT?
: 3 EXHIBITNO. _ -

IDENTIFICATION/EVIDENCE

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR SOUTH CARC LINA i

DATE:

GSO 00019
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| OrlGina |
! STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

County of L |

GREENVILLE __ 10-174388- . Ad @3
'SEARCH WARRANT

3.
; Date November 13.2019 :
Officer J- Walters #4833/ * 1105 4 3}

COURT'
EXHIBIT NO. —
IDENT, lFlCATfON/EVlDENCE
& DKT#
-3 —\"—
& DATE:

—_—

o
g
g
8

AD B0D.




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE COUNTY AFFIDAVIT

- "Personally appearcd before me, one J- WALTERS *1105 483 -
who, being duly swom, says that there is probable cause to believe that certaim property§
of Section 17-13-140, 1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, i3 located on thed!

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SOUGHT

2 provisions
% this County:

Ses Exhibit A

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES (PERSON, PLACE OR THING)
o ' TO BE SEARCHED . | ;

&Gmnvﬁle, SC, 29617 ﬂ'le center of the residence being 34.87538 N 082.42224 W coordinates is a single

wide mobile bome with bbwn wood siding, with 8 white in color wooden porch with tan underpinning. The residence bas no visible

numbers on the residence; Entering the trailer park from Edwards Street the residence is the second mobile home on the right. To -

include any persons, vehicles, trash: receptacles present and directly fclatcd 10 the Jisted residence,..

. REASON FOR AFFIANTS BELIEF THAT THE
PROPERTY SOUGHT IS ON THE SUBJECT PREMISES

A Confideatial Informant, while working under the direct control and supervision of the Sheriff's Office Directed Patrol Unit mads &
controtled purchase of & substance that field tested positive for cocaine besed substance- crack for Twenty Dollary in U.S. Cash Currency.
This informant was under audio and physical surveillance Quring the entire operation and gave & written statement ss to the activities that
transpired at 120 Old Bleachery Road Greenville, SC, 29617. The informant wes searched prior t0 and after the purchase with no ilegal

contraband found on their person. Based on the Affiant's experience and knowledge it is believed that upon the execution of this warrant
more illegal drugs/ narcotics will be discovered. :

$wom to and Subscribed 7ef0re me . S S . '
this / 3 -"‘ day oi‘_A%*.:é"-(ZO -/-.<=:- . J. Walters 2483/ *1105 \U { foer ,'K/,e_g
]- ’ZL\;-AA’); ) . '

Aaghod __ (.5)
" Signature of Judge Affiant
Address 666 Perimeter Rd

Greenville County SC, 29605
Phone 422-2020
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EXHIBIT A

oy L
COCAINE BASE, ASCHEDULE R NARCOTIC AND CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ANY
PARAPHERNALIA, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, CONTAINERS OF VARIOUS TYPES
COMMONLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE STORAGE OF COCAINE BASE AND ANY
IMPLEMENTS USED TO ADMINISTER OR INGEST COCAINE BASE.

ANY ITEMS USED IN THE MANUFACTURING OF COCAINE BASE, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO; COCAINE, BAKING SODA, PYREX UTENSILS FOR COOKING, HOT PLATES,
MICROWAVES, AND STIRRING UTENSILS.

E IPTION OF P PERTY. GHTFOR RE:;

ANY AND ALL BOOKS, RECORDS, RECEIPTS, NOTES, LEDGERS AND OTHER PAPERS
RELATED TO THE MANUFACTURING, SALE, POSSESSION, AND TRAFFICKING OF
CONTRABAND DRUGS. ‘ : ‘

ANY AND ALL RECORDS RECEIPTS BANK STATEMENTS, LEDGERS AND OTHER l'k'EMS
EVIDENCING THE OBTANNG SECRETING, TRANSFER, AND/OR EXPENDITURE OF. -
MONEY.

ANY AND ALL SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS, COMPUTERS, CELL PHONES, RECORDERS, .
TAPES, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT, EITHER VISUAL OR AUDIO, USED TO RECORD, OR AID
_ IN, THE ACTIVITES AT LOCATION TO BE SEARCHED, :

. ANY AND ALL U.S. CURRENCY, PRECIOUS METALS, JEWELRY, AND FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS INDICATWVE OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE POSSESSION, DISTRIBUTION OF
AND TRAFFICKING CONTRABAND DRUGS.

ANY AND ALL PERSONAL ITEMS THAT TEND TO IDENTIFY OCCUPANCY RES!DENCY
AND/OR OWNERSHIP OF THE PREMISES DESCRIBED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
UTILITY AND TELEPHONE BILLS, CANCELED ENVELOPES AND KEYS. -

ANY CONVEYANCES AND OR VEHICLES USED TO FAClUTATE THE TRANSPORTATION,
DISTRIBUTION, TRAFFICKING, OR STORAGE OF COCAINE BASE AND OTHER
CONTRABAND.

ANY PERSONS LOCATED ON THE PREMISES AT THE TIME OF THE SEARCH.

DONE THIS _ (3% DAY OF ﬁé,@g ler ' e oro

[ et 52 jros

(SIGNATURE OF AFFIANT)

lC

; o .u’)l :

4l
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA oom bppeivedty |
. ' SEA. .H WARRANT ey
COUNTY OF SGremville : _ Mo 16, 1510

ANY BONDED LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR COUNTY OR OF THE MUNICIPALITY
OF Qreenville County : - i

It appcaring from.-the attached-affidavit that there arc reasonable grouads 1o believe that certain property subject to seizure
under provisions of Scction 17-13-140, 1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as a.%:,m&?d, is located on the following premises:
) F
. - " LNy

" &

]

. ‘Now. therefore, you are hereby authorized to scarch the subjcet premises for the property deseribed below, and to scize

_such property if found:

. - DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
See Exhibit A :

TS 5

This Scarch Warrant shall oot be valid for morc than ten days from the date of issuance.

A written inventory of all property seized pursuant 1o this Search Warrant shall be made to
THE LEGAL OCCUPANT OR OWNER OF THE RESIDENCE. . ’ N

within ten days from the date of this warrant, sach inventory to be signed by the officer executing this warrant, and z copy
of such {nventory shall be fumished 1o the person whose premises are searched if démand for such copy is made.

- A copy of this Search Warrant shall be delivered to the person in charge of the premises searched at the time of such
search if practicable, and, if not, 1o such person as'soon thereafter as is practicable; in the event the identity of the person
in charge is not known or if such person cannat be found after reasonable diligence in attempting 1o locate the person, 2 copy
shall be arached to s prominent place on such premises, ‘ N . '

>

(;‘r{-&liv;{( & .s.C.

IV 1 o
-Ajpueméék /34 19 pefo ( /M{M/ (L.S)

Signature of Judge

gu——

e ZZ

v
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RETURN
. . ) ..',‘} - . ' .
[ received the attached Scarch Warrant - 10-17438% 2 %a@(}}av.e C’“:a,,} it as follows:
On ﬂm—'s s w/__z_o_e_ at }/99'1 o'ctock _2. M, [ scarched

(the person) described in the warrant and (the premises)

1 left a copy of-the warrant with /;J-‘o/eara
Name of person searched or *‘at the place of search”’ wizh.
Together with a receipt for the items seized.

The following is an inventory of property taken pursuant to the warrant:
LSl Mk Ron Loy cotd bk Rk like Sibsrkoce Londin floom £ by Lealid
S L5T- T She il cwzs? X320 bp)@ Amme f2ord in frogm S Ly Sibt
v PSY ] She Dsial Seola Bued tn Ron O by, SuBd
v Ps:- L Phols Pen Conaning_ o w&g_&c&__g.gs&ﬂ@_«_&m_a_%__
-! éo:.k 4O 6o Madel 20 Honobsen (Geni e ed 12
of YO eal amauﬁ tn Room A L—r &04_».-_-3
4‘%7-: 6& Femets  [Todel YSATZT Camers Ld .“&a,,_é.,_&aéad__p_#_&cuu- darsy
PS& B}Qk el 4—&\ gc—[e. Lath  Teside o Q,,! o KMA' bs.' La.\QrA 'i'r A
PSY- J Plaste 345.__@.(4,-% b bocen Lo, Sbebusce Lid sn Boon A by NCd 3
FSI0- Aldards Can Cwl&'—-!a____‘i._&z" Ledes L2nd n  Fon A 4. Lot ; :
P~ 30 Ruod 242 x20 Rouwad Megamne Bund 10 oo A ., IAWAYE
M:Q.AM‘MM&M&L&L@J@M_%
/’4/1.‘.)».@,..44..4.& 25
13- 4 f’b.lm A ..--L-hm' i ' -
sy - (ﬂé&z g Co é_).s Lhrd [lc;_“(,g,_ é(s\f‘oeg T LW [E..z 4 A, é;.é
‘ This inventory was made in the presence of i
AND :

! swear that this Iaventory is a true and detailed account of all the property taken by me on the warrant.

SWORN to before me this lq \H'\ ﬂ/
day of Vodew. e 19205 “orh  YsY

@ (ngnaturc of Officer Execulmg Warrant)
9&4/%« 04) »qﬁa (L.S.)

Signature of Judge (
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RETURN -
I received the attached Seacch Warrant L6 /2938% .37 _2n10, and have executed it as follows:
On i/ L W2 al /747

(the person) described in the warrant and {the premises)

I left a copy of-the warrant with : [T dend
Name of person searched or *‘at the place of search® with.
Together with a receipt for the items seized,

Th;: following is an inventory of property taken pursuant to thc.; warran(:
LS I ) Phoke B ""4“‘3 o AL  ABude Sdshence ﬁmd_ m_ fpon A'__é.p_éa&d___
L5062 f fhoke [y Golstoicy o breen lenl) Shodonee Lo d o fooe A b LesLDy
£Lsiz=- 1 Lt Sﬁs:p /7/u-oy‘,vg_ wibd &lees /A/:_ fd in ;Qe/-,/d A\_. Cﬁl&-—ol (5@-:0/& ?703})

v e @ Mt Mok ik Slilinces L sn Boom 4 b S5.ly
FPsa- } og,.,..,,s Pozm Cod il Creck flandee L0 i froin B by tedond

7519 ) Fepl A by Lonfand

v AS25- ) Dk Vers 2o ﬁmuﬁ Room, 4cé¢. )
V52N~ Ons fendred _end Sl = Ton .a.uﬂ o U, Cocosy Fold 1o Ronn B & 5.0y S
LEN - Lae % Lmcod ca ol Fordy E Dullese _m L15 C torgel .&,4 ~ f&o-«, 3 éz ‘\:
VE523 Mise ;).«aawo»k £ docosnry - Jwily " i
33

- This inventory was made in the presence of
'AND

I swear that this Inventory is a true and detailed account of all the property taken by me on the warrant.

Khia |
SWORN to before me this p Z :
no\a’('\/‘ be~ 192G O \ Vioz g Y8

day of
[] /,/(givgnawre of Officer Executing Warrant)
L&L\(,A

Slgnjurc of Judge
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from .the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Interim Guidance Regarding Personal Data Identifiers and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

Katﬁ;ine H. %‘]udgins

Appellate Defender

February 6, 2014

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense )
PO Box 11589

Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589

(803) 734-1330

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA D @,mug J

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Greenville County’ } - “%D :

C. Victor Pyle, Jr., Circuit Court Judge - S

THE STATE, |
RESPONDENT,
\'
DOMINQUE J. SHUMATE,
APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2012-212057

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I cértify that a fn}e copy. of the Record on Appeal in the above referenced case has been
served upon Julie Kate Keeney, Esqufre, atn the Rembert‘_ Dennis Building, 1000 Assembly Street,
Room 51:9, Columbia, SC 29201 this 6th day of February, 2014.
Brandon Hall
Administrative Specialist

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me
this 6th day of February, 2014. '

g2 _—— ws)

Notary Public for South Carolina _
My Commission Expires: August 21, 2023.




